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Enterprises in China
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2023 TOP 100 Property
Management Companies
in China
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2023 Hangzhou TOP 10
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Enterprises for the Public
Building Property
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Awards and Honour

2023 Top 100 Property
Service Enterprises with
High-Quality Service
Capability in China
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2023 Marketing
Operational Leading Brand
of China Property Service
Companies
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Residential Property
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Financial Highlights
B 5 4 =

December 2023

December 2022

2023%12H 2022412 H Changes
RMB’000 RMB’000 B8
AREBTT AR¥ET T %
Key financial information ZHBER
Revenue A 955,580 958,597 -0.3%
Gross profit E A 226,039 271,374 -16.7%
Profit for the period HA [ A1 62,497 125,060 -50.0%
— Including non-controlling interests ~ — BIEFEIER R 730 3,037 -76.0%
— Attributable to owners of the — RRBHEEA AEL
Company 61,767 122,023 -49.4%
DLYel-Yog o T s 2Kl December 2022
20234 12A 2022412 A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT ARKETTT
Total assets BERTE 1,424,649 1,314,889
Total liabilities BEER 665,616 533,693
Cash and bank balance He RIRITEREE 229,728 209,855
Total equity -y R 759,033 781,196
Interest attributable to the owners of RAEHEB ANEGER
the Company 742,766 764,544
DLYoT=To o T 02Kl December 2022
2023124 2022F 12 A
Key financial ratios Z oL =
Gross profit margin EFE 23.7% 28.3%
Net profit margin F = 6.5% 13.0%
Net profit margin attributable to the owners of AR AIHEA A FE(GFFE =X
the Company 6.5% 12.7%
Basic and diluted earnings per share BRERNREERF
(RMB cent) (AR¥TT) 0.065 0.122
DIYelYo o T o 2Kl December 2022
20234 12A 2022412 A
Total property management contracted GFA as RIREHRMEETIRE A LiE
at the end of reporting period (sg.m.’000) FEmEE (FFERHK) 44,702 48,698
Total property management GFA under RBERREETIRBEERE
management as at the end of reporting period & & (T F 77 K)
(sg.m.’000) 39,243 34,543

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Chairman’s Statement

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the results report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting
Period”).

The year 2023 is destined to be an unforgettable year that witnessed
economic adjustment, cyclic fluctuation in the real estate industry and
unprecedented challenges in the property management industry. At the
same time, along with the opening up of the pandemic and
consumption recovery, people’s desire for residential safety and pursuit
of a better life became increasingly strong. Throughout the year, we
encountered numerous ordinary but spectacular incidents, thanks to the
silent contributions of property practitioners.

No matter how the industry has changed, the Group still adhered to
our original aspiration of customer first. We followed the route of
independent development and strived to overcome cyclical fluctuation.
Through organisational innovation, operational efficiency improvement,
service-centric and external expansion, the Group sought development
amid stability and achieved breakthroughs amid development.

As the official cooperative supplier of the 19th Asian Games and the
4th Asian Para Games, the Group was honoured to participate in the
successful event hosting of the Asian Games venues and was awarded
the high-quality service certificate by the Asian Games Organising
Committee. In 2023, the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB955.6
million, which remained unchanged as compared to 2022. Thanks to
our stable performance and officially recognised high-quality services,
the Group ranked the 22nd among the “Top 100 Property
Management Service Companies in the PRC in 2023” as awarded by
China Index Academy and maintained our leading position in the
property service market in Eastern China.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFERS

KEEPING ON MARCHING FORWARD AMID
DIFFICULTIES

During the vyear, we anchored our independent and innovative
progressive direction, insisted on high-quality development and focused
on endogenous momentum to build a stable and resilient property
service sector with a solid foundation. With our quality of services, the
revenue from the property-based service amounted to RMB740.8
million, increased by 21.5% as compared with the corresponding year
in 2022. The Group optimised its operation at a fast and steady pace
through intensive development of Zhejiang, high-density coverage of
non-residential areas and middle to high-end markets and joint venture
cooperation in collaboration with state-owned enterprises. Under the
strategic guidance of the Group of “cash outweighing profit and profit
outweighing scale”, the Group achieved growth by leveraging our
resilience and strong endogenous momentum. During the year, future
development was underpinned by the continuous upgrade of service
capacity, constant breakthroughs in the commercial service and public
service segments, and extension of “property + operation” services.
The market layout of creating a high-end new operation service system
and future community construction dual models was steadily opening
up, thereby building the core engine for the transformation and
upgrading of the Group’s business.

ACHIEVING GRAND GOALS THROUGH
TACTICAL METHODS

The Group adhered to focusing on the essence of property service and
the synergic development of diversified business. We also encouraged
the integration of basic property services with property owners’
livelihood services. Under the strategic vision of “being the better life
service provider”, the Group endeavoured to excel in the industry and
enhanced cohesive force to constantly improve property owners’
satisfaction. As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a GFA under
management of 39.2 million sg.m. and contracted GFA of 44.7 million
sg.m., covering high-tech parks, metro, high-end urban landmark
parks, scenic spots, and other new business forms. We strived for a
modernised development in the entire industry chain, namely from basic
property services to intelligent security, conference reception, and office
conference services for national guests, from ordinary green
maintenance to world events Grade 1 green maintenance standards,
from single management to business solicitation, planning and
operation, and urban space services, laying a solid foundation for
quality and service upgrading.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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CARING FOR PEOPLE’S EVERYTHING IS OUR
ORIGINAL ASPIRATION

The Group continuously built the 15-minute lifestyle circle by keeping
abreast of the opportunities in the communistic era, transforming
service concepts and entwining the core demands of the entire life
cycle of people. By embracing the brand advocation of “Companion
Service with Love (A1 fR#HE Z #HH)” and focusing on creating more
enriched life scenes, we forged a brand new “companion service center
(2 A& L) from the customer perspective of “good looking, good
fun, and good attention”, conducted the space upgrading of customer
service reception desk, and integrated such functions like cultural and
artistic elements, learning and office work, product experience and
parent-child interaction to enhance the living sentiment of the park. We
continued to build the 15-minute community lifestyle circle by
“Companion with Passion (Z12 #%%&E)” and offered “Happy Market (¥
1®M%)” to the doorways of property owners, enabling the former to
become the flow pool. Through live commerce and front housekeeper
delivery, we stuck culture and property service together. New strategies
were developed through empowering cooperation with lighter assets
and better benefits. Following the guidance of the property’s
Communist Party building, we combined our efforts to build an
aesthetic home with communist aspirations and a heart of awe to
support the stable operation of our business. In 2023, we actively built
an aesthetic home and were awarded the title of red property in
Zhejiang Province. A number of our projects were awarded as
provincial-grade garden residential communities and municipal-grade
property management demonstration communities.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHRE

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Embarking on a new journey after a break

The development of the industry will embrace the co-existence of
crises and opportunities in 2024. The Group will always adhere to the
human-oriented concept, adapt to changes for innovation and prepare
well for future development. We will follow the principle of “customer
needs are our starting points of service” and integrate the operation
regime of Ul+4S service relationship to build a foundation for quality
and improve service efficiency. Through iterative upgrading of the
endogenous service industry, we will open new chapters in the new
year based on our diversified industry portfolio service including
strengthening, extending and supplementing the chain.

We will insist on regional market -cultivation and concentrated
development in the service sector, endeavour to create intelligent
scenes for daily life and office work and develop innovative service
systems of AM (asset management) * PM (property management) and
IFM (integrated facility management) to rebuild values. We will commit
to focusing on the responsibilities of respecting customers,
strengthening organisational empowerment, trusting junior staff,
nurturing culture, and performing social responsibilities to consolidate
the organisation’s foundation and generate a driving force. We will
adhere to technological innovation and new technological applications
to generate new quality productivity, which in turn will create valuable
returns. We will stay firm in the innovation and upgrading of the urban
public services to realise high-quality development. We will continue to
explore service boundaries and strive to become a creator of
opportunities for service aesthetics, a builder of smart construction
scenes and a founder of a win-win value platform.

We believe we can achieve our goals with constant endeavour despite
difficulties and focus on property owners and staff to constantly work
hard to achieve the pursuit of a better life. We will join hands to
overcome difficulties, walk tall with confidence, serve in quality and
march forward with courage. We look forward to sharing glories and
dreaming of building the future together to create quality equity returns
and achieve sustainable growth in shareholder values.

Dexin Services Group Limited
Hu Yiping
Chairman

27 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATION REVIEW

Business model of the Group

The Group has three business lines: (i) property management services;
(i) value-added services to non-property owners; and (i) community
resources value-added services, which constitute a comprehensive
service product for our clients, covering the entire property
management value chain.

° Property management services. The Group provides property
developers, property owners and residents with a wide range of
property management services. The property management
services of the Group primarily comprise (i) security services; (ii)
cleaning services; (i) gardening services; and (iv) common area
facility repair and maintenance services for residential properties
and non-residential properties.

° Value-added services to non-property owners. The Group
provides a full range of property-related business solutions to
non-property owners, which primarily include property developers.
The value-added services to non-property owners of the Group
primarily comprise (i) the provision of sales office management
services; (i) the provision of preliminary planning and design
consultancy services; (i) the provision of property inspection and
repair services; and (iv) the provision of commercial consulting
services.

° Community resources value-added services. The Group also
offers various community resources value-added services to
property owners and residents, including () smart community
solutions; (i) property sales and assistance services; (iii)
community resources value-added services; (iv) clubhouse
services; (v) home decoration services; and (v community retail
and home services.

We believe that the property management services business line is the
foundation of the Group to generate revenue, expand business scale
and increase customer group for community resources value-added
services to property owners and residents. The Group’s value-added
services to non-property owners facilitate its early access to property
development projects and the establishment and development of
business relationships with property developers, thereby enhancing the
Group’s competitiveness and securing contracts for property
management services. The Group’s community resources value-added
services business line is conducive to strengthen the relationship
between the Group and customers and improve customer satisfaction
and loyalty. We believe that the three business lines of the Group will
continue helping the Group to gain bigger market share and expand its
business scope in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SN ER &

Property Management Services

In 2023, the Group adhered to the strategic vision of being a service
provider of future urban life relationship, achieved steady growth in
contracted gross floor area (“GFA”) and GFA under management and
constantly expanded the GFA under management. As of 2023, we had
a total GFA under management of approximately 39.2 million sg.m.,
representing an increase of approximately 4.7 milion sg.m. or a
growth rate of 13.6% as compared with approximately 34.5 million
sg.m. in 2022. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase
in projects delivered by Dexin China, as well as the increase in
business with independent third parties.

The following table sets forth our property management contracted
GFA and GFA under management as of the years indicated:

MEEEIRE

20234 -+ NG [BH B FF R AR T A E R RS 7S
MEERES  BRAVEEME((BEEHED
MEERETENETER  THHEEER
H o B E2023F BMMABRTEEREE@MEYD
392BBFH K B2022F 43457 & F K
BMNATEEFER K BRER13.6% ° %1%
RFIFEFENEEPBREIMNIEE LM - UR
WY E=ZHMERIEM -

TERFINBEMREERMNDEERENZ
EMELEEREDSE

For the year ended 31 December

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A31BLERE BZ12A31ALEE
2023 2022
20235 20226
Projects Projects
Contracted projects under management Contracted projects under management
#EOEE #EER ##AR EEHEA
Number of Number of Number of Number of
projects GFA  projects GFA projects GFA projects GFA
FENE EBXEE FEHEYE EXER PREEECEEEEI0T S ICE s Tl
(sg.m.’000) (sg.m.’000) (sg.m.’000) (sg.m.’000)
(FEFX) (FEFHX) (FFAK) (FFAK)
As of the beginning of B ZEF4]
the year 317 48,698 255 34,543 309 46,363 233 31,110
Newly contracted HETH) 55 5,965 38 4,249 50 11,061 34 4,211
Reserve conversion EEl 0 0 41 5,555 0 0 21 2,761
Acquisition kg 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Termination 1k (39) (9,961) (37) (5,104) (42) (8,726) (33) (3,539)
As of the end BEEX
of the year 333 44,702 297 39,243 317 48,698 255 34,543

A majority of our revenue from property management services is
generated from the services provided to properties developed by
independent third-party property developers. As of 31 December 2023,
we had 161 properties under our management that were developed by
independent third-party property developers with a total GFA under
management of approximately 21.8 million sg.m.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total GFA under
management by property type as of the dates indicated:

BEEET R D

TREIBEMRARRMRDEREE D
EERZERERAA

As of 31 December

BE12A318
2023 2022
20234 20225
GFA Revenue Percentage GFA Revenue  Percentage
BEEH B AN 2EEE A 1t
sg.m. ’000 RMB’000 sg.m. '000 RMB’000
FERK  ARETR TEIK  ARMTR
Properties developed BEREMREDE
by Dexin China 13,163 259,028 35.0% 8,655 208,419 34.2%
Jointly developed properties BERENE 4,320 104,466 14.1% 3,502 90,030 14.8%
Properties developed BUE=hE
by independent
third-parties 21,760 377,351 50.9% 22,386 311,247 51.0%
Total @t 39,243 740,845 100.0% 34,543 609,696 100.0%
Our Geographical Presence MBS

Zhejiang Province and the Yangtze River Delta Region are among the
most economically developed regions in the PRC, with higher
urbanisation rates and resident disposable income. Most of our service
projects are concentrated in cities with higher competitive pricing levels.
We continue to expand into first-tier and second-tier cities nationwide,
and continue to increase the GFA under management and income from
core cities outside Zhejiang Province and the Yangtze River Delta
Region, further intensifying our competitive strength in the property
industry. For the year ended 31 December 2023, we had our
geographic presence in 40 cities in China.

I RRTI=AMME P B BRI ENM
Bz— WEEERERERAIRBARS - &
TIARTE B IE B K300 K I 7 U B /K S 35 5 D8R
BT  BRMTEHBEEE — &M - T
B iE AT R BT =AML TR ES
HEREA  EERMEEDERS N - HE
202312 A1 HILFE » HMAHIB S MR F
B 40RE L T °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEN R RS il

The following table sets forth our total GFA under management by

region as of the dates indicated:

TREIBERMTAPRMZEBEHISNEE
MR EEE S

As of 31 December

HZE12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
GFA Revenue Percentage GFA Revenue  Percentage
BEEH KA fkbt BEEE WA it
sq.m.’000  RMB’000 sq.m. ‘000 RMB’000
FTEHK ARETR FERK ARBTR
Zhejiang Province T 25,183 541,394 73.1% 21,142 452,936 74.3%
Yangtze River Delta Region RIZAMLE
(excluding Zhejiang Province) (FRIEMIE) 8,575 126,147 17.0% 10,137 132,719 21.8%
Other regions Hitn @ 5,485 73,304 9.9% 3,264 24,041 3.9%
Total @zt 39,243 740,845 100.0% 34,543 609,696 100.0%
Portfolio of Properties under Management EEVMXEAES

While the majority of properties under our management are primarily
attributable to residential properties, we continuously sought to provide
property management services to non-residential properties in the
Reporting Period. The non-residential properties under our management
are diverse, including commercial complexes, office buildings, schools,
hospitals, industrial parks and municipal facilities. We believe that by
accumulating our experience and recognition for our quality property
management services to both residential and non-residential properties,
we will be able to continue to diversify our portfolio of properties and

further enlarge our customer base.
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The following table sets forth our total GFA under management as of  N&R&EFILFEEFRBHINEES EEEMAE
the dates indicated:

As of 31 December

#ZE12R31H
20235 20224
20235 2022%F
Revenue Percentage GFA Revenue  Percentage
B fkbt BEEE A {[yad
RMB’000 sg.m. ‘000 RMB’000
ARETR TERK ARBTT
Residential properties FEWE 29,752 483,625 65.3% 25,545 428,510 70.3%
Non-residential properties FEEME 9,491 257,220 34.7% 8,998 181,186 29.7%
Total &% 39,243 740,845 100.0% 34,543 609,696 100.0%
Value-added Services to Non-property Owners FEEF EERT

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from value-added E;Z20234F 12 A31H IFFE @ IFE T EERE
services to non-property owners amounted to RMB106.1 milion, YA AR106.15E & 7T @ & & £2022F12 8
decreasing by 43.9% compared to that for the year ended 31 31HIFFE R[543.9% @ thJhAREMETTE
December 2022. This was attributable to the ongoing downside of the — #54& T1TATE  HH/EIF % E 3G E RIS T Sm
real estate industry. Revenue from relevant value-added services to  ZEFSU AFAZE RIE °

non-property owners decreased notably as demand for these services

declined.
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
HE2023F12A3IHLEFR WPl LR PYEcTI= NIt
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
[N 16LE WA fht
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARBTT % AR®EF T %
Sales office management Rim R
services 61,465 57.9% 114,191 60.4%
Preliminary planning and design A7 R 7
consultancy services 37,614 35.5% 48,762 25.8%
Property inspection and repair =& =& R%
services 6,917 6.5% 8,984 4.8%
Commercial consulting services 7 ¥4 :0 iR 7§ 94 0.1% 17,041 9.0%

106,090 100.0% 188,978 100.0%
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Community Resources Value-added Services

In terms of community resources value-added services, our customers
mainly include property owners, residents and property developers, and
we offer a wide variety of community resources value-added services to
make the daily lives of residents more convenient and to foster
community attachment and a sense of belonging. These services
primarily include (i) smart community solutions; (ii) property sales and
assistance services; (i) community resources value-added services; (iv)
clubhouse services; (v) home decoration services; and (vi) community
retail and home services. During the Reporting Period, revenue from
community resources value-added services was RMB108.6 million,
representing a decrease of 32.1% as compared with RMB160.0 million
for 2022.

#H B &R ERE

BHEEREERSMS  RIINEFEER
BEF FRURVERER  RMAHREM
HERTHLEBEEREERS FERMNAE
EEREREE BELAEBEREEBR - 25k
BEBEEO)ERLRERTER  (MMEHEE
MRS (it BEEREERE (v & AR
% (WEER®  RVittREEMRERE -
RAREHE HEREFREERBERAZEAR
#1086 AE T B2022F AR#160.08ETT
TF£32.1% °

For the year ended
31 December 2023

For the year ended
31 December 2022

HXF20235F12A31HILEE BZE2022F12A31 AL EE

Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage

[N 174 WA (=g g

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

AR%ETR A S RETT %

Smart community solutions %5 §E4 [& AR 5 = 11,080 10.2% 28,807 18.0%
Property sales and Y 2 S5 K 1 88 AR 75

assistance services 9,675 8.9% 25,974 16.3%

Community resources 1B E RIS ERT

value-added services 31,641 29.1% 30,893 19.2%

Clubhouse services = BT AR T% 2,338 2.2% 12,484 7.8%

Home decoration services £ /E R 25,131 23.1% 25,654 16.0%
Community retail and home 4t [& Z & M=K E R

services 28,780 26.5% 36,111 22.7%

108,645 100.0% 159,923 100.0%

Smart community solutions are those provided to residential and non-
residential property developers by us through customised software
meeting their specific requirements for property management. Revenue
from new contracts reduced year-on-year owing to the conditions of
the real estate industry during the year. For the year ended 31
December 2023, revenue from smart community solutions amounted to
RMB11.1 million, decreasing by RMB17.7 million compared to
RMB28.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Property sales and assistance services include primarily the provision of
property sales and assistance services to property developers and
owners, assisting property developers to market real estate properties
to owners and residents living in properties under our management.
Revenue from property services decreased as the size of market
transactions contracted owing to the conditions of the real estate
industry during the year, while our car park sales service was also
affected. For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from
property sales and assistance services amounted to RMB9.7 million,
decreasing by RMB16.3 million compared to RMB26.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Community resources value-added services include primarily our
provision of certain value-added services to owners, assisting owners to
lease public areas and public facilities to third parties. The Group
continued to tap into the value of community resources and enhanced
cooperation with strategic supplies to increase the rate of community
resource utilisation on an ongoing basis. For the year ended 31
December 2023, revenue from community resources value-added
services amounted to RMB31.6 million, increasing by RMBO.7 million
compared to RMB30.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Community retail and home service are mainly catered to the ever-
changing demands of owners and residents, as the Group provides
services such as cleaning, repair and maintenance and community
business to owners and residents through its subsidiary Hangzhou
Julin Lifestyle Services Co., Ltd.. For the year ended 31 December
2023, revenue from community retail and home service amounted to
RMB28.8 million, decreasing by RMB7.3 million compared to RMB36.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

BEEET R D

MEHERBHEREETERERWERERE K
X REVEHERBHERE BB EME
AEEERBEMEEMENEEIREFKIER
EVE ITFRAMETEREZE MEHERXS
HEGER  BERBEBRATE  RMKENE
HISHERB I B L - H22023%F12 431
BIEFE  MEHERBHERBBRAZEARE
9O.7TEEBIT  MEZE2022F12 A31 B ILFE A
R¥26.088 T NEARB163BETT °

MHEEREZERBEIECFERMAMEIRHED
ETEAERE  HhEZRHEAKEERAH
BRHERE=F ASEFEERLEERE
B WS EFNEE  THRALRE
BEHAX - #ZE2023F12A31BILFE (L&
EREEBREBRAZEAREII6EE T &&
F2022F12A31BH IEFEARMI09BE T
EMARBOTEE T -

HEZENREREEZEEEE REFTE
BB RMAR  AEERBWE QRN
EHAEERGERARAEEIREFRE®RE
B HIERE  HEREESRE - BlE2023F
12A31RIEFE L@ EEMKERBHAZE
ARB288F BT RE £2022F12H31H
IEFEARKBIBETTIRARKIIER

JT °
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Reporting Period, revenue of the Group amounted to
RMB955.6 million (2022: RMB958.6 million), representing a decrease of
0.3% as compared with that of 2022. Such decrease in revenue was
primarily attributable to the decrease in the Group’s business revenue
from the value-added services to non-property owners and community
resources value-added services.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by business
line during the years indicated, both in absolute amount and as a
percentage of total revenue:

B4 5 [l BA

L DN

RAREEE - AEEBRKRAARBISS.68
BL(2022F E - ARMO586H & L) * &
2022F T f#0.3% o EIRA TR T ERRAEE
EBIEEFIERSE LR EREERBEHT
FEFTER ©

TREIRARFEREZEBRE DO RARA
(AR REAWRANE D LIIR)

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A318LEE
2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’000 Percentage RMB’000 Percentage

ARETX 15kt % ARBFIT 1k %

Property management services ¥ % & 12 IR 7% 740,845 77.5% 609,696 63.6%
Value-added services to FEHE F I ERTS

non-property owners 106,090 11.1% 188,978 19.7%

Community resources value- @ &R
added services BER 108,645 11.4% 159,923 16.7%
Total st 955,580 100.0% 958,597 100.0%

Property management services remained the largest source of revenue
for the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from
property management services reached RMB740.8 million, representing
an increase of RMB131.1 million as compared with 2022. The growth
in revenue was attributable to the rapid growth in GFA under
management. With a deepened focus on its development strategy for
Zhejiang Province and Yangtze River Delta region, the Group was
committed to expanding basic services for third-party customers.

Cost of Sales

The cost of sales of the Group is primarily comprised of (i) staff costs;
(i) security, cleaning and greening costs; and (iii) utilities and
maintenance costs. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the cost of
sales of the Group was RMB729.5 million, representing an increase of
RMB42.3 million as compared with 2022. This was attributable to the
Group’s efforts to further increase its market share, service quality, and
business growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Based on the abovementioned factors, the gross profit of the Group
was RMB226.0 milion for the Reporting Period, representing a
decrease of RMB45.4 million as compared with RMB271.4 million in
2022. The gross profit margin decreased from 28.3% for 2022 to
23.7% in the Reporting Period.

The following table sets forth our gross profit margin by business
segment for the periods:

BEEET R D

EANREFZE

ERUERRA  AEEAREHENERAA
RiE026.0B BT » B2022F ARK2T145 8
T EARKIATETT - EFEBH2022F K
28.3% N EZARREHEIM23.7% °

TRFINBRMREREL D B DNEN X

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A31BLLEE

2023 2022 Change

20234 20224 23

Property management services ) 2 %5 18 AR 7% 23.4% 25.1% -1.7%
Value-added services to non-property owners — 3FE T IB{ERK 16.6% 35.3% -18.7%
Community resources value-added services & & R 1B AR 75 32.3% 32.1% +0.2%
Total gt 23.7% 28.3% -4.7%

The Group’s gross profit margin for 2023 decreased by 4.7%, affected
primarily by a decline in the domestic real estate industry environment,
the average property management fee rate for property management
service, geographical concentration of GFA under management and
cost control ability.

The gross profit margin of value-added services to non-property
owners decreased from 35.3% for the previous year to 16.6% for the
year under review, reflecting a decrease in the overall gross profit
margin of this segment owing to higher service cost incurred by us and
the operation of value-added services to non-property owners fell short
of expectations during the Reporting Period.

The gross profit margin of community resources value-added services
increased from 32.1% for the previous year to 32.3% for the year
under review. The gross profit margin of that segment remained at a
stable level as compared with that of the previous year.

REB2023FEEMET[EA7% - TEXBER
FHETRRE T EYEEERS KRN FY
MEEEREBEX HEEEBEMIESEHERKAE
HEENHTE -

FEERERBEN KRB L —FE35.3% [EF
ERFE16.6% RMBEHARMMNLES
B AR TS PR AR E R B D OB BE E M R TR LA K
FXETRERGNEL T NEH -

HERERIZERBENEH E—FEI2.1%E
MERFEI2.3% * Zab D EMREEFREF
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Selling and marketing expenses

The selling and marketing expenses of the Group decreased from
RMB15.9 million for 2022 to RMB13.8 million for the Reporting Period,
representing a decrease of 13.2%.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group decreased by RMB5.5
million from RMB136.0 million for 2022 to RMB130.5 million for the
Reporting Period, which was primarily attributable to the realignment of
our organisation framework and optimisation of staff allocation to
achieve cost reduction.

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables

The impairment losses on trade and other receivables changed from
RMB6.7 million for 2022 to RMB30.5 million for the Reporting Period.
The increase in impairment reflected primarily a higher amount of
impairment provision for the amount receivable from third parties made
by the Group for prudence purposes as compared with the
corresponding period of last year in view of changing credit risks owing
to the ongoing decline of the property industry during the year.

Other income

Other income decreased from RMB34.7 million for 2022 to RMB15.0
million for the Reporting Period. Such decrease was primarily due to
the income from guarantee contracts received by us is no longer
available.

Other net gains

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other net gains of
RMBO0.05 million (2022: RMB6.5 million). Such decrease was mainly
due to the effect of foreign exchange difference during the Reporting
Period.

Finance income-net

The finance income-net of the Group increased from RMB8.8 million
for 2022 to RMB21.8 million for the Reporting Period, representing an
increase of RMB13.0 million. Such an increase is primarily attributable
to the increase in interest charges for providing loans to third parties.

Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group decreased from RMB37.6
million for 2022 to RMB24.7 million for the Reporting Period,
representing a decrease of 34.3%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit for the year and earnings per share

Based on the reasons above, the net profit of the Group during the
Reporting Period was RMB62.5 million, representing a decrease of
50.0% as compared with RMB125.1 million in 2022. Net profit margin
was 6.5%, representing a decrease of 6.5% as compared with that of
2022.

The basic and diluted earnings per share of the Company was
RMBO0.065 per share.

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

As of 31 December 2023, trade and other receivables and
prepayments amounted to RMB1,150.3 million, representing an
increase of RMB393.6 million compared to RMB756.7 million as of 31
December 2022.

As of 31 December 2023, trade receivables amounted to RMB379.0
million, increasing by RMB33.9 million compared to RMB345.1 million
as of 31 December 2022. Other receivables amounted to RMB393.9
million, increasing by RMB25.1 million compared to RMB368.8 million
as of 31 December 2022, which was mainly due to business
expansion and growth in basic property services of the Group. Loan
receivables increased from RMB1.7 million in 2022 to RMB340.5 million
in 2023, which was mainly attributable to the loan receivables from
third parties of RMB315 million due at the end of 2024.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables include mainly amounts payable for commodities or
services in the ordinary course of business, including procurement of
external labour services, materials and energy. Other payables include
amounts received on behalf of other parties on a temporary basis,
deposits received and other expenses payables. As of 31 December
2023, the Group’s trade and other payables amounted to RMB430.7
million, increasing by 30.8% compared to RMB329.2 million as of 31
December 2022, which was primarily attributable to the Group’s
business expansion and the increase in service subcontracted to
independent third-party service providers following the growth of GFA
under management.

BEEET R D

FRAERERET

AR i [RE - AEBARRESBHEAOFEFE
BARKEG25A BT BW2022F M AR

12518 & 7T T F&50.0% ° 3% F| ) K 56.5%
2022 F T f£6.5% °

RRBNBREALESRNSERENAR
#0.0657T °

B REMEKRIELREARIE

HZE2023F12 318 - 5 M EAEURFIALA
LEMNZEAARE115035E T KEZE
202212 A31HMARK756.7TEELIBR A
R#¥393.6EETT -

H ZE2023F12A318 EHEKRABBARE
379.0E &7t BWE Z2022F12A31HHAR
B34 1 EETERAREI3OEE T - HittfE
WHRIBARI93.08 & T » A =20224F12
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group pursues a prudent treasury management policy, and actively
manages its liquidity position to cope with any demands for capital for
daily operation and future development. Also, the Group actively
reviews and manages its capital structure on a regular basis to
maintain the advantages and security of a strong capital position and
adjust the capital structure in response to changes in economic
conditions. The Group may also draw down bank loans to booster our
liquidity and to support our operations.

The Group’s principal sources of liquidity come from the income from
our business operations. The majority of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are denominated in RMB, which amounted to RMB229.7
million as at 31 December 2023, representing an increase of 9.5%
from the cash and cash equivalents of RMB209.9 million as of 31
December 2022.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio (current assets
divided by current liabilities) was 2.1 times (31 December 2022: 1.8
times).

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
RMB27.0 million (31 December 2022: RMB55.0 million) and the gearing
ratio (total borrowings divided by total equity) was 0.04 (31 December
2022: 0.07).

Foreign exchange risk

Substantially all of the Group’s revenues and expenditures are
denominated in RMB. As of 31 December 2023, the Group has not
entered into any hedging transaction. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
exchange rates and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any capital
commitments contracted for but not provided for.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

As of 31 December 2023, the Company, its subsidiaries and
associates did not pay for any financial guarantees, provide guarantees
or mortgage for loans, nor have other significant contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into an agreement for
the disposal of 19% equity interest in an associate, Shandong Shuifa
Yude City Services Company Limited (LIE/KEE B = m REER 2 T),
to Sichuan Yushi Property Management Company Limited (PU)I| & t4
¥E®AMAA), an independent third party, at a consideration of
RMBO0.58 million, and the Group had also completed the disposal of
30% equity interest in an associate, Shandong Shuifa Yude City
Services Company Limited, to Zhonghao Tianyuan Real Estate
Company Limited (F 2XJRE % AR A7), an independent third party
at a consideration of RMBO0.91 million. The transactions were
completed as of 31 December 2023.

During the Reporting Period, Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co.,
Ltd. (B E2WERS BB A7) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) transferred the 49% equity interest it held in Leqing
Chengde Urban Service Co., Ltd. (BB MK EHMRBERAR]) to
Leging Urban Development Group Co., Ltd. (&M HmEREEE AR
73 A|]), an independent third party, at a consideration of RMBO0.78
million. The transaction was completed on 31 December 2023.

On 24 August 2023, Hangzhou Junde Commercial Operations
Management Co., Ltd. (MM BEEmEEEEEFR AR (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into four
Underground Parking Space Use Rights Transfer Agreements with (i)
Hangzhou Desheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. (fi/EFEEXBRAR]) at a
consideration of RMB52,825,000, (i) Hangzhou Deyin Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (fN/EIRE AR /A R]) at a consideration of RMB21,450,000, (iii)
Hangzhou Kaishen Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (Tt sl ¥E
FBHRR /A F]) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexin China) at a
consideration of RMB17,160,000, and (iv) Hangzhou Konggang Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (M =EEZBRAR]) at a consideration of
RMB120,000,000, respectively (collectively, the “Acquisition of the
Target Parking Spaces”). The transactions contemplated under the
Underground Parking Space Use Rights Transfer Agreements were
approved at the extraordinary general meeting on 13 March 2024. As
at the date of this report, the transactions have not been completed.
For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 24 August 2023, 23 February 2024, and 13 March 2024.
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On 24 August 2023, Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd. (&
SEREWMERK AR AR) (Shengguan Property) (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement with Deging Moganshan Dexin Movie City Development Co.,
Ltd. (BEETILEEFZRMFAZEERAE) (Dexin Movie City) and
Deqging Moganshan Ruijing Real Estate Co., Ltd. (/& TR E %
B BR A7) (Deging Moganshan Ruijing), pursuant to which, Shengquan
Property has conditionally agreed to acquire and Dexin Movie City has
conditionally agreed to sell the 100% equity interest in Deqging
Moganshan Ruijing at a consideration of RMB90,000,000 (the “Equity
Acquisition”). The principal asset of Deqging Moganshan Ruijing is
Moganshan Yungu Dexin New Century Mingting Hotel (2T ILEAE(E
FITHFEAJE) located at No. 66 Sanmo Line, Moganshan Town,
Deqing County, Huzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Upon Equity
Acquisition completion, Deging Moganshan Ruijing will become an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its financial
results will be consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of
the Company. The transactions contemplated under the Equity Transfer
Agreement were approved at the extraordinary general meeting on 13
March 2024. As at the date of this report, the transactions have not
been completed.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

Reference is made to the Company’s circular dated 23 February 2024
in relation to the Acquisition of the Target Parking Spaces, and the
Equity Acquisition that operates a hotel at Huzhou City, Zhejiang
Province (the “Major and Connected Acquisitions”). As of the date
of this report, the Shareholders have approved the Major and
Connected Acquisitions and this transaction is subject to approval by
the shareholders of Dexin China. Upon completion, the Group will be
able to carry it its plans to diversity its business scope through (a) the
sale or leasing the parking spaces in Hangzhou, and (b) commencing
hotel management business and common area value-added services
through the Group’s self-owned assets and earning both management
income and hotel revenue in a well-known tourism district. This
initiative is in-line with one of the Group’s strategies to expand our
business scale and our market share. The completion of the Major and
Connected Acquisitions will however depend on Dexin China having
obtained the requisite approval. The Company will make further
announcements as and when appropriate to update the market on the
latest status of the Major and Connected Acquisitions.

In addition, the Group will also continue with its plans to expand its
business scale and increase in market share, and also invest in
information in information technologies and our internal management
systems as announced by the Company on 16 December 2022. Save
as disclosed in this report, the Group does not have any other future
plans for material investments or acquisition of capital assets as of the
date of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 March 2024, the Company held an extraordinary general
meeting at which the shareholders approved the transactions
contemplated under certain Underground Parking Space Use Rights
Transfer Agreements and the transactions contemplated under the
Equity Transfer Agreement. As of the date of this report, the
transactions have not yet been completed. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 24 August 2023 and 13 March
2024 and the circular of the Company dated 23 February 2024 for
further detalils.

On 13 March 2024, the Company held another extraordinary general
meeting at which the renewal of the Continuing Connected
Transactions was approved by the shareholders. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 15 December 2023 and the
circular of the Company dated 23 February 2024 for further details.

Save as disclosed herein, there are no significant events of the Group
subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 2,942 employees
(31 December 2022: 2,815 employees). Of which, the number of male
and female were 1,490 and 1,452 employees, accounting for 50.6%
and 49.4% respectively. The overall number of employees in the Group
remained stable.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the staff costs of the Group
were approximately BRMB301.3 million. The Group considered the
creation of a high-performance and learning organisation as an
important component of the Company’s long-term development
strategy.

In terms of building a high-performance organisation, the Group has
identified “streamlining organisation and strengthening synergy” as the
guiding principle of organisation development, and has pushed forward
the streamlining organisation to enhance its streamlined level. Based on
the model of strong headquarters construction, development of
streamlined city companies and effective implementation of project
clusters, the Group has enhanced the synergy between its functions
and projects, and efficiently resolved problems through concentrating
on the needs of the projects. Meanwhile, we take “human-based
efficiency control, high resilience and compatibility, multidimensional
empowerment and value incentive” as the core direction in talent
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building, and enhance the talent standard through talent selection,
reasonable control in quantity, and high resilience and compatibility in
quality. We adhere to three principles in terms of talent appointment,
selecting those with self-driven awareness, with ability of versatile
development, and taking operating and management objectives as
mission. Through the talent training and retention to stimulate value
creation, we put emphasis on the multidimensional empowerment and
value creation in addition to the basic management of the project, so
as to utilise the internal talent resources in an effective manner to
adapt to the position requirements and establish a “high value, high
performance” mechanism to drive high-quality talents.

In terms of building a learning organisation, through the construction of
career development channels, the Group enabled its employees to learn
and improve themselves with a direction of promoting both the overall
goals of the Company and personal abilities and career development,
achieving a win-win situation for both of our Group and our employees.
During the year, the Group carried out the “2023 Dexin Shengquan Full
Training Plan”, which focused on talent cultivation through key training
programs such as the “key talent echelon training”, “professional skills
improvement training for employees”, and “knowledge base
construction”. Our reserve talent echelon training was conducted
through the “721” learning model, which combines classroom learning,
student mutual assistance, and practical exercises to facilitate ability
improvement and action transformation. During the year, the Group
comprehensively improved the professional skills of our employees
through a dual model of “internal training” and “expatriate learning”. The
qualifications for enterprise independent vocational skill certification that
our two subsidiaries applied were being approved and the work to
improve occupational skill levels for employees such as property
managers was carried out comprehensively, thereby increasing the
proportion of senior talents of the Group. At the same time, in terms of
knowledge base construction, the quality of the knowledge base were
improved through internal precipitation and iteration. With the help of
“Dexin University ({5 K &)”, an online learning platform, the
dissemination of the knowledge base was expanded and learning
efficiency was improved. Moreover, the Group continued to implement
an occupational safety and health system by providing workplace
safety training to employees regularly under the GB/T45001-2020/
ISO4500: 2018 occupational health and safety management system
requirements, thereby enhancing their awareness of work safety.
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Senior Management
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Mr. Hu Yiping (88— ), aged 57, was appointed as our Director on
22 October 2020 and was re-designated as our executive Director and
appointed as the chairman of our Board on 31 December 2020. He is
responsible for the overall operational management of business
development and strategic planning of our Group. Mr. Hu served as
executive director of Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd. from
March 2004 to December 2004 and consecutively served as the
executive director, the chairman of the board and the director from
April 2013 to September 2020, primarily responsible for its major
business decisions.

Mr. Hu has over 25 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry
and property management. From January 1987 to August 1995,
Mr. Hu worked at Deging County Construction Surveying Design Studio
(=5 2L BERFZETFT), a PRC government authority responsible for
planning of urban and rural development and construction, where he
consecutively served as a technician for the survey and design office,
the assistant engineer and the engineer mainly responsible for design
work. He established Dexin Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. ({25 EEE
BBRAR]) (formerly known as Zhejiang Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd. (47
TEEBEEAR AT and Deqging County Real Estate Co., Ltd (125 &
FEEEAMR AT in September 1995 and has been the director and
chairman of the board of directors of since then, mainly responsible for
its overall development, investment strategies and major business
decisions. He has been an executive director and the chairman of the
board of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2019)
since August 2018, primarily responsible for its overall development,
investment strategies and major business decisions.

Mr. Hu graduated from Zhejiang School of Construction (#/T& EET
¥ E) in the PRC in January 1987 with a diploma’s degree in civil
engineering specialty, and from Zhejiang Yucai Workers’ University (77
LB A BT KE) in the PRC in June 1995 with an associate’s degree
in architecture. He obtained his bachelor’'s degree in financial
management (online course) from Tianjin University (KEZKE) in the
PRC in 2013 and obtained his executive master of business
administration (EMBA) from Xiamen University (BF9A£) in the PRC in
September 2018. He obtained a qualification for senior economist (&5
AW ACFERD) issued by Zhejiang Human Resources and Social Security
Department (31L& AN E IR ZIRIEEE) in December 2007. He also
obtained a qualification for engineer issued by Huzhou Personnel
Department (#1™ AZEB) in September 1996. Currently, Mr. Hu is the
president of Zhejiang Real Estate Industry Association (/T4 5 i 2 7

P

@) and the chairman of Huzhou Chamber of Commerce in Hangzhou

(RN T8N B ).
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Mr. Tang Junjie (JE{&{%), aged 49, was appointed as our Director on
22 October 2020 and was re-designated as our executive Director and
appointed as our president on 31 December 2020. He is responsible
for the formulation and implementation of the business strategy, annual
operation planning and financial planning of our Group. Mr. Tang joined
our Group as the chairman of the board and general manager of Dexin
Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd. in November 2018 where he
was primarily responsible for the formulation and implementation of the
business strategy, annual operation and financial planning.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Tang worked at Wenzhou Planning
Bureau of Zhejiang Province (#TL&RMNTEEE) (how known as
Wenzhou Natural Resources and Planning Bureau (&M 8 %A & R
#221/®)), where he served various positions from August 1996 to
January 2013, the deputy division chief of the municipal office,
primarily responsible for urban comprehensive transportation system,
urban planning and engineering approval, and the deputy
director-general of Longwan Branch, where he was mainly responsible
for detailed planning of the city and construction engineering approval.
From January 2013 to March 2018, he worked at Wenzhou High and
New Technology Industrial Development Zone (& /M T = #7 £l 2= % 59
#%[@), where he consecutively served as the deputy director and the
director of the land planning office at the Management Committee of
the Science and Technology Park of Wenzhou High-Tech Zone (8 /1T
SHERHEEEZ ), where he was mainly responsible for land use
planning and management and urban management; the division chief at
the Industrial Planning Division of Wenzhou High-Tech Zone (B M T &
FiEEZEMREE), where he was mainly responsible for strategic
planning of the management committee and investment and operation
of the high-tech industries; the director-general of the Planning and
Construction of Wenzhou South Zhejiang Science and Technology City
CEINTOME RN R 212 % ), where he was mainly responsible for
land development and utilization, spatial planning, implementation and
management of the construction projects. From March 2018 to
October 2020, he worked at Dexin Holdings Group Limited as
assistant to the chairman of the board, where he was mainly
responsible for strategic investment and operation of the property
management sector.
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Mr. Tang obtained his bachelor’'s degree in civil engineering and
architectural engineering from Zhejiang University (#T/T A in the PRC
in July 1996. He obtained his master’s degree in public administration
from Tongji University (& AXZ) in the PRC in November 2005.
Mr. Tang was awarded as the “2019 Top 100 China Property
Manager” (20197 B #3423 A 10058) in 2019, “2020 Top 50 China
Property Manager Election of the Yangtze River Delta Region (the
Fourth)” (2020 (/=) A B ¥ 4 A& K = A5038) in December
2020 and “Top 30 Property CEO of the Year in China” (R R4 F 2
CEO 305%) in December 2021. Mr. Tang obtained a qualification for
Engineer of Urban Planning (k43 8 TF2A0) issued by Wenzhou
Engineering Technician Position Second Review Committee (8 /) T
BRI ABBSE —fFEZL E2) in November 2001. Mr. Tang obtained
a qualification for Registered Urban Planner (s:ffk m#R 2I6T) issued by
MOHURD in January 2014. Mr. Tang is currently the director of China
Property Management Association, Vice President of Hangzhou
Property Management Association and Vice President of Wenzhou
Chamber of Commerce.

Ms. Zheng Peng (EBH§), aged 43, was appointed as the executive
director of the Company since 14 April 2023. She has been serving as
a director of Kaibang International Limited (a substantial shareholder of
the Company) since 6 February 2024. She was appointed as the chief
financial officer on 21 July 2022 and is responsible for the operation of
the Group’s financial management affairs, financial system construction
and overall supervision and management of financial management
work. Ms. Zheng has over 17 years of experience in accounting and
financial management industry. Ms. Zheng obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (S 1LEf (A E2)
in 2004.

She joined our Group in July 2017 as the finance manager of the
finance department in Hangzhou region and was mainly responsible for
the overall financial management of the Company in Hangzhou region.
Ms. Zheng also served as the deputy director at our financial
management centre (the “Centre”) in January 2020 and was mainly
responsible for the Group’s budget, accounts management and
financial information construction work and assisting the then chief
financial officer in taking charge of financial affairs operation. She was
promoted to be the deputy general manager of the Centre in March
2022 and was primarily responsible for the overall management of the
Group’s general financial affairs. She was further promoted to be the
general manager of the Centre in July 2022 and was responsible for
the overall supervision and management of the Group’s financial
matters.
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Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Zheng served as an accountant in
the Huangshan State Taxation Bureau (EIIBEZRF&F) from April
2005 to August 2013. She also served as financial director of
Hangzhou Chengnan Real Estate Property Company (#7113 & & i &
)3 N\ 7)) from September 2013 to June 2017.

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (EK#) , aged 72, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 14 April 2023.
Dr. Wong has 29 years of experience in accounting. Dr. Wong is the
principal consultant of KND Associates CPA Limited since January
2018. He is an independent non-executive director of APAC Resources
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 1104) since July 2004, Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited
(@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 757) since January 2008, China Merchants Land Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
978) since June 2012, China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
6966) since September 2017, China Medical & HealthCare Group
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 383) since December 2018, Dexin China Holdings
Company Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2019) since January 2019, served as an
independent non-executive director of Capital Finance Holdings Limited
(@ company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 8239) from January 2018 to January 2022 and China VAST
Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (a company previously
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6166,
which was privatized and delisted from the Stock Exchange since
December 2022) from August 2014 to December 2022.

Notwithstanding Dr. Wong’s engagement as an independent
non-executive director of seven companies including the Company
listed on the Stock Exchange, Dr. Wong confirmed that he would
devote sufficient time to act as our independent non-executive Director
based on the following:

° Dr. Wong is neither a full time member of the above-named
companies nor involved in the day-to-day operations or
management of such companies. As such, he has no executive
and management responsibility therein;
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° Dr. Wong is primarily required to attend relevant board meetings,
committee meetings and shareholders’ meetings of the
above-named listed companies. He has maintained a high
attendance rate for board meetings, committee meetings and
shareholders’ meetings for such listed companies during the
respective latest financial period since his respective appointment
dates;

° Dr. Wong’s role as principal consultant of KND Associates CPA
Limited is on a part-time basis and he is not involved in the daily
management of KND Associates CPA Limited;

° with his background and experience, Dr. Wong is fully aware of
the responsibilities and expected time involvements for
independent non-executive directors of listed companies. He has
not found difficulties in devoting to, and managing his time with,
numerous companies and he is confident that with his experience
in being responsible for several roles concurrently, he will be able
to discharge his duties to our Company;

° none of the above-named listed companies that he has directorship
with has questioned or complained about his time devoted to
such companies; and

o Dr. Wong'’s role in our Group is non-executive in nature and he
will not be involved in the daily management of our Group’s
business, thus his engagement as our independent non-executive
Director will not require his full-time participation.

Based on the foregoing, our Directors do not have reasons to believe
that the various positions currently held by Dr. Wong will result in
Dr. Wong not having sufficient time to act as our independent
non-executive Director or not properly discharging his fiduciary duties
as a director of our Company.

Dr. Wong obtained his bachelor’s degree in commerce from a joint
program held by Shenzhen University (%¥IIX2) in Shenzhen, the PRC
and Clayton University in Missouri, the United States of America in May
1990. He also obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business management
(online course) and a master’'s degree in business administration (online
course) from Nottingham Trent University in Nottingham, the United
Kingdom in December 2005 and December 2007, respectively. He also
obtained his doctoral degree in philosophy in business administration
from the Bulacan State University, Republic of the Philippines in
December 2010.
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Dr. Wong was elected or admitted and has remained as member of a
number of institutions, including being a fellow member of The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong since January 1999, a fellow member of The
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Ireland since August 2000, a
fellow member of Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute since
February 2002, a member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
since May 2002, a fellow member of The Chartered Governance
Institute since September 2002, a fellow member of Association of
International Accountants since September 2005 and a member of the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute since November 2012.

Mr. Rui Meng (#8f), aged 56, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 21 June 2021 and is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Group. He has been a Professor in Accounting since January
2012 and a Parkland Chair in Finance (B8l B¢ mEHFEHIX) since
March 2019 at China Europe International Business School (9 B B %
T E6T). From October 2015 to October 2019, he served as the
Zhongkun Group Chair in Finance (/ # % B & & 22 E 2(1%) at China
Europe International Business School.

In addition to the working experience above, Mr. Rui served or has
been serving as independent director or independent non-executive
director of the following listed companies:
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REAE 5657 N2021FE6 A1 HESEA
BYFHNTES FZAERAEEMNELE

EEREBIER - KBE2012F1 ARREEF
BREIR T B g st 248 X 5201943 A
REAEREE S B HEHIX - R2015510
AZE2019F 108 - MR BB T 20T (T
FIEE SR BEHFEHE -

B ERTEBEESN  REEBEXRENUT L
MARBYEEIBELIFNTEETR

Principal business, place of listing and

Period of service stock code

BB 75 & 58

Name of company

ATER

TERE EhRRG A

Position(s)

B

From June 2015 to COSCO Shipping Energy

June 2021 Transportation Co., Ltd.
(PERFEERROBRAR)
code: 600026)
2015F6A % FRBERFRD
202146 A BRAT BHEX B (E7

RE/R 2 A

From April 2017 to Shang Gong Group Co., Ltd.

May 2023 (ETRE(RE)RHER
NG
201744 S £2023%5 A LTHE (KE)RHERAH

15 : 600843)

Since August 2017 China Education Group
Holdings Limited (Bl &
SEZRAERRAA)

TEHEEEERERA

code: 839)
B2017468 A
5% : 839)

An energy company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1138)
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock

—FRRB TR (DR 1138) B LE
' R : 600026) L TIHY

A machinery company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600843)

An education company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock

—FRBRAER ETMAHE#E (AR

Independent director and a member
of the audit committee

BUEENEFNZEENE

Independent director

—FRLEBBFRBAEMHBRAR (Fr BUES

Independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit
committee

BUFMITEERBHZECTR
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Principal business, place of listing and
stock code

TERE LhRRG A

Period of service

G35 & 58

Position(s)

B

Name of company

AREHR

Since May 2018 Independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit

committee

BUFRTESREANZRELR

Country Garden Services
Holdings Company Limited
(BEERGZERERRA)

EEERKERERAF

A property management company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 6098)

—FRBRMER MO nEER AR (KRG
5% - 6098)

B201855 7 #2

Since May 2019 A real estate company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 106)

— R E R ET R R E
DA (R - 106)

Independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit
committee

BUFRTESRENZRELR

Landsea Green Group Co, Ltd.
AFgeREERAR)

B2019F5 A # P eEBERAH

From June 2021 to
20 August 2021

Sichuan Languang Justbon Independent non-executive director

Services Group Co., Ltd

A property management company listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2606).

Delisted on 20 August 2021

B202156 A #£% M EXZEREEERN  —FRBEIMERETHDEESE BAFNITES
202184201 BRAR N (R HRSE : 2606)

R202148 B20 B EUH it

EERNEERE =R LT RANFLIE
HTESF  BRETESARER  RETIA
T HERARKRECBILIIFNTES:

Notwithstanding Mr. Rui’'s engagement as an independent
non-executive director of three companies listed on the Stock
Exchange, as advised and confirmed by Mr. Rui, he has sufficient time

to act as an independent non-executive Director based on the
following:

(i) Other than serving as Professor in Accounting at China Europe
International Business School, Mr. Rui has not taken up any full
time employment in any capacity except serving as an
independent non-executive director in the above listed companies.
With his background and experience, Mr. Rui is fully aware of the
responsibilities and expected time involvements for serving as
independent non-executive director. He has not found difficulties
in devoting and managing his time to these companies and he is
confident that with his experience in being responsible for multiple
roles, he will be able to discharge his duties to our Company;
and

(i) Mr. Rui’s role in our Group is non-executive in nature and he will
not be involved in the daily management of our Group’s business,
thus his engagement as an independent non-executive Director
will not require his full-time participation.
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Based on the foregoing, our Directors do not have reasons to believe
that the various positions currently held by Mr. Rui will result in Mr. Rui
not having sufficient time to act as an independent non-executive
Director or not properly discharging his fiduciary duties as a director of
our Company.

Mr. Rui obtained his bachelor’s degree in international economics from
the Institute of International Relations in Beijing (7 BXBEX T & 22657%) in
the PRC in July 1990. He received a master of science in economics
from Oklahoma State University in the United States as well as a
master of business administration degree and a doctor of philosophy
degree in business administration from the University of Houston in the
United States in May 1993, December 1996 and August 1997,
respectively. Mr. Rui has been professional designated as a Certified
Financial Analyst by the Association for Investment Management and
Research since September 2000 and a Financial Risk Manager by the
Global Association of Risk Professionals since April 2010.

Mr. Yang Xi (#5ER), aged 43, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 21 June 2021 and is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and management of
our Group.

From February 2008 to January 2015, he worked at Beijing Yisheng
Leju Information Services Ltd. (It RIGELEEZ B IR AR AF]), a real
estate online to offline service provider and a company listed on New
York Stock Exchange (stock code: LEJU), where he served as
editor-in-chief mainly responsible for publication editing of the websites.
From January 2015 to February 2019, he worked at Shanghai Weimi
Business Information Consulting Co., Ltd. (/8K E % {E B A a R
‘A 7d]), a company primarily engaged in business information consulting,
where he served as the chief operating officer mainly responsible for
operation and management of the company. Since February 2019, he
has been working at Beijing Zhongwuyanxie Information Technology
Co., Ltd. (tRHWHRHEESREEBRAF), a company primarily
engaged in information technology, where he served as the general
manager mainly responsible for management of the company. And
serve as an external supervisor of Roiserv Lifestyle Services Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 2146) since 2 March 2023.
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Mr. Yang obtained his bachelor’'s degree of arts from Beijing
Technology and Business University (1t T AZ) in the PRC in June
2001. Mr. Yang has been serving as the deputy secretary general of
China Property Management Institute (P Bl %E E#H <€) since July
2019. Mr. Yang was a supervisor and shareholder of Beijing Tianlun
Real Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd. (It R K fmFEHhE L L AR A F]) whose
business license was revoked on 30 December 2008. He confirmed
that, to the best of his knowledge and belief, as of the date of this
annual report, no claims had been made against him and he was not
aware of any threatened or potential claims made against him and
there are no outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the
revocation of the above company.

Mr. Liu Yibing (2] £), aged 46, was appointed as our executive
vice president in June 2015 and is primarily responsible for the
operation and management of the investment development center and
enterprise business department of our Group and overseeing our
operations in Zhejiang district. He joined our Group as the manager of
the marketing department of Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co.,
Ltd. in March 2006, primarily responsible for management of the
marketing department. Mr. Liu has over 14 years of experience in
property management.

In addition, Mr. Liu served in several subsidiaries of our Group. From
March 2006 to June 2015, he consecutively served as manager of the
marketing department, regional manager of Hangzhou district, manager
and vice general manager of Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co.,
Ltd. and as its executive deputy general manager since June 2015.
Since June 2015, he also serves as the director and general manager
of Zhejiang Shengquan Security Services Co., Ltd. (/T B 2R L R
BBRAF]). Besides, Mr. Liu has been serving as the person in charge
of several branch offices of Shengquan Property since October 2013,
where he is mainly responsible for the overall operation. Mr. Liu
obtained his associate’s degree in tourism management from West
Anhui University (Bt 782 Fz) in the PRC in July 1999.
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Mr. Chen Xin (BREF), aged 41, was appointed as an assistant to the
president in July 2018 and is mainly responsible for the strategic
development and brand building and promotion of the listed group. He
assists the president in managing the operation and quality control
centre, Business development center * information technology centre,
and oversees the operation of the environmental company, Engineering
company - Life service company * Commercial operating company,
Youai Technology and Dexiao Energy Company. He joined our Group
in October 2013 as the planning manager, general manager of the third
business department and assistant to general manager of Dexin
Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd., primarily responsible for the
project named “Shengquan Youjia” (BXZE{EZX), for building smart
community platform and expanding the community business
cooperation.

Prior to joining our Group, from July 2005 to April 2010, he worked at
Hangzhou Dukuai Newsreader Media Co., Ltd. (1N #BIR:E R A(ELEH
R~ |]) (formally known as Hangzhou Newsreader Advertising Media
Co., Ltd. MMEBRAESEEBRAF]) and Hangzhou Newsreader
E-Commerce Co., Ltd. (FNEBRAEZEFEEERAF), a company
principally engaged in commercial operation, where he served as an
account manager mainly responsible for planning and organization of
reader activities. From May 2010 to March 2011, he worked at
Zhejiang Transportation Travel Media Co., Ltd. (3T LBk EEEH AR
‘A a]), a company principally engaged in media events planning, where
he served as a planning manager of the planning department mainly
responsible for advertisement design and marketing plan. From
November 2011 to September 2013, he worked at Hangzhou
HONYAR Electrical Co., Ltd. (Tt & /EE 22 H R A Al), an architectural
electric products manufacturing enterprise, where he served as the
manager of the public relations department mainly responsible for brand
building, corporate culture promotion and media relationship
maintenance.

Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor’'s degree in arts from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University (£ 238 A ) in the PRC in July 2005.
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Ms. Zhao Lixiang (#HEEi#l), aged 45, was appointed as our chief
human resources officer in June 2013 and is primarily responsible for
the management of human resources and administration affairs,
construction of enterprise culture and development of human resources
service system of our Group.

Ms. Zhao has over 21 years of experience in human resources and
administration management. Prior to joining our Group, from January
2000 to December 2003, she worked at Huasheng Construction Group
Co., Ltd. (FEFHZFZREBEHBR A A, a company principally engaged in
construction, where she served as the manager of the oversea
business department mainly responsible for daily management of
human resources. From January 2004 to July 2006, she worked at
Zhejiang Jinke Daily Chemical Co., Ltd. (/T & &I B REA R A7),
where she served as human resources manager mainly responsible for
improvement of human resources policies and procedures and other
daily affairs of human resources. From July 2006 to June 2010, she
worked at Shaoxing Shangyu Jinjin Hotel Co., Ltd. (A& FE &K
JBJE B BR/AF]), where she served as the head of general manager
office mainly responsible for the daily affairs of the general manager
office. From July 2010 to September 2011, she served as the manager
of administration and human resources department at Zhejiang Geshan
Pinyue Travel Co., Ltd. (M IFIL@IEIREER A A]) (formally known as
Zhejiang Geshan Pinyue Hotel Co., Ltd. (ML #IL @I AHEEARR A
A])), where she was mainly responsible for the daily management of
human resources and administration affairs. From October 2011 to July
2012 and from August 2012 to June 2013, she successively served as
the human resources and administration director at Zhejiang Shimao
Junlan Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (It ZEZEFBEEEIE AR A F)
and Zhejiang Denghao Hotel Co., Ltd. (L& = BE/E B R A7),
respectively, where she was mainly responsible for the daily
management of human resources and administration affairs.

Ms. Zhao obtained her bachelor’'s degree in business management
from Nankai University (F8FA2) in the PRC through distance learning
in July 2018. She obtained the human resources management division
(Level 1) (BEANEIREIEAEB —#R) issued by the Occupational Skill
Testing Authority of the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security (A B R4 & (REZBEE 2 L8 E L) in November 2015.

Senior Management
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Mr. Wu Zhexiao (R &), aged 37, joined the Group in March 2021
as the general manager of the investment development centre, who is
mainly responsible for the overall work of the investment development
centre, including market strategic planning, capital market operation as
well as the development of investment and financing business, and
served as the general manager of the capital investment centre in July
2022.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu was the manager of the investment
and development department of Dehua Tubao New Decoration Material
Co., Ltd. (fRERBERMFTMAMBRRAF]) from July 2010 to August
2012, responsible for the development of quality projects and the
development of corporate capital operation capability. He was the
secretary of the board of directors of Zhejiang Hongwei Supply Chain
Group Co., Ltd. (M TR EHREHEEEKR KD FRAF]) from September
2012 to February 2017, mainly responsible for formulating corporate
development strategic planning and business plan and completing the
preparation work for listing. He joined Dexin Shengquan Property
Services Co., Ltd. in March 2017 and served as the secretary of the
board of directors of Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd. He
served as the general manager of the strategic investment centre of
Dexin Holdings Group from December 2018 to February 2021. In
October 2023, he served as the chairman of Hangzhou Sier
Technology Co., LTD. Mr. Wu obtained the qualification certificate of
director secretary of Shenzhen Stock Exchange in December 2013, the
qualification certificate of director secretary of Shanghai Stock
Exchange in 2018, and the qualification certificate of Chinese legal
profession in 2019.

Mr. Wu received his Bachelor’s degree in Finance from Jiangxi Normal
University (L Fakm & AE£) in 2010.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or senior management
members (i) has any relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company, (i) hold any other positions with the Company or other
members of the Group; or (i) held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group has three main business lines, namely (i) property
management services, (i) value-added services to non-property owners
and (i) community resources value-added services, forming an
integrated service offering to its customers that cover the entire value
chain of property management.

Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2023 is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out on pages 106 to 179 of this annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

To the knowledge of the Directors, there is no arrangement that a
shareholder of the Company has waived or agreed to waive any
dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023, details of the changes in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group for the Year are set out in
the Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RESERVES

Details of movement in reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders are set out
in Note 32 of the consolidated financial statements on page 170 of this
annual report. Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out in
the Chairman’s Statement, as well as the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 7 to 10 and pages 11 to 26, respectively, of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD” in this annual report, the Group has no
significant events after the end of the financial year ended
31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that high-quality employees who value its corporate
culture are essential elements to promote the Group’s sustainable
growth. The Group intends to attract and retain skilled and talented
employees from reputable universities of PRC through various
initiatives, including its creative trainee programs, competitive
compensation packages and effective incentive system.

For details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument
policy of the Group, please refer to the section headed “Directors’
Report — Employees and Remuneration Policy”.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as
long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s
businesses. We reinforce business partnerships with suppliers by
conducting ongoing communication in a proactive and effective
manner.

For further details regarding our major suppliers, please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

Customers’ satisfaction with our services and products has a profound
effect on our profitability. Our dedicated sales team is in constant
communication with our customers and potential customers to uncover
and create customer needs and help customers make informed
decisions. ldentification of customers’ pain points alongside grasping
the market trend are critical for the Group to timely adjust the Group’s
operating strategies to match the market requirements. For details
regarding the Group’s major customers, please refer to the sections
headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Principal risks and uncertainties which the Group faces include (i) its
future growth may not materialize as planned; (i) uncertainty as to
securing new or renewing the existing property management service
agreements on favourable terms, or at all; (i) uncertainty related to
acquisitions which may not be successful and the Group may face
difficulties in integrating acquired operations with its existing operations;
(iv) no control over a majority of revenue generate from connected
persons of the Company; (v) risks related to development in the
government policies and regulations regarding the PRC property
management services; and (vi) risks related to the increasing raw
material prices and labor costs.

The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s financial risk is mainly due to foreign exchange rate risk. As
the majority of the Group’s operations are conducted in the PRC and
are denominated in Renminbi. Foreign currency transactions mainly
comprise the receipt of listing proceeds and payment of professional
fees (denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars). As
at 31 December 2023, the major non-BMB assets were cash and cash
equivalents denominated in Hong Kong dollars with a corresponding
amount of RMB1.59 million and cash and cash equivalents
denominated in United States dollars with a corresponding amount of
RMBO0.02 million. Fluctuations in the exchange rate of Renminbi against
foreign currencies may affect the Group’s results of operations. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy and
manages its foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring movements in
foreign exchange rates. The Group will make foreign exchange hedging
arrangements as and when necessary.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

BE - LWENEONAAE LHES

Number of Total
Shares Highest Price Lowest Price Consideration
Repurchased Per Share Paid Per Share Paid Paid

Fi 3% 1 A% {4
Trading Month XS5 A1#H A g = BhEasE BEREE AXZHEKE
(HK$) (HKS) (HKS)
(#&3T) (7#&3T) (#&7T)
April 48 8,253,000 2.94 2.74 24,021,700
May 5H 12,877,000 2.87 2.69 36,375,660
July 7H 12,323,000 2.70 2.60 32,807,140
Total A& 33,453,000 93,204,500

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange since 15 July 2021 (the “Listing Date”) and during the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has repurchased a total
of 33,453,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of HK$93,204,500. As at the date of this report, all the
Shares repurchased in 2023 have been cancelled. The repurchase was
effected for the enhancement of shareholder value in the long term.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have
any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22
of the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming 2023 AGM will be held on Wednesday, 29 May 2024
and its notice and all other relevant documents will be published and
despatched to the Shareholders in April 2024.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@) For determining the entitlement of the
shareholders to attend and vote at the 2023
AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 24 May 2024 to Wednesday, 29 May 2024, both days
inclusive and during which no share transfer will be effected, for
the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2023 AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2023 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on Thursday, 23 May 2024.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

It is the Group’s corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment, and the Group
strives to minimize its environmental impact and comply with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations. The Group has
implemented reasonable measures in the operation of its businesses to
comply with all applicable requirements. Given the nature of the
Group’s operations, it is believed that the Group is not subject to
material environmental liability risk or compliance costs.

The measures the Group took to ensure compliance with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations include: (i) formulating
and improving management measures and operational guidelines for
energy conservation, emission reduction and waste management; and
(i) actively adopting environmentally friendly equipment and designs.

The Group had not received any material fines or penalties associated
with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

The 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group
shall be published separately and will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.dexinfuwu.com).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, nor restrictions against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange since the Listing Date. The net proceeds amounted to
HK$763.5 milion. Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 16 December 2022 and the supplemental
announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2023 (the
“Announcements”). The prospectus of the Company dated 29 June
2021 originally indicated that approximately 65.0% of the net proceeds
would be used for the expansion of business scale and increase in
market share through multiple channels, and the net proceeds that
would be applied for this purpose amounted to approximately
HK$496.0 million. The unutilised portion of the net proceeds originally
intended for such purpose in the amount of HK$426.6 million is not
required for immediate use by the Group at the moment. Having
considered the commercial benefits to the Group in deploying the
unutilised net proceeds as a loan secured by the Charged Assets (the
“Charged Assets”), which comprise car parking spaces, located at
Dexin Airport City, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC, which have an appraised market value of approximately
RMB630 million as valued by the property valuer using the market
approach which compares recent market evidence of similar properties
located in the neighbourhood area of the Charged Assets; this allows
the Group to improve the efficiency and the effectiveness of the
Group’s temporarily idle funds with better investment returns. Moreover,
the expected timetable for utilisation of all net proceeds utilised has
been extended to December 2024 or earlier. For further information,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
16 December 2022 and 22 March 2023.
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The table below sets out the allocation of the net proceeds before the TFT&RHFIRZZEANE MR RIEFESE
Announcements, the change in use and the revised position after FREE K E®REFTEHOBEFIRN
change in use:

Planned use Revised
of net allocation of Utilised net Unutilised net
proceeds as unutilised net Unutilised net proceeds proceeds Expected
disclosed  proceeds at  proceeds at during the as of timetable of the
in the 16 December 1 January Reporting 31 December net proceeds
Prospectus 2022 2023 Period 2023 to be utilised

2022
BRER 12R168 20235 EE2023F
FikEFER  HERBAR 1A18 RREZA 12A318
EBHEZiE R/REFEZ HADERE EBRRE FEAM® BAMRRE
BE  EEIPE REEH REEH REFE FENEORER
HKD million HKD million HKD million HKD million ~ HKD million
BRET BRET BRET BRAT BRET

1. Expand our business scale and improve 496.0 83.7 83.7 0.0 83.7 By December 2024
market share through multiple channels 202412 A2 Al
BRAMNEBRERRASRERD
5 1 8

2. Diversify and expand our service 76.4 7.1 7.1 71 0.0 By December 2024
offerings 202412 R 2 Al
Ll RERE M0 R Em

3. Invest in information technologies and 76.4 70.2 6.9 6.4 60.5 By December 2024
our internal management system(s) to 202412 8 2 A
improve service quality and customer
experience

RERESRMNRMONBERRE
DR ERBEENEFER

4. Improve human resource management 38.3 12.7 12.7 49 7.8 By December 2024
and enhance corporate culture 202412 8 2 A
TEANERERURALE UL

5. Working capital and other general 76.4 7.5 4.3 4.3 0.0 By December 2024
corporate purposes 2024512 B 7 i
EEESREM—RARAH

6. Provide loans to borrowers N/A 342.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 By December 2024
[ RAER TER 2024F12R 23

763.5 524.1 174.7 22.7 152.0
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Having considered (i) the commercial benefits to the Group in
deploying the unutilised net proceeds as a loan (which is collateralised)
will allow the Group to improve the efficiency and the effectiveness of
the Group’s temporarily idle funds with better investment returns; (ii) the
fact that the value of the Charged Assets far exceeds the principal
value of the Loan; (iii) taking into account the due diligence and risk
assessment conducted on the Borrower; and (iv) other factors
mentioned in the Announcements, the Board is of the view that such
proposed change in the use of net proceeds is fair and reasonable
and in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

The Board also confirms that enhanced internal control measures will
be put into place to ensure that the Group’s cash flow position will be
closely monitored, and that there are no material changes in the nature
of the business of the Company as set out in the Prospectus.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman)

Mr. Tang Junjie

Ms. Zhu Xiaoli (resigned on 14 April 2023)
Ms. Zheng Peng (appointed on 14 April 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Jia Shenghua (resigned on 14 April 2023)

Mr. Rui Meng

Mr. Yang Xi

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (appointed on 14 April 2023)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the related party transactions as disclosed in note 15 and
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2023 or at any time during the year.

TERMS OF OFFICE AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years, which may be terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contract with any member of the Group that is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation given
by the Remuneration Committee.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

None of the Directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no other payments have been
made or are payable by the Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates
had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, the
controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”), namely Mr. Hu Yiping and Shengfu International
Limited, entered into the deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company on 22 June 2021 (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, the Controlling Shareholders
have undertaken, among others, not to compete with the business of
the Group, and details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in
the sub-section headed “Deed of Non-competition” in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation
to the Board in respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the
Deed of Non- competition (the “Undertakings”) during the Reporting
Period. Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders, the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed
the same as part of the annual review process. In determining whether
the Controlling Shareholder had fully complied with the Undertakings in
the Reporting Period for the annual assessment, the independent non-
executive Directors noted that: (a) the Controlling Shareholders
declared that they had fully complied with the Undertakings in the
Reporting Period; (b) no new competing business was reported by the
Controlling Shareholders during the Reporting Period; and (c) there was
no particular situation rendering the full compliance of the Undertakings
being questionable. In view of the above, the independent non-
executive Directors confirmed that, as far as they are aware, the
Controlling Shareholders had complied with all the Undertakings in the
Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company had not
entered into any equity-linked agreements.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceedings during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and saved as disclosed
below, the Group had not made any loans or provided any guarantee
for loans, directly or indirectly, to the senior management of the
Company, the Directors, the controlling shareholders or their respective
associates.
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ADVANCE TO AN ENTITY PROVIDED BY THE

GROUP

As of 31 December 2023, a loan to a third party with an aggregate
principal amount of approximately RMB315,000,000, is outstanding.

Disclosure that is required under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules is set

out below:

FEER—-ZHERMR®RG

HZE2023F 128310 » A—H/E=ZHERHAHK
SHFEL) B AN RE315,000,000 TR E FR i K E
B FMABAIEI3 20K R EMHELT ¢

Balance outstanding

Background of the
loan advanced

Borrower

Lender

Interest Rate
Repayment terms

The charged assets

As of 31 December 2023
RMB315,000,000

For producing extra income with the
Group’s idle cash. For further details,
please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 16 December 2022 and
22 March 2023.

Hangzhou Ruiyang Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd.* (fi/N¥6 5 1t /e 58
EIEHPR A A, a business partner of the
Company, and an Independent Third Party.
It is principally engaged in supply chain
management, and it is held as to 95% by
Deqing Kaisheng Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd* (BBEIACREEABRAA)
and 5% by Wei Qiang (%£38); Degqing
Kaisheng Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.
Is 100% held by Lai Haiping (#8/&5)

Shanghai Xuquan Trading Co., Ltd.* (\£/&
WEaEEEABRAA), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

5%-8% per annum during the year
Repayable by December 2024

Car parking spaces with an aggregated
appraised value of approximately RMB630

million (as appraised by a property valuer
prior to the signing of the loan agreement)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of Directors
or chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be
(i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (i) entered in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (i) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Interest in Shares of the Company

Directors’ Report
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EFRRRTRAEREQTRE
HENZBE Iz 6 - R RIEE
aE B A R ¢

MR2023F12A31 8 ' ARRIEBHE=ITHA
BERARRAREEIBEEZE(TERLBHFR
HAE B EXVED) RIRR 1D - AERE IR (0 sk B &
FHEA()VREESFRBEREXVEET RS
EEMEARRRBIATMERS AR (BT
R 5 R H B0 8 B IS & {EskA8 A
BHRZIAR) RV RIEESRAEEGFH
352{& AR AR R RIFE /& 7 B9 25 RO
B k(i) iRIE LT AR BIMT SR CIFTE_ EMEITA
ERRTEFRHNRESTR ([BESA]) B
MEARARNB RBRFTOER KRBT

() NAEATIBOER

Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest interested™ interest
EEEsE HmME BAEEZNRBEE BHERE L
Mr. Hu Yiping (“Mr. Hu”) Interest in controlled corporation® 529,202,279 (L) 56.46%

H— L ([8RSE&E D) RELAEERD
Interest of spouse®

FoiBiEas @

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

2 Shengfu International is owned as to 91.6% by Mr. Hu and 8.4% by Ms. Wei
Peifen (“Ms. Wei”), the spouse of Mr. Hu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu and
Ms. Wei are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Shengfu
International.

O FERILIRTZALIRZERONGTE -

@ BERBRHBLEEERN.6%KAHEENE
BERMIS 2t ([R&E L)) HHEB8.4% - RIFEH
REBEGD  AEERRZEIWEANEEE
BHEANRNETEEERS
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= =r TR 4
= % = S %
(i) Interest in associated corporation of the (i) NEATEBHEBE#ER
Company
Number of Approximate
Name of associated shares percentage of
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest interested interest
HAEEDDN
EEZE HEEEZE A3 BRHHBE" #SMOEZESEL
Mr. Hu Shengfu International Beneficial owner 458 (L) 91.6%
k& S B EnEAA
Note: Mz -
(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the associated (1) FEILIRRZALTREBEEZERGNITE -
corporation.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company has any interests and/or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be (i) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or (i) entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or (jii) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
as at 31 December 2023, the following corporations/persons (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) had interests of
5% or more in the issued Shares of the Company according to the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO:

Directors’ Report
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FEIRRR RS RHERER G 2 Ex

B st

BAAREMNESRTZSITHRABNAM  ®
2023F 1283818 ' M TA L (RRRIES L&
BITHABBRINRARREEITROERR
EES RGN E336 16 B A ZIETEN
Bz 5% IA R

Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of
Name of corporation/person Nature of interest interested™ interest®
HHEDD
ZE ANTEE e BRHHBEY #BOEZE S
Shengfu International Limited® Beneficial owner 529,202,279 (L) 56.46%
BEEHEERAA EHEAA
Mr. Hu® Interested in controlled 529,202,279 (L) 56.46%
corporation
it = REEE R
Ms. Wei@ Interest of spouse 529,202,279 (L) 56.46%
Biat® Pic (55 7 2
Kaibang International Limited Beneficial owner 129,629,630 (L) 13.83%
HLHEBRER QT EHEAA
HuaAn Fund-Huamei Investment QDII* Other® 70,558,000 (L) 7.53%
(FELESL — FEHIKEQDI), HuaAn Fund-Nacity
Property Service QDII* (& E & -FE¥ZQDII),
HuaAn Fund-Ruiyang QDII* (£ % &4 -5 QDII)
and other asset management plans represented
by HuaAn Fund Management Co., Ltd.*
(EZESEBEABRAAF)
ELHS - EHEREQDI ELXES -FHBYE Ha®
QDI #LZE& —InBEQDIRELZE TR
BERABIRKHNEMEEERTEO
HONG KONG MEI LUN INT’L CO., LIMITED Beneficial owner 53,418,803 (L) 5.7%
(“HK Mei Lun”)®
BEEEREBRARAG([HEEER)DW BEHEAA
Ms. Shen Yuehua (“Ms. Shen”)® Beneficial owner 53,418,803 (L) 5.7%
MAEZ L ([RETE])™ EHEAA
Mr. Jin Liang (“Mr. Jin”)® Beneficial owner 53,418,803 (L) 5.7%
eRAEE(TREEN® ERlAA
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Notes:
(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

) Shengfu International is owned as to 91.6% by Mr. Hu and 8.4% by Ms. Wei, the
spouse of Mr. Hu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu and Ms. Wei are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Shengfu International.

@) HuaAn Fund-Huamei Investment QDII* ((EZE & —#F#3%EQDII), HuaAn Fund-Nacity
Property Service QDII* (% E$ — &R QDIl) and HuaAn Fund-Ruiyang QDII* (Z
L H & —Im#5QDI) single asset management plans held 31,045,000, 6,523,000 and
32,990,000 shares of the Company, respectively. Their respective trustors are
Zhejiang Huamei Investment Co., Ltd.* (#MIZEHIEEFR A R]), Nacity Property
Service Group Co., Ltd.* (FI#B¥) 3 IR 75 &= B AR 19 A BR A &) and Hangzhou Ruiyang
Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.* (fiM 5L fESEE B AR A 7).

(4) HK Mei Lun is owned as to approximately 93.9% by Ms. Shen and 6.1% by Mr. Jin,
the spouse of Ms. Shen. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Shen and Mr. Jin are deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by HK Mei Lun.

5) Calculated based on the total number of issued Shares of 937,308,000 Shares as at
31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at 31 December 2023, no person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) had registered an interest or a short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 June 2021, the Company adopted the share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”), which falls within the ambit of, and is
subject to, the requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize and acknowledge
the contributions that the eligible participants had or may have made to
the Group. The Directors consider that the Share Option Scheme, with
its broad basis of participation, will enable the Group to reward
employees, Directors and other selected participants for their
contributions to the Group. It is expected that the Share Option
Scheme will () motivate the eligible participants to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and
retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group.
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The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue on the day on which trading of the Shares
commences on the Stock Exchange, being 100,000,000 Shares, but
excluding any Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option. The scheme limit of 10,000,000 Shares
represents 10.67% of the total issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this annual report, all of which may be available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercise and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue for the time being.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from 15 July 2021 and the options granted have a 10-year exercise
period. The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion subject to
compliance with the requirements under any applicable laws,
regulations or rules, save that no option may be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted.

The subscription price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will
be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of () the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average official closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the
grant of an option.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme nor were there outstanding
share options under the Share Option Scheme during the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this annual report.

A summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme has been set out
in the section headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV of the
Prospectus.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue derived from its top
five customers accounted for 14.7% of the Group’s total revenue and
the revenue amount from the Group’s single largest customer, Dexin
China Group, accounted for 11.9% of the Group’s total revenue.

Other than Dexin China Group, or their joint ventures or associates, the
Group’s customers during the year ended 31 December 2023 were all
independent third parties.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers. During the year ended 31
December 2023, none of the Group’s major customers was also one
of the Group’s five largest suppliers.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchases from its top five
suppliers accounted for 23.6% of the Group’s total purchase cost and
the purchases amount from the Group’s single largest supplier,
accounted for 8.8% of the Group’s total purchases.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Group’s major
suppliers was also one of the Group’s five largest customers and all of
the Group’s major suppliers were independent third parties.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders who,
to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had 2,942 employees (31
December 2022: 2,815 employees). Of which, the number of male and
female were 1,490 and 1,452 employees, accounting for 50.6% and
49.4% respectively. The overall number of employees in the Group
remained stable.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the staff costs of the Group
were approximately RMB301.3 million. The Group considered the
creation of a high-performance and learning organisation as an
important component of the Company’s long-term development
strategy.

In terms of building a high-performance organisation, the Group has
identified “streamlining organisation and strengthening synergy” as the
guiding principle of organisation development, and has pushed forward
the streamlining organisation to enhance its streamlined level. Based on
the model of strong headquarters construction, development of
streamlined city companies and effective implementation of project
clusters, the Group has enhanced the synergy between its functions
and projects, and efficiently resolved problems through concentrating
on the needs of the projects. Meanwhile, we take “human-based
efficiency control, high resilience and compatibility, multidimensional
empowerment and value incentive” as the core direction in talent
building, and enhance the talent standard through talent selection,
reasonable control in quantity, and high resilience and compatibility in
quality. We adhere to three principles in terms of talent appointment,
selecting those with self-driven awareness, with ability of versatile
development, and taking operating and management objectives as
mission. Through the talent training and retention to stimulate value
creation, we put emphasis on the multidimensional empowerment and
value creation in addition to the basic management of the project, so
as to utilise the internal talent resources in an effective manner to
adapt to the position requirements and establish a “high value, high
performance” mechanism to drive high-quality talents.
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In terms of building a learning organisation, through the construction of
career development channels, the Group enabled its employees to learn
and improve themselves with a direction of promoting both the overall
goals of the Company and personal abilities and career development,
achieving a win-win situation for both of our Group and our employees.
During the year, the Group carried out the “2023 Dexin Shengquan
Training Plan”, which focused on talent cultivation through key training
programs such as the “key talent echelon training”, “professional skills
improvement training for employees”, and “knowledge base
construction”. Our reserve talent echelon training was conducted
through the “721” learning model, which combines classroom learning,
student mutual assistance, and practical exercises to facilitate ability
improvement and action transformation. During the year, the Group
comprehensively improved the professional skills of our employees
through a dual model of “internal training” and “expatriate learning”. The
qualifications for enterprise independent vocational skill certification that
our two subsidiaries applied were being approved and the work to
improve occupational skill levels for employees such as property
managers was carried out comprehensively, thereby increasing the
proportion of senior talents of the Group. At the same time, in terms of
knowledge base construction, the quality of the knowledge base were
improved through internal precipitation and iteration. With the help of
“Dexin University (215 X £8)”, an online learning platform, the
dissemination of the knowledge base was expanded and learning
efficiency was improved. Moreover, the Group continued to implement
an occupational safety and health system by providing workplace
safety training to employees regularly under the GB/T45001-2020/
ISO 4500: 2018 occupational health and safety management system
requirements, thereby enhancing their awareness of work safety.

The Group adopts a formal and transparent remuneration policy to
determine the remuneration packages of Directors and employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries as the Group believes that the
successful implementation of its growth and business strategies rests
on a team of experienced, motivated and well-trained managers and
employees at all levels.

° The Remuneration Committee is mandated to formulate the
Group’s remuneration policy for the Board’s approval, and to
make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s annual
salary adjustment, the annual performance bonus and share
award.
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° The objective of remunerating Directors is to ensure that there is
an appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain
experienced people of high calibre to oversee the Group’s
business and development. Their remuneration is reviewed
annually with reference to companies of comparable business or
scale, and any changes are subject to Shareholders’ approval.

. Quality and committed staff are valuable assets contributing to the
Group’s success. In terms of talent training, the Group will further
enhance its employee training program with internal and external
resources. The employee training programs primarily cover key
areas in the Group’s business operations, which provide
continuous training to its existing employees at different levels to
specialise and strengthen their skill sets.

° In determining the remuneration and compensation packages of
the Directors and senior management, the Group will take into
account salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and performance
of the Group.

° In general, the Group determines employee salaries based on each
employee’s qualification, position and seniority. As required by
relevant regulations, the Group is subject to social insurance
contribution plans or other pension schemes prescribed by the
local governments and is required to pay on behalf of its
employees, a monthly social insurance funds covering pension
fund, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and unemployment insurance, and the housing
provident fund, or to contribute regularly to mandatory provident
fund schemes on behalf of its employees.

The Company enters into labor contracts with all of its employees. The
Company offers its employees competitive remuneration packages that
include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based
payments and year-end bonuses.

To incentivise its employees and promote the long-term growth of the
Company, the Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the sections headed “Director’s report — Share
Option Scheme”.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not
experience any significant labour disputes or any difficulty in recruiting
employees.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the pension obligations of the Company are set out in Note
15 of the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules requires there to be an open market in
the securities for which listing is sought and a sufficient public float of
an issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means that
at least 25% of the issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times
be held by the public. Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions and Connected Transactions” and related disclosures in
this report under “Management Discussion and Analysis” and Note 36
to the consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report,
no contract of significance was entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2023 or subsisted at
the end of the year and no contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a Controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2023 or subsisted at the end of the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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The related party transactions set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements include related party transactions disclosed under
accounting standards and related party transactions which also
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party transactions in
respect of the remuneration of Directors and chief executives of the
Company constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, these transactions are
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors believe the other related party transactions set out in Note 36
to the consolidated financial statements do not fall within the definition
of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected transactions”
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (as the case may be). The
Company confirmed that it was in compliance with the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2023 or a waiver from such provisions has been obtained
from the Stock Exchange.

The Group had entered into various transactions which constituted
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021 (where all such
continuing connected transactions required to be disclosed herein are
conducted in compliance with the Listing Rules) as follows:

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(subject to Reporting, Annual Review and
Announcement Requirements)

1. Property Sales Assistance Services

On 3 May 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our subsidiaries) entered into a master property sales assistance
services agreement (the “Master Property Sales Assistance
Services Agreement”) with Dexin China (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries), pursuant to which the Group agreed to,
through referral of potential buyers, provide sales assistance
services to Dexin Group in respect of the serviced apartments
developed or held by Dexin Group (the “Property Sales
Assistance Services”).
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The initial term of the Master Property Sales Assistance Services
Agreement commenced from the Listing Date to 31 December
2023, which may be renewed as the parties may mutually agree,
subject to compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Property Sales Assistance
Services under the Master Property Sales Assistance Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2023 is RMBO
million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Property Sales
Assistance Services Agreement for year ended 31 December
2023 is RMB18.1 million. Therefore, the amount received in
respect of the Property Sales Assistance Services under the
Master Property Sales Assistance Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2023 has not exceeded the annual cap for
the year ended 31 December 2023 under the Master Property
Sales Assistance Services Agreement.

Dexin China Commercial Consulting and Related
Services

On 3 May 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of our
subsidiaries) entered into a master commercial consulting services
agreement (the “Master Dexin China Commercial Consulting
and Related Services Agreement”) with Dexin China (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to which our Group
agreed to provide Dexin Group with commercial consulting
services, including but not limited to provision of market research
and analysis, tenant sourcing and management and opening
preparation services for commercial complexes developed and
owned by Dexin Group (the “Dexin China Commercial
Consulting and Related Services”).
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The initial term of the Master Dexin China Commercial Consulting
and Related Services Agreement commenced from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Dexin China Commercial
Consulting and Related Services under the Master Dexin China
Commercial Consulting and Related Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is RMBO million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin China Commercial
Consulting and Related Services Agreement as of 31 December
2023 is RMBG6.8 million. Therefore, the amount received in
respect of the Dexin China Commercial Consulting and Related
Services under the Master Dexin China Commercial Consulting
and Related Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 has not exceeded the annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2023 under the Master Dexin China
Commercial Consulting and Related Services Agreement.

Continuing Connected Transactions subject to the
Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement, Circular
and Independent Shareholders’ Approval
Requirements

1(a). Dexin China Property Management and Related
Services

On 3 May 2021, Shengquan Property (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) entered into a master property management and
related services agreement (the “Master Dexin China Property
Management and Related Services Agreement”) with Dexin
China (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to
which Shengquan Property agreed to provide Dexin Group with
property management and related services, including but not
limited to (i) preliminary planning and design consultancy services;
(i) management services for the sales offices and the display
units; (i) (@) house inspection; (b) pre-delivery cleaning services;
(c) pre-delivery preparation; and (d) repair and maintenance
services for house and auxiliary facilities after delivery; and (iv)
property management services (such as cleaning and security
services) for the properties developed and owned by Dexin
Group, including but not limited to the unsold residential property
units, car parking lots, office buildings and commercial properties
(the “Dexin China Property Management and Related
Services”).
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1(b).

The initial term of the Master Dexin China Property Management
and Related Services Agreement commenced from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Dexin China Property
Management and Related Services under the Master Dexin China
Property Management and Related Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is RMB57.6 million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin China Property
Management and Related Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 is RMB108.4 million. Therefore, the amount
received in respect of the Dexin China Property Management and
Related Services under the Master Dexin China Property
Management and Related Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 has not exceeded the annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2023 under the Master Dexin China
Property Management and Related Services Agreement.

Mr. Hu Property Management and Related Services

On 28 June 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our subsidiaries) entered into a master property management and
related services agreement (the “Master Mr. Hu Property
Management and Related Services Agreement”) with Mr. Hu
(for and on behalf of the associates of Mr. Hu (excluding Dexin
Group but including the associates of Dexin China) (“Mr. Hu’s
Companies”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
Mr. Hu’'s Companies with property management and related
services, including but not limited to () preliminary planning and
design consultancy services; (i) management services for the
sales offices and the display units; (i) (a) house inspection; (b)
pre- delivery cleaning services; (c) pre-delivery preparation; and (d)
repair and maintenance services for house and auxiliary facilities
after delivery; and (iv) property management services (such as
cleaning and security services) for the properties developed and
owned by Mr. Hu’s Companies, including but not limited to the
unsold residential property units, car parking lots, office buildings
and commercial properties (the “Mr. Hu Property Management
and Related Services”).
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2(a).

The initial term of the Master Mr. Hu Property Management and
Related Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date to
31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties may
mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Mr. Hu Property
Management and Related Services under the Master Mr. Hu
Property Management and Related Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is RMB33.0 million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Mr. Hu Property
Management and Related Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 is RMB47.2 million. Therefore, the amount
received in respect of the Mr. Hu Property Management and
Related Services under the Master Mr. Hu Property Management
and Related Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 has not exceeded the annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2023 under the Master Mr. Hu Property
Management and Related Services Agreement.

Dexin China Smart Community Solution Services

On 3 May 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our other subsidiaries) entered into a master smart community
solutions services agreement (the “Master Dexin China Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement”) with Dexin China
(for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to which our
Group agreed to provide Dexin Group with smart community
solutions with hardware and software that integrate, among other
things, visitor management, traffic control, carpark management,
security control, energy conservation and fire control capabilities
for properties developed by Dexin Group (the “Dexin China
Smart Community Solutions Services”).

The initial term of the Master Dexin China Smart Community
Solutions Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties
may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

2(a).
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2(b).

The amount received in respect of the Dexin China Smart
Community Solutions Services under the Master Dexin China
Smart Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is RMB5.9 million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin China Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 is RMB20.6 million. Therefore, the amount
received in respect of the Dexin China Smart Community
Solutions Services under the Master Dexin China Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 has not exceeded the annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2023 under the Master Dexin China Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement.

Mr. Hu Smart Community Solution Services

On 23 June 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our other subsidiaries) entered into a master smart community
solutions services agreement (the “Master Mr. Hu Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement”) with Mr. Hu (for
and on behalf of the associates of Mr. Hu (excluding Dexin Group
but including the associates of Dexin China), pursuant to which
our Group agreed to provide Mr. Hu's Companies with smart
community solutions with hardware and software that integrate,
among other things, visitor management, traffic control, carpark

management, security control, energy conservation and fire
control capabilities for properties developed by Mr. Hu’s
Companies (the “Mr. Hu Smart Community Solutions
Services”).

The initial term of the Master Mr. Hu Smart Community Solutions
Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date to
31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties may
mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.
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The amount received in respect of the Mr. Hu Smart Community
Solutions Services under the Master Mr. Hu Smart Community
Solutions Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December
20283 is RMB3.5 million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Mr. Hu Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 is RMB28.0 million. Therefore, the amount
received in respect of the Mr. Hu Smart Community Solutions
Services under the Master Mr. Hu Smart Community Solutions
Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2023 has
not exceeded the annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2023 wunder the Master Mr. Hu Smart Community Solutions
Services Agreement.

Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment Operational
Services

On 283 June 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our subsidiaries) entered into a master serviced apartment
operational agreement (the “Master Dexin Holdings Serviced
Apartment Operational Services Agreement’) with Dexin
Holdings (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to
which our Group agreed to provide Dexin Holdings and its
subsidiaries (“Dexin Holdings Group”) with serviced apartment
operational services, including but not limited to formulation of
marketing strategy, provision of interior decoration designing
services and formulation of standardized management procedures
for serviced apartments developed by Dexin Holdings Group (the
“Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment Operational Services”).

The initial term of the Master Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment
Operational Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties
may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.
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The amount received in respect of the Dexin Holdings Serviced
Apartment Operational Services under the Master Dexin Holdings
Serviced Apartment Operational Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is RMBO million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin Holdings Serviced
Apartment Operational Services Agreement as of 31 December
2023 is RMB23.1 million. Therefore, the amount received in
respect of the Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment Operational
Services under the Master Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment
Operational Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2023 has not exceeded the annual cap for the year ended
31 December 2023 under the Master Dexin Holdings Serviced
Apartment Operational Services Agreement.

Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services

On 9 June 2022, the Company entered into the Parking Space
Leasing and Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement (the
“Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement”) with Dexin China, pursuant to which,
the Group will provide exclusive parking spaces sales and leasing
agency services in respect of the target parking spaces to Dexin
China Group (the “Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency
Services”).

The initial term of the Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement commenced from the date on
which it is considered and approved at the extraordinary general
meeting dated 11 October 2022 to 31 December 2024, which
may be renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.
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The amount received in respect of the Parking Space Leasing and
Sales Agency Services under the Parking Space Leasing and
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 income was RMB8.3 million. In addition, the
Company paid deposits of RMB250 million to Dexin China for the
parking spaces sales and leasing agency during the year.

The deposits charged for the parking spaces sales and leasing
agency of the Company regarding the annual cap in respect of
the Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2022,
2023 and year ending 31 December 2024 is RMB250 million,
RMB300 million and RMB300 million, respectively. Therefore, the
deposit amount paid in respect of the Parking Space Leasing and
Sales Agency Services under the Parking Space Leasing and
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 has not exceeded the annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2023 under the Parking Space Leasing and
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement. For details of the
Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 9 June 2022 and
the circular of the Company dated 16 September 2022.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the CCT Agreements, and confirmed
the transactions under the CCT Agreements have been entered into:

1

@

3)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
on normal commercial terms or better; and
according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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The independent non-executive Directors further confirmed that the
annual caps in respect of the continuing connected transactions under
the CCT Agreements are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole, and that the transactions
were conducted in accordance with the pricing policies disclosed in the
Prospectus.

Confirmations from the Company’s Independent
Auditor

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Group has
engaged its auditor (the “Auditor”) to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
conducted by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
confirmed that nothing has come to its attention in relation to the
above continuing connected transactions with regard to the matters set
out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the Reporting Period of the Company are set
out in “Management Discussion and Analysis” and Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to the
Articles of Association.

Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions that
may be brought against the Directors.

VIEWS OF THE BOARD AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE ON THE QUALIFIED OPINION

The Board and the Audit Committee noted that the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023 were subject to the qualified opinion (the “Qualified Opinion”) of
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the independent auditor of the
Company (the “Independent Auditor”), on the basis as set out in the
section headed “Basis for Qualified Opinion” in the independent
auditor’'s report (the “Independent Auditor’s Report”) under the
section “Extract of the Independent Auditor’'s Report”.

The Board and the Audit Committee did not express different views
from that of the Independent Auditor on the basis of the qualifications
as the unresolved qualifications for the year ended 31 December
2023, which might have consequential effect on the Group’s financial
performance for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the related
disclosure thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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The Board will seek to promptly resolve the unresolved qualifications
through proactively monitoring the status of Dexin China’s independent
shareholders approving the Transactions. In this connection, the
management of Dexin China has informed our Company that
preparations for Dexin China’s shareholders meeting in connection with
the Transactions are ongoing and Dexin China will endeavour to hold
the meeting as soon as possible. The Company also notes Dexin
China’s recent announcement dated 21 March 2024 on legal actions
commenced against it, but notes that the hearing is not scheduled
until June 2024. The Company will provide updates to the shareholders
where there are material developments on the Transactions, and where
appropriate, will take robust efforts to protect the rights of the
Company to recover the amounts due from Dexin China. However,
currently the management was not in a position to give a concrete
view on the outcome of the shareholders’ meeting of Dexin China in
respect of the Transactions, which would be subject to the vote of the
independent shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting of Dexin China
to be convened.

Details of the modifications

Due to the deterioration in the business operations of Dexin China
Holdings Company Limited (“Dexin China”) and its subsidiaries (“Dexin
China Group”) during the year 2023 and the winding-up petition
against Dexin China was filed on 20 March 2024, the Auditor had
raised concern about the recoverability of the trade receivables and
deposit paid with Dexin China.

The Company considered the trade receivables and the deposit paid
can be recovered as the Company had entered into agreements with
Dexin China to acquire certain car parking spaces and equity interest in
a company (the “Acquisitions”). Upon completion of the Acquisitions,
substantial trade receivables and deposit paid will be repaid or offset.
However, the Auditor is in the view that the completion of the
Acquisitions is uncertain as they are subject to the approval from Dexin
China’s independent shareholders. Therefore, the Auditor requested for
supporting evidence, such as latest financial information of Dexin China
Group, to proof the ability of Dexin China Group to repay the trade
receivables and deposit paid as if the Acquisitions are terminated.
Since Dexin China is a listed company, the Company is unable to
obtain latest financial information from Dexin China. Due to the
limitations in providing sufficient evidence to satisfy the Auditor as to
the recoverability of the trade receivables and deposit paid, the audit
opinion was qualified in this respect.
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Management’s position and audit committee’s view
towards the modifications

In respect of the Deposits, on the basis of () the public disclosures
made by Dexin China and its subsidiary (the “Dexin China Group”)
relating to the Transactions, (i) as set out in the circular of the
Company dated 23 February 2024, the outstanding deposit (the
“Deposit”) in the amount of RMB250 million will be refunded to the
Group and directly applied towards the acquisition of the car parking
spaces and the hotel, which are assets already owned by Dexin China
and (i) ongoing dialogue with Dexin China’s management, which has
notified the Company that the preparations for Dexin China’s
shareholders meeting (the “EGM”) are ongoing with the EGM expected
to be held as soon as it obtains clearance from the Stock Exchange
and in compliance with the relevant requirements in the Listing Rules
and Articles of Association of the Dexin China, the management is of
the view that the Deposits paid would remain recoverable and currently
no impairment would be required.

In respect of the trade and other receivables due from Dexin China
Group, in view of () the action plans that the Company proposes to
implement as set out below, and (i) the ongoing business relationship
between Dexin China Group and the Group and trade payables
continue to be settled by Dexin China Group, the Audit Committee and
the Board take the view that the receivables due from Dexin China as
at 31 December 2023 would remain recoverable albeit delayed, and
therefore the impact of the potential possibility of not recoverable
would not impinge upon the truthfulness and fairess of the accounting
treatment of the receivables.

Save for the above, the Board’s and the Audit Committee’s view are
not inconsistent with that expressed by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited.
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The Company’s action plans and timeline to address
the qualified opinion

In view of the qualified opinion mentioned above, the Company has
formulated the action plans as follows:

With respect to the Deposit

The Company notes that the difficulty arising from the refund of the
Deposits arose due to Dexin China not being able to hold its EGM and
is not related to an unwilingness of the part of Dexin China to
implement the Transactions and is also an isolated event. On this, and
in addition to ongoing dialogue with Dexin China Group, the Company
will also closely monitor the progress of Dexin China’s publication of
the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
status of its litigation as mentioned in its announcement dated 28
March 2024 and take further actions after seeking advice from the
Company’s legal advisors.

With respect to the long outstanding trade and other
receivables

In respect of the unresolved Audit Issue for the long outstanding trade
and other receivables due from Dexin China Group, the Company’s
has formulated the following plans of action, which are currently being
discussed between its legal and financial advisors and also its Board:

1. Follow up on payment status: As at the date of this document,
the Company has been following up with on the long-overdue
trade receivables. The Company understands from the majority of
the customers, including those that belong to the Dexin China
Group, that they are in the progress of making payment or
seeking in the internal approval for making payment. The Group
and the management of Dexin China are currently negotiating
settlement proposal on the long outstanding trade and other
receivables and aiming to settle the substantial amount of the
unsettled trade receivables due by 31 December 2024.

Subject to the payment status, the Company will consider taking
further actions as detailed below.
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To enter into mediation with Dexin China, and where
warranted, commence legal actions to recover the long
outstanding trade receivables: In respect of the trade
receivables that is past due over one year and subject to the
specific circumstances of the customers or the project involved,
the Company has engaged legal advisors to study the chance of
successfully bringing legal actions and recover the long
outstanding trade receivables. Where after negotiation with
customers it becomes apparent that customers would not settle
the long outstanding trade receivables within a reasonable time
frame, and where no settlement plan can be provided, the
Company will commence mediation proceedings through the
engagement of an independent mediator to come to a mutually
agreed solution for the receivables. The reason for the Company
seeking mediation as its primary method of dispute resolution is
because the property management industry, major customer of
the Group are its key business assets, and it is not to the
interest of the Company to commence actions of an adversarial
nature unless necessary. Where mediation does not result in a
solution acceptable to the Company, the Group would, after
seeking legal advice on the how to seek maximum recovery of
the said receivables, commence litigation and/or arbitration
proceedings against its customers.

Demand for agreed settlement proposal with security over
assets: The Group will demand its customers with long
outstanding trade receivables to come up with a settlement
proposal for long outstanding payables, and an undertaking for a
period of no shorter than three years that such customers will
settle all outstanding trade and other payable in stages, and will
seek the advice of its financial and legal advisors, and approved
by its independent non-executive Directors, on the adoption and
approval of the settlement proposal. Depending on the
negotiation process and the amount that is due, the Company
may also require security over assets to be given by to back up
the agreed settlement proposal, subject to other accounting, tax,
legal and Listing Rules compliance considerations.
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Shorten credit period: Independently with the actions that will
be taken for 1. to 3. above, in the next one to three months, the
Company will (in particular with Dexin China Group) revise its
payment terms and credit period. In particular, the Company
intends to shorten the credit period and request for partial or
advanced payment in full by Dexin China Group before providing
the Group’s services. If the Dexin China Group is not agreeable
with the proposed revision to payment terms and credit period,
the Company will, subject to the Group complying with its own
contractual obligations under the relevant contracts, consider
downsizing the business relationship with Dexin China Group
including but not limited to suspending provision of service, so as
to prevent further increase in outstanding trade and other
receivables.

Monitor credit risk of Dexin China Group: The Company’s
management is aware of litigation proceedings commenced
against Dexin China Group and is closely monitoring how these
proceedings would affect the debt settlement ability of Dexin
China Group as a whole. On the other hand, the Company is
also aware of the large asset base of Dexin China, and its ability
to the sell its assets to satisfy debts should the need arise.
Therefore, on an ongoing basis from the date of this submission,
the Company will actively keep track with the legal proceedings
involved by Dexin China and check the credit worthiness of Dexin
China Group. The Company has also sent customers with poor
payment history reminder notices on payment. In the next three to
six months. The Company will continue to monitor the Group’s
exposure to the recoverability risk on an ongoing basis and
periodically reviews settlement patterns from customers with poor
payment history and the put pressure on these customers to pay
back the receivables due to the Group.

Set up debt collection unit: Since 2024, the Company has set
up a debt collection unit to enforce its internal policies for debt
collection and avoid bad debts and formulate a payment
collection schedule with the specific customers taking into
account of their financial circumstances.

Alternative settlement: In the event that the above measures
cannot be implemented effectively to collect the outstanding
amount due, the Company will negotiate with Dexin China Group
on payment collection schedule and alternative settlement
proposals to resolve the amounts due in an amicable way; and
where needed, consult legal advisors and take legal actions in
accordance with the plans detailed above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as well as
preserving the interests of the shareholders as a whole. The Company
has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code”) as contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as
its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 79 to 98 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Company and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

AUDITOR

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26 April
2022, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) has resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 25 April 2022. The Group has appointed
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited (“Zhonghui Anda”) as the new auditor of
the Company with effect from 26 April 2022, to hold office until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company. The
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been
audited by Zhonghui Anda.

CHANGES IN THE BOARD AND THE
DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Ms. Zheng Peng has been serving as a director of Kaibang
International Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company) since
6 February 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as of the date of this report, the Directors
confirm that no information is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

The Group did not have any future plans for material investments as of
the date of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance.
During the Reporting Period, the Group had complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in all material aspects and have obtained all
applicable material licenses, approvals and permits from relevant
regulatory authorities. During the year ended 31 December 2023, there
was no material breach of, or non-compliance, with applicable laws
and regulations by the Group.

OTHER INFORMATION

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual
report form part of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Hu Yiping
Chairman

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

EXREHRKEE

BEAFHRAY  AEELETARREAK
B&tEl -

BrERERER
AEBMEEBRFBENNETEROBBEREK
ERRE  UEREHE R EHE - ~5E
BEMEERNFEETHAEMBERZRERT
EREEEERERGEEANEZNR -
HERFFAI % o RELE2023F 12 A31H IEF
E AfXEHEREERKXTETHBEZEK
ER o

EXERAFEREAMBE  MEXMENAE
Rt BRAREH — 8D

EREEGM
EY:3
HH—F

g



Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintaining and strengthening high
standards of corporate governance by focusing on principles of
integrity, accountability, transparency, independence, responsibility and
fairness, in order to safeguard and protect the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability
system. The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code as the basis of the Company’s
corporate governance practices, and the Corporate Governance Code
has been applicable to the Company with effect from the Listing Date.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has complied
with all applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code. The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of
the Company for the purpose of complying with the Code and
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.

CORPORATE CULTURE OF THE COMPANY

The management of the Company assumes a leadership role in
establishing, promoting and continuously strengthening the desired
corporate culture of the Company. The Company strives to create a
positive and progressive culture based on its mission and values.

During 2023, the Company continued to strengthen its corporate
culture by focusing on the following.

Mission:1. To build a platform for our employees and create value for
our shareholders; 2. To take responsibility for society and be a
confidant in the lives of our customers;

Values:1. Three righteousnesses: being positive, following the right path,
and being authentic; 2. Three sharings: to create, to share, and to
undertake together.

The management of the Company establishes and promotes a
corporate culture, meanwhile, expects and requires all employees to
reinforce the corporate culture. All new employees are required to
participate in induction and training programmes to enable them to
better understand our corporate culture, corporate structure and
policies. The Company will continue to improve and enhance its
corporate culture so that it is embedded in all aspects of the Group
and aligned with the mission, corporate values and strategies the
Company.
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The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
mechanism during the year. It is considered that the mechanism is
effective in ensuring that the Board is provided with independent views
and opinions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board takes on the responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Company and is charged with promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has
general powers for the management and conduct of the Company’s
business. The day-to-day operations and management are delegated by
the Board to the management of the Company, who will implement the
strategy and direction as determined by the Board.

The Board will review the structure and composition of the Board from
time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance practices of the Company. The
Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Company has also
adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the objective and
approach to achieve diversity of the Board.

The Board currently comprises six Directors, including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping

(Chairman of the Board, Executive Director and Chairman)
Mr. Tang Junjie (Executive Director and President)
Ms. Zheng Peng (Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert
Mr. Rui Meng
Mr. Yang Xi

Ms. Zheng Peng and Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert had obtained the
legal advice referred to Rule 3.09D on 18 April 2023, and each of
them has confirmed he/she understood his/her obligations as a director
of a listed issuer.
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No Board member has other relationship with the other Board

members of the Company.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The chairman, Mr. Hu Yiping,
focuses on the overall management of the investment strategies and
business development of the Group. The executive Director and
president, Mr. Tang Junjie is responsible for day-to-day business and
management of the Group. Such division of responsibilities helps to
reinforce their independence and to ensure a balance of power and
authority.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company on 21 June 2021 and 14 April 2023, respectively and
each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into their respective letters of appointment.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind)
payable to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB3.9 million.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management is
determined with reference to salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and performance
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors, which meets the requirement of
the Listing Rules that the number of independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the Board and should not
be less than three.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be
independent.

The Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty,
former company secretary of the Company, resigned as company
secretary of the Company on 8 May 2023, and Ms. Lin Sio Ngo was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on the same
date with effect from 8 May 2023. The primary personnel at the
Company with whom Ms. Lin Sio Ngo, a manager of SWCS Corporate
Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited (a company secretarial service
provider), has been contacting in respect of company secretarial
matters is Ms. Zheng Peng, the executive director and chief financial
officer of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. So and Ms. Lin have
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

On the first occasion of each Director’s appointment, the Company has
arranged a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and business and
is fully aware of the director’s responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and other relevant statutory requirements. The Company will arrange
suitable training for all Directors in order to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as part of their continuous professional
development.

According to the training records provided by the Directors, the
summary of training received for the year ended 31 December 2023 is
as follows:

HZE20283F 1231 HIEFE » i TR+
BETTOMSNERMBEBEEEI - F& L
MRANEI20EHIRTE o

EEEREREZER  ARFCTHEZAEA
BiEd > MEREHAQRFANELREKHES
BT BERDABFEEN EWRAREME
MEEERBETHEE -ARABARERES
RHREEI - NBERREHEMBERE
EREFBEEXERRN D -

RIFEFREMNITIILE - RNEZE20235F12 A
STHLEFERZMNEIHELT

Name of Directors EEls Training°t

&l
Mr. Hu Yiping H—FEE v
Mr. Tang Junjie BEEAfLE v
Ms. Zheng Peng B IS 22 + v
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert FoxkEBE LT v
Mr. Rui Meng SEEpie v
Mr. Yang Xi SRR A v
Note: M

Attendance of trainings on the Listing Rules, internal control compliance, ESG and reading
of materials on the Listing Rules, anti-corruption and other related issues.

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code requires that board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of the majority of the Directors, either
in person or through electronic means of communications.

The Directors expects to convene at least four regular Board meetings

in each financial year at approximately quarterly intervals in accordance
with code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, 7 Board meetings and 1
general meeting were held by the Company. The table below sets out
the details of Board meetings attendance of each Director during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

CREREE

HZE2023F12A31BIEFE - ARAIE BT
REZCGZRINREREG o TRITRE
F2023F 12 A1 BILFEREEHRESS S
HRFEE o

Attended/Eligible to Attended/Eligible to
attend Board meetings  attend general meeting
R EHEEEE Hi B
BHRY 3 PN-PA
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Hu Yiping HH— R E 7/7 1/1
Mr. Tang Junjie EEELE 7/7 1/1
Ms. Zhu XiaoliNete ! IR BB AT 2z M 2/2 =
Ms. Zheng Penghete 2 B IS 2z - Hie2 5/5 11
Independent Non-executive BIERITES
Directors
Mr. Jia ShenghuaMet 3 B A EE S s 2/2 =
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen AlbertNote 4 T ok A R M 5/5 1/1
Mr. Rui Meng W RS A& 7/7 11
Mr. Yang Xi HER A 7/7 1/1
Notes: FiYeE -
1. Ms. Zhu Xiaoli resigned as an executive Director of the Company on 14 April 2023. 1. REEN X LI02023F 4 A14 B BHEARDRIMITES
2. Ms. Zheng Peng became an executive Director of the Company on 14 April 2023. 2. BB LR2023F4 A14B FEERRRHNTES
3. Mr. Jia Shenghua resigned as an independent non-executive Director of the Company 3. HAEFLEN2023F4 14 B BHEAR DRI BL LT
on 14 April 2023. S
4. Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert became an independent non-executive Director of the 4. TR £R20235F4 A 14 BIEEAARELIFRIT
Company on 14 April 2023. S
/N o7 s V2N ==
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EREGREE

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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MECHANISMS FOR THE BOARD TO OBTAIN
INDEPENDENT VIEWS AND OPINIONS

The Company recognises the importance of Board independence to
good corporate governance. The current composition of the Board
comprises one-third independent non-executive Directors. The majority
of the members of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive
Directors. Both the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
are chaired by independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration
of the independent non-executive Directors is reviewed regularly to
maintain competitive and commensurate with their responsibilities and
workload.

A Director shall declare his/her interest, direct or indirect, if any, in a
motion or transaction to be considered by the Board at a Board
meeting and abstain from voting, if applicable. All Directors, including
the independent non-executive Directors, are entitled to seek external
independent professional advice if they consider it necessary. The
independent non-executive Directors have consistently demonstrated a
strong commitment and ability to devote sufficient time to the
discharge of their board responsibilities.

The Company has obtained from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of their independence from the
Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of such
mechanisms during the Year and is of the view that such mechanisms
are sufficiently effective in ensuring that the Board is provided with
independent views and opinions.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
available on the website of the Company and that of the Stock
Exchange.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. The Audit Committee consists of three members, 3
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Rui Meng, Dr. Wong
Wing Kuen Albert and Mr. Yang Xi. Mr. Rui Meng has been appointed
as the chairman of the Audit Committee, and Mr. Rui Meng has the
appropriate professional qualifications or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited
to (i) assisting the Board by providing an independent opinion on the
effectiveness of financial reporting process, internal controls and risk
management system of the Group; (i) overseeing the audit procedures
and performing other duties and responsibilities designated by the
Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 2 meetings of the Audit
Committee was held and the attendance record of the Audit
Committee members is set out in the table below:

CREREE

EREST

RARRE EHRANEI2VEREEERTA
RIBZZEGUFAEERABELE - B
ZEERE=FKE  BIBUBIINTES
WEASEAE  EEB LI RIGREL - REAKE
EZERERZECTR AHELEAERLD
MAIE3A10QFRABEREE B RE RS
NBEBRER -

ERZEENIERASRE (BTRR) : ()
PDEFEE IAKENMBRBIZF - RAEHE
HEEBREERASRNAREREBLIZR ¢ (i)
EEEIREFYBTESERKNEMBER
Bffo

HZE2023F12A31BILFE ERLETER
T2ReBERERZESKENHELHEHRR
&

Attended/Eligible to attend

HiE FEHEERRY
Directors =
Mr. Jia Shenghua™o* T A FE L A 1/1
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen AlbertMete 2 F ok B M2 1/1
Mr. Rui Meng W RS 2/2
Mr. Yang Xi HER A 2/2
Notes: Mtz -
1. Mr. Jia Shenghua resigned as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company on 1. BEAEESAENR2023F4 148 IR R BIEIZEE S

14 April 2023. A -

2. Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert became a member of the Audit Committee of the 2. FoKEE L R2023F4 A14BEEARRARBIZEES

Company on 14 April 2023.

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system,
compliance procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions)
and risk management systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit function and processes and the reappointment of the external
auditor. The Board had not deviated from any recommendation given
by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2023.

ERREQERFMBBRERR aRERF
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to paragraph B.3 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1
of the Listing Rules, the Group has established a Nomination
Committee with written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. Hu Yiping, Dr. Wong Wing
Kuen Albert and Mr. Rui Meng. Mr. Hu Yiping has been appointed as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are not
limited to, (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board; (i) assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and (iii) making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment of the Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 2 meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held and the attendance record of the Nomination
Committee members is set out in the table below:

REEST

BRCEMARADMERC1 AT E (R EE )R TR
FB3E  AREERVIRAZESQAUHTEER
BEsE - RRZEem=—2KEAK N5l
BEA—FRE  ERBEBLRANEHLLE - tH—
FAELCEZERRELZESLIR -

REZEEMIZBMAERE  BFTRN: ()F
MEESMRE - RBMARK : ()FEBL3F
MITEENBLIE M)A EEESHBEEE
MESSROEERS

HE2023F12A31HILFE AL Eogs
TR eZERIEREEEKENHERHEIAR
&

Attended/Eligible to attend

Wi FEHEEERE
Directors BEE
Mr. Hu Yiping tH—F A& 2/2
Mr. Jia Shenghuahete’ B A EE S A 1/1
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen AlbertNoe2 F kR R M2 1/1
Mr. Rui Meng W RS 2/2
Notes: Bt 5
1. Mr. Jia Shenghua resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee of the 1. BAEAEN2023F4A14ABIAREIREEZES

Company on 14 April 2023. B -

2. Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert became a member of the Nomination Committee of the 2. FokEELTN2023F4A14BETARRIREEE S

Company on 14 April 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the nomination policy and the Board Diversity Policy;
assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and made recommendation to the Board in relation to the re-election of
retiring Directors at the annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee has conducted an annual assessment of
the independence of each independent non-executive Director and
made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors
and senior management of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and paragraph E.1 of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules, the Group
has established a Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference. The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Tang Junjie and Mr. Rui
Meng. Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert has been appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are not
limited to (i) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of remuneration for directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for developing
such remuneration policy; (i) determining the specific terms of the
remuneration packages for all directors and senior management; (iii)
reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; and (iv) reviewing and approving matters relating to
share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 2 meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held and the attendance record of the
Remuneration Committee members is set out in the table below:

CREREE

HFWNEET

R LT AR RIDSE3.25 16 KK L T #7 BID Mt 8%
CIEKERERTRDFEIR  AREEX
VHMEESUHEEMRERLE - HMEE
SH=ZBREENK  DRIRTKERL  FE
BAEERNFRE - TREBLCDEZERF
MWEEex/F -

FHZEEemIZRABE  BFRRN : ()5
B M= RS IR B H B A BUR M 248 DA B A
ERBAHFMBRMALEAFTERANIEFEE
FeRHERBES  (\BEMBEEERERE
EEMNHMDRARGS ()12 ZEFGTH
ZANDEBERR S MR R EE R -
Ko (iv)ZE B R ERAE17TER T 2 et
2HEREE -

HE2023F12A31HILFE  FHEE oG
meReEhFHEESKEMNHELHEIAR
&

Attended/Eligible to attend

Wi FEHEEERE
Directors BEE
Mr. Jia ShenghuaMete’ B A 2 S e 1/1
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen AlbertNoe2 T ok HE R M2 1/1
Mr. Rui Meng PBf oA 2/2
Mr. Tang Junjie BlEALE 2/2
Notes: Bt 5
1. Mr. Jia Shenghua resigned as a chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the 1. BAEAENR2023F4A14ABIARBAFHEES

Company on 14 April 2023. EE o

2. Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert became a chairman of the Remuneration Committee of 2. TokERELTN2023F4A14BETARATFHEE S

the Company on 14 April 2023.

The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the service
agreements, appointment letters and remuneration policy for Directors
and senior management of the Company, and made recommendations
to the Board on the service agreement, appointment letter and
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. The provisions under the
Listing Rules in relation to compliance with the Model Code by the
Directors regarding securities transactions have been applicable to the
Company since the Listing Date. All Directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the period ended 31 December 2023.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedures to
nominate board candidates.

The Nomination Policy aims to nominate suitable candidates to the
Board. Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee
shall identify suitable board candidates and make recommendation to
the Board, after assessing a number of factors of a candidate,
including, but not limited to, reputation for integrity, accomplishment
and experience, commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interests, independence of proposed independent non-executive
Directors and diversity in all aspects. The Board shall have the final
decision in relation to its nomination of any candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, and recommend revision to the Board for consideration
and approval.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders, provided that the declaration and distribution of
dividends is not in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.
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The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall also take into account, among other things, the
Group’s financial results, Shareholders’ interests; general business
conditions and strategies, financial condition, capital requirements,
taxation considerations, contractual, statutory and regulatory restriction
(if any), and any other conditions the Directors may deem relevant at
such time. Any payment of the dividend by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific
periods.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company
recognises the benefits of having a diversified Board and sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of the Group’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Group seeks to achieve diversity of the
Board through the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, education
background, gender, age and ethnicity. In addition, members of the
Board has a balanced mix of experience including overall management,
brand enhancement, business development, legal, financial, audit and
accounting experience. The ages of the Directors range from 43 to 72
years old and their educational backgrounds range from civil
engineering, corporate management, public administration, accounting,
agricultural economics and management, international economics to
journalism and communication studies.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with the aim of
achieving an appropriate level of diversity among Board members
according to the circumstances of the Group from time to time. In
summary, the Board Diversity Policy sets out that when considering the
nomination and appointment of a Director, with the assistance of the
Nomination Committee, the Board would consider a range of diversity
of perspectives, including but not limited to the professional
experience, skills, knowledge, education background, gender, age and
ethnicity, in order to better serve the needs and development of the
Company. All Board appointments will be based on merits and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity to the Board.
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The Board currently has one female Director and as such has achieved
gender diversity in respect of the Board. We will strive to enhance
female representation and achieve an appropriate balance of gender
diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices. We will also
ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to
senior level and we are committed to provide career development
opportunities for female staff so that we will have a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to our Board in near
future.

The Company plans to offer all-rounded trainings to female employees
whom we consider to have the suitable experience, skills and
knowledge of our operation and business, including but not limited to,
business operation, management, accounting and finance, legal and
compliance and research and development. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness.

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the then applicable code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the annual remuneration of members of the senior
management (other than Directors) by band for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:

E=cAEE RXMES HHESFaM
SEEBMURNZHL - BHAB2ENHBEE
MAZEURBER R AR RETRZSE 8
RALZMLE P U ERMRNZ TLNEE & -
BATHRER T RRE THREFRENLEZ
T YBHORTMETIRHBEERKS
MR TAR KRR LGSR EEBREL
FEEQBREMEE -

AR BARMRAABRMNEEREBH
T RENMRN LB TRES ANE
- EEETRALHEE &2 @Ry
% EERARNRFE - REEBRETE
R B RS TR - AR AR -

FE & 4R B B E R S 37 B

RIEERERNCES ATRIZEBASIKSTENE
X BE2023F12A31MBILFEE ShEERE
KB (BERIN 2FEFHBRARNSHIWOT -

Salary Fa=

Number of members of
senior management

BREEERS AN

HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000

1,000,000 7T 22,000,000 7T 3
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company appointed Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as the external
auditor for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Details of the fees paid/payable in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited for the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in the table below:

TRERBRE

B £ B B

HZE2023F12 A1 BILEFE - KAARIZERIE
LIEGET RN BT A R A R EE NS EE o

TREINEE2023FE12 A31 B ILEEFTER
ZEeTMEBFERATIRMNEN RIEET
RSB, FERT B RS :

Services rendered

FriR e AR 75
(RMB’000)
(NREEFIT)

Annual audit of the financial statements HAEEPHERROFEET
of the Group 2,454
Other services H At AR 75 454
Total =) 2,908

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow during the
Reporting Period. A statement from the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out on pages 106 to
179 of this annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Risk Management and Internal Control System

During the reporting year, the Group has complied with Code D.2 of
the CG Code through the establishment of an appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control system. Management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
system and the Board continuously monitors the performance of
management in discharging its responsibilities and has engaged an
external independent internal control consultant to review the Group’s
risk management and internal control system for the year. The review
procedures performed by the independent internal control consultant
include reviewing the existing risk management and internal control
system, assessing the adequacy of material internal controls for the
Group, and reporting key risk information and internal control findings
to the Board and management, and the management has reported the
internal control findings and risk assessment results identified by the
independent internal control consultant to the Board and has
implemented an action plan and will provide the Board with regular
updates on the remediation progress. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate
business risk; to help safeguard the Group’s assets against fraud and
other irregularities; and to give reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material financial misstatement or loss.

The Company acknowledges that it has certain internal control
weaknesses for the year ended 31 December 2022, further details of
which were announced by the Company on 11 October 2022. To
prevent future non-compliances of a similar nature, the Company has
implemented enhanced internal control measures, including the
appointment of an independent internal control consultant. Further
information on the Group’s latest Risk Management Process, Risk
Management System and Internal Control System are set out below.

Risk Management Process

The Company has developed a risk management process to identify,
evaluate and manage significant risks and to resolve material internal
control defects (if any). Senior management, through the Company’s
internal audit function, is responsible for the annual risk reporting
process. Members of the internal audit function meet with various
members of the senior management to review and assess risks and
discuss solutions to address material internal control defects (if any),
including any changes relevant to a given year. Risks are compiled,
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ratings are assigned and mitigation plans are documented. The risk
assessment is reviewed by certain members of senior management
and presented to the Audit Committee and the Board for their review.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based on (i)
the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial
results; (i) the probability that the risk will occur; and (jii) the velocity or
speed at which a risk could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks as
follows:

° Risk elimination — senior management may identify and
implement certain changes or controls that in effect eliminate the
risk entirely.

° Risk mitigation — senior management may implement a risk
mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood, velocity or the
severity of the risk to an acceptable level.

° Risk retention — senior management may decide that the risk
rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable for the Company
and that no action is required. The risk would continue to be
monitored as part of the risk management program to ensure the
level of risk does not increase to an unacceptable level.

Reviewing the Effectiveness of Risk Management
and Internal Control System

The Board takes the lead to evaluate the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group by reviewing the major operations of the
Group on a rotational basis every year with review period covering the
full financial year. During the reporting year, the Board has conducted
a review of the Group’s risk management and internal control system,
including but not limited to () changes in the nature and extent of
significant risks and the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and external environment, (i) the scope and quality of
management’s continuing oversight of the risk and internal control
system, (i) communication of oversight results with the Board and the
Audit Committee to assess the scope and frequency of the
effectiveness of the Company’s control and risk management, (iv)
significant control deficiencies or weaknesses identified, and (v) the
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting process and
compliance with the Listing Rules, and (vi) review of the risk
management and internal control reviews conducted by the
independent internal control consultant during the year.
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The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the oversight of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for reviewing
and assessing the major risks facing the Company and reviewing,
approving and monitoring the Company’s approach to addressing such
risks annually.

Based on the above review, the Board is of the opinion that
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s risk
management and internal control system has effective and adequate
and no material issues have been identified that may have an impact
on the financial controls, operational controls, compliance controls and
risk management functions of the Group.

In addition, the Board also considers that the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training courses and budget of the
Company’s accounting, compliance, legal and financial reporting
functions were adequate and effective during the reporting year.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is responsible for
reviewing and monitoring the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company. The Audit Committee oversees the risk
management process and reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems by conducting the following
procedures:

° Reviewing the Company’s risk management program and policy.

° Reviewing with senior management at least annually reports
demonstrating compliance with the risk management policy.

° Discussing with senior management at least annually the
Company’s major risk exposures and the steps senior
management has taken or should take to assess and treat such
exposures.

° Reviewing the ongoing effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management practices.
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The Company’s senior management is responsible for administering the
Company’s risk management program and is accountable for ensuring
that the Company’s business operations are conducted in compliance
with our risk management policy, taking into consideration changes in
the business environment and the Company’s risk tolerance.

Responsibilities of the Company’s senior management include:

° Designing and implementing a Company-wide risk management
policy.

° Reviewing and updating the risk management policy on a timely
basis, ensuring it remains relevant and adequate, taking into
account changes in the environment, industry and the Company’s
operations and risk profile and, where necessary, recommending
changes to the risk management policy for the Audit Committee
to review.

° Ensuring that the Company’s risk management program is aligned
and integrated with the annual strategic and business planning
process and vice versa.

° Designing and establishing a risk management methodology which
provides the appropriate tools to identify, evaluate, and manage
business exposures.

° Establishing a Company-wide risk reporting process to ensure that
the Company’s senior management, the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors are apprised of all material risk issues and
business exposures.

° Ensuring necessary management controls and oversight processes
are in place to monitor compliance with the risk management
policy and the risk management methodology.

° Approving and monitoring key risk positions and exposure trends,
risk management strategies and risk management priorities.

° Reviewing and discussing the Company’s overall risk profile, key
and emerging risks and risk management activities through
periodic risk discussions among senior management.

° Reviewing the key business strategies and initiatives to assess their
impact on the Company’s overall risk position.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under the Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules. The
Company has adopted a continuous disclosure compliance policy
which sets out guidelines and procedures to the Directors and officers
of the Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner. Briefing session
is held regularly for officers to facilitate their understanding and
compliance with the policy.

SHAREHOLDERS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings by
Shareholders

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Pursuant to
the Articles of Association, general meetings shall also be convened on
the written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company of
any one or more members of the Company holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

To safeguard Shareholder’s interests and rights, separate resolutions
are and will be proposed at general meetings on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual Directors.

The procedures for Shareholder to propose a person for

election as a Director is available on the Company’s website
(https://www.dexinfuwu.com).
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Shareholders may lodge written notice to the company secretary of the
Company at 40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such written notice is given, shall be at least seven (7)
days and that the lodgment of such notice shall commence no earlier
than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date of such general meeting. The written notice will be verified
with the company secretary of the Company and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, they will ask the
Nomination Committee and the Board to consider to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting proposing such
person to be elected as a Director.

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association for the
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals may request the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the above paragraph.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by
contacting the Company or directly by raising the questions at an
annual general meeting or extraordinary general meeting. The contact
details of the Company are set out in the Company’s website
(www.dexinfuwu.com).

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address:
Room 488, Building 2, No. 2008-2010 Jinchang Road, Liangzhu
Street, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

Principal place of business in Hong Kong:
40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone:
+400-905-7060 (Customer Service Centre — Hangzhou, PRC)
+86 0571-88173911

(Investor Relationship’s Phone Number — Hangzhou, PRC)

E-mail address:
ir@shengquanwuye.com
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Shareholders may also direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, whose address is Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the forthcoming annual general meeting,
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

Shareholders and investors may access the Company’s corporate
communication documents through the website of the Company
(https://www.dexinfuwu.com) and the website of the Stock Exchange.
Shareholders may also make written representations or enquiries in
writing to the Board if they have any concerns.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed the
implementation of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy and
considered it appropriate and effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The second amended and restated articles of association of the
Company were adopted by a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting held on 29 May 2023 with effect from 29 May 2023,
and it is available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2023, there has not been no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

th
[l /
ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dexin
Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 106 to 179,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2023 in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Trade receivables, other receivables and deposit in
relation to Dexin China Holding Company Limited and
its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (“Dexin
China”)

Included in the trade receivables and other receivable are amounts due
from Dexin China of approximately RMB92,718,000 and
RMB1,407,000, respectively as at 31 December 2023. In addition,
there is deposit paid to Dexin China of RMB250,000,000 as at 31
December 2023. In August 2023, the Group entered into agreements
with Dexin China to acquire certain car parking spaces and equity
interest of a company from Dexin China at cash consideration of
RMB301,435,000 (the “Transactions”). Upon completion of the
Transactions, Dexin China will refund the deposit of RMB250,000,000
to the Group or such deposit and receivables will be offset with the
cash consideration. Pursuant to the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting
held on 13 March 2024, the Transactions were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company. However, the completion of
the Transactions is subject to the approval from the independent
shareholders of Dexin China in shareholders’ meeting of which the date
of meeting is still not yet fixed at the date of this report.

Due to the uncertainty of the approval of the Transactions by the
independent shareholders of Dexin China and lack of evidence to
support the financial ability of Dexin China, we are unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the
recoverability of the unsettled trade and other receivable due from
Dexin China as at 31 December 2023 of approximately
RMB79,687,000 and RMB1,362,000 and the deposit paid to Dexin
China of RMB250,000,000 as at 31 December 2023. There are no
other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to determine
whether the relevant expected credit loss of RMB1,019,000 is
appropriately provided. Any adjustments to these figures might have a
consequential effect on the Group’s financial performance for the year
and the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2023.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on this matter. In addition to the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion Section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the Key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

1. Trade and other receivables

Refer to the Note 22 of the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the impairment and estimation for expected
credit loss allowance (“ECL”) for trade and other receivables. This
estimation is significant to our audit because the balance of trade
receivables and other receivables (excluding the trade receivables
and other receivables due from Dexin China) of RMB286,253,000
and RMB142,535,000 and impairment loss of RMB50,527,000
respectively as at 31 December 2023 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
estimation involves application of judgement and is based on
assumptions and estimates.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the customers;

— Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment and ECL
assessment;

—  Check the computation of ECL calculation;

— Assessing ageing of the debts;

— Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the customers; and

— Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s estimation for expected credit loss
allowance for trade and other receivables is supported by the
available evidence.

Loan receivables

Refer to the Note 22 of the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the impairment and estimation for expected
credit loss allowance (“ECL”) for loan receivables. This estimation
is significant to our audit because the balance of loan receivables
of RMB340,459,000 as at 31 December 2023 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
estimation involves application of judgement and is based on
assumptions and estimates.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting loans limit and
repayment periods to borrowers;

— Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the borrowers;

— Assessing the value of the collateral;
—  Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
— Assessing creditworthiness of the borrowers; and

— Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s estimation for expected credit loss
allowance for loan receivables is supported by the available
evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence.
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other
information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s website
at: https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/Our-
views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Chi Hoi

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P07268
Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

2023 2022
2023 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & ARSTT ARKETTT
Revenue WA 8 955,580 958,597
Cost of sales $HE AR (729,541) (687,223)
Gross profit E7 226,039 271,374
Other income H A A 10 14,917 34,711
Other gains — net H b 55 0% 58 11 50 6,523
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R IHAX (13,773) (15,864)
Administrative expenses THRHAX (130,479) (136,041)
Impairment loss on trade and other B 5 & H At fE W 5/ IE 2
receivables BEEE (30,534) (6,732)
Share of result of associates FE(RE & DA R LA (813) (131)
Share of result of a joint venture EiE—HEeEtEEER - 27
Operating profit £ R 65,407 153,867
Interest income FEHA 23,311 10,783
Finance costs B & A AR (1,508) (1,981)
Finance income — net BB WA FEE 12 21,803 8,802
Profit before taxation B Bt A FF 87,210 162,669
Income tax expenses FriS iz 13 (24,713) (37,609)
Profit and total comprehensive FRABREZELEEE
income for the year 14 62,497 125,060
Profit and total comprehensive DT&FEGEERFIER
income for the year 2HE I EE -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRAREE A 61,767 122,023
Non-controlling interests FERE I HE 2 730 3,037
62,497 125,060
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic and diluted (RMB) — BEARHE(NRE) 17 0.065 0.122
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wEMBIRAR

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M aE ARETT ARBET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment and ES ﬁ%&&ﬁ&
right-of-use assets EREEE 18 11,265 10,876
Intangible assets mEE 19 3,333 2,978
Deferred income tax assets RIEFMSHEE 29 14,200 8,730
Investment in associates E’\Hﬁﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬂxﬁ 20 501 2,809
Loan and other receivables B3R % H A e U ER 22 - 315,000
29,299 340,393
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 21 15,363 7,949
Trade and other receivables and B 5 R A GRIA LA R
prepayments TET IR 22 1,150,259 756,692
Cash and cash equivalents HeEhkREeEED 23 229,728 209,855
1,395,350 974,496
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H At & 5/ 18 24 430,744 329,246
Contract liabilities AHAE 26 150,995 107,353
Borrowings R 25 17,000 55,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 1,091 1,190
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT S A& 55,769 39,878
655,599 532,667
Net current assets RBEEFE 739,751 441,829
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 3 N
LIABILITIES RRAERRDAR 769,050 782,222
Non-current liabilities ERSHER
Borrowings & 25 10,000 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 17 1,026
10,017 1,026
NET ASSETS BEFE 759,033 781,196
Capital and reserves BERRGHE
Share capital fi& 7 30 7,738 8,115
Reserves M 32 735,028 756,429
Equity attributable to owners N Tl fE
of the Company FARRA B 742,766 764,544
Non-controlling interests FEI2E e 16,267 16,652
TOTAL EQUITY HER A 759,033 781,196
The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to 179 were ZH106E £ £ 1798 WA & REC 12024

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

FRRTHEAEESH AU RETIBRILHIAT
EERREE

Hu Yiping Tang Junjie
tA—F 15 1
Director Director

EE EE
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onsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEEREHR

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATHAANES
Non-
Share Share Capital Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves reserves profits Total interests equity
BE  BROEGE EFREE EEHE RSB art EEREE EneE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETT ARETE AR®TT ARETRT ARETT AR®TT ARETR
At 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1H 8,462 653,103 (19,099) 27,607 165,584 835,657 24,554 860,211
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ FRFIERZEKEAE
for the year — — — — 122,023 122,023 3,037 125,060
Capital injection by non-controlling FERERTE
interest - . — - - — 890 890
Purchase of additional interest in a BE-HNEARMN
subsidiary BIMRIE - - (21,459) - - (1459  (11829) (33288
Repurchase and cancellation of shares BB & sE k17 (347) (98,415) (21,146) - - (119,908) - (119,908)
Dividend paid BB - - - - (51,769)  (51,769) - (51,769)
Repurchase of shares B e AR (D - - - - - - - -
Transfer to statutory reserves ABTATHE - - - 3,636 (3,636) - - -
At 31 December 2022 R2022%F12A31H 8,115 554,688 (61,704) 31,243 232,202 764,544 16,652 781,196
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1 A1H 8,115 554,688 (61,704) 31,243 232,202 764,544 16,652 781,196
Profit and total comprehensive income  FRFIE R 2 E k5258
for the year = = = = 61,767 61,767 730 62,497
Cancellation of shares B3] ) (73) (21,073) 21,146 - - - - -
Repurchase and cancellation of shares  B§ @ R sE$4M% (3 (304) (83,241) - - - (83,545) - (83,545)
Capital injection by non-controlling FERERTE
interest = - - - - - 300 300
Deregister of subsidiaries FHERB AR = = - - - - (440) (440)
Dividend paid by a subsidiary —FIMB AR RRS = - = = - = (975) (975)
Transfer to statutory reserves BBTETHE - - - (1,600) 1,600 - - -
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 7,738 450,374 (40,558) 29,643 295,569 742,766 16,267 759,033
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRERE
GERERE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities CEFHELRESRE
Profit before taxation Rk 752 Al A1) 87,210 162,669
Adjustments for: FUATSIEED A FHE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRR E AR
and right-of-use assets FHEEENE 6,963 7,793
Amortisation of intangible assets | & EE 438 628
Impairment loss on trade and other B 5 & H M e W 5kI8
receivables ZREE R 30,534 6,732
Interest income A S A (23,311) (10,783)
Share of result of associates i NI 8 131
Share of result of a joint venture ElE—EEeEhEXE = (27)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary E—[MMB AR Z
& - (4,2793)
Loss on deregister of subsidiaries TS B A Rl 2 518 175 —
Loss on disposal of a joint venture HE—HeaErEY
4Ei] — 27
Gain on disposal of associates BB & AR 2 s (774) =
Finance costs B & Bl AN 1,508 1,981
Loss on disposal/written off of property, plant HE MEmE - BE
and equipment MEE2 EE 55 39
Operating cash flows before movements in BEBESE A LKL
working capital BEmE 103,611 164,917
Change in inventories GFEZE (7,414) 102
Change in trade and other receivables and B 5 K H b JE W IR A
prepayments RIEFRIB 2 &8 (85,704) (456,026)
Change in trade and other payables B 5 REAMENRIELZ
23 101,682 83,752
Change in contract liabilities BHEEEZF 43,642 (49)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEER E/(Fﬁﬁﬁ)iﬂﬁ: 155,817 (207,304)
Income tax paid EAFTEH (14,292) (16,269)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating && &S, (FiH)E
activities 2FHE 141,525 (223,573)
Cash flows from investing activities BREFHBWRERE
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at far HER AL BEFERLH
value through profit or loss BT ABENEHME
EFT5 508 = 2,800
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through B ER AL BETEAEH
profit or loss FH A ABENEME
=3 - (2,800)
Repayments from third parties E=FER 77,244 165,756
Loans to third parties ME =7 RHHER (101,000) (333,600)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment EEME  WENMEE (7,460) (6,759)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEFEE (793) (1,2083)
Interest received 2 AR 23,311 10,783
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and LEDE  BELZHEZ
equipment Fr 1S 208 183 -
Investment in an associate N—EBE RN E - (490)
Investment in a joint venture R—EEEEENEE — (250)
Proceeds from disposal of joint venture LESETEERIE = 250
Decrease in restricted cash PR I35 2 = 555,351
Increase in restricted cash = PR 1 2R & 38 0 - (304,500)
Cash inflow from disposal of associates HEBERRIMESRA 2,269 =
Cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBARMNESRA - 455
Net cash (used in)/generated from ®EEH (FFA) FifRRE
investing activities R (6,246) 85,793
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meaRTnER

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARET T
Cash flows from financing activities AEEESMNRERE
Dividends paid TR E (975) (51,769)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings SR1T M B8 RPTS 3R 10,000 55,000
Repayments of bank and other borrowings EEIRITREMER (38,000) —
Equity transaction with non-controlling interest ,\#Tﬁﬂﬂzﬁﬁnmﬂx%k% = (33,288)
Deregister of subsidiaries BB A (440) =
Capital injection by non-controlling interest FEPE IR R 2R E § 300 890
Interest paid 2 AT F S (1,399) (1,8793)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHASAE (1,347) (1,400)
Repurchase of shares EEACI gy (83,545) (119,908)
Net cash used in financing activities RLE EEFTRAREFE (115,406) (152,348)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash HeRIESLEEWEM
equivalents (iBY) T8 19,873 (290,128)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FYRERFASEEY
of the year 209,855 499,983
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRBEERREEEY
of the year 229,728 209,855
I——
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents HeRIEEEUMZHIT
Bank and cash balances SRITMIR® 5k 229,728 209,855
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dexin Services Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 22 October 2020 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The Company’s shares were listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 15 July 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”. The
Company’s ultimate holding company is Shengfu International
Limited. The ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group is
Mr. Hu Yiping (38—, “Mr. Hu” or the “Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”). RMB is the functional currency of the Company and the
Company’s subsidiaries.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant (the “HKICPA”), and the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° <
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2023. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (the
“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and amounts reported for the
current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The application of these new
HKFRSs will not have material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise its judgements
in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgements and areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities as if they had been
combined from the date when they first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statements of cash
flows include the results and cash flows of the combining entities
from the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities first came under the common control, where
this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The consolidated statements of financial position have been
prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the combining
entities as if the Group structure as at 31 December 2020 had
been in existence at the end of each reporting period. The net
assets of the combining entities are combined using the existing
book values from the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or gain on bargain purchase
at the time of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

There was no adjustment made to the net assets nor the net
profit or loss of any combining entities in order to achieve
consistency of the Group’s accounting policies.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of
the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
in the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income
(for example, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as would
be required if the previously held equity interest were disposed
of.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets. Impairment
losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment
testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

4.
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Associates BE AT
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant BERNRARNSENEAEAFECE
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the B BEAREBESEMIEES SRR

financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability
to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. lIdentifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
the consolidated The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

reserves.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group’s
share of the net assets of that associate plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that associate and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the Group
continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure
the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has joint control. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Group
recognises in its consolidated financial statements, its assets,
including its share of any assets held jointly; its liabilities,
including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly; its revenue
from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint
operation; its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly, in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint
venture in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that results in
a loss of joint control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (ii) the Group’s share
of the net assets of that joint venture plus any remaining goodwiill
relating to that joint venture and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate, the Group continues to
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
presentation currency and functional currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

— Al resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the translation reserve. When
a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives or annual rate on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

10%-33.33%
10%-33.34%

Equipment and machinery
Vehicles and others

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Computer software

Intangible assets mainly include computer software. They are
initially recognised and measured at costs incurred to acquire and
bring them to use. Intangible assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (generally 10 years based on
management’s expectation on the technological lives of the
computer software), using the straight-line method which reflects
the pattern in which the intangible asset’s future economic
benefits are expected to be consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by
the Group. Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of
right-of-use assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rate is as follows:

Land and buildings 20%-33.33%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments
prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate
can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are
leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets are assets of value below US$5,000.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor
(@) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

(b) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment in the leases.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all
production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially recognised
at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in
the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (the
“Financial assets at FVTPL”). Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

() Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.

(ii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do
not meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost
and the conditions of debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income unless the Group designates
an equity investment that is not held for trading as at fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial
recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair
value with any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
values recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any interest
income and dividend income. Interest income and dividend
income are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
on financial assets at amortised cost as defined in HKFRS 15.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses
with the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit
risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to the
portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents the
expected credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the
loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required
amount is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently measured at the higher of:

— the loss allowance; and

— the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in profit or loss over the terms of the guarantee
contracts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary
business practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws
that apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be
satisfied over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation
is satisfied over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control
of the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the at the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged in profit or loss
represents contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them with
the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of allocating resources
and assessing the performance of the Group’s various lines of
business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of
the following conditions applies:

)

(if

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Company or to a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
inventories and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment
loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when material.

CRITICAL KEY ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. CRITICAL KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment for trade and other receivables and
prepayments

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables and prepayments, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes and deferred tax

Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried forward
and deductible temporary differences are recognised and
measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the relevant assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of each reporting date. In determining the carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of assumptions related
to the operating environment of the Group and require a
significant level of judgement on the part of the directors.
Any change in such assumptions and judgement would
affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be
recognised and hence the net profit in future years.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group only has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities RMB. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect
of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

If the RMB had weakened/strengthened 5 per cent against
the Hong Kong dollar and United States dollars with all
other variables held constant, consolidated profit before tax
for the year would have been approximately RMB96,000
(2022: RMB709,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents
denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United States
dollars.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligation resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
cash at bank and trade, loan and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Apart from trade receivables due from related parties, the

Group has large number of customers and there was no
concentration of credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s cash at bank is mainly held by well-known
financial institutions. Management does not foresee any
significant credit risks arising from these deposits and does
not expect that these financial institutions will default and
cause losses to the Group.

The Group assessed that the expected loss rate for trade
receivables from related parties were low considering the
good finance position and credit history of the related
parties.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses (“ECL”) prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for trade receivables due from third parties. To
measure the ECL, trade receivables due from third parties
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The ECL also
incorporate forward-looking information.

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade
receivables due from related parties is considered to be low,
since they have a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. The Group has
assessed that the ECL rate for the amounts due from
related parties are immaterial under 12 months ECL method
and considered them to have low credit risk, and thus the
loss allowance is immaterial.

For loan and other receivables other than those from
related parties, management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records and past experience.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. EREMEERE
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE )

The Group considers the probability of default whether there AEBEZEELONT LM - BT
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing EEREHEAGEERRESSFE
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether BEEmM - EHAEERRELRE
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group EENE - AEBEREAHEE
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at BAZEXH R RS TR A %
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of ERANBRRBETLER RRKtBZE
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and IR LE E’JAEE&QHF MR &
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the Ko FFRIRAEES TATIEE

following indicators are incorporated:

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in — B UBAEBERERER
business, financial or economic conditions that are i%i‘ﬁ%ﬁ?‘&ﬁ’ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁfﬁm
expected to cause a significant change to the BITEENRENELEERE
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations; { EE’JEKT%U‘EM b

— actual or expected significant changes in the operating — [ERAGEXENERLTED
results of the borrower; BEREL

—  significant changes in the expected performance and — [ERAEBRRBRIANER
behaviour of the borrowers, including changes in the B BEBRANN AR
payment status of borrowers and changes in the L RERANKLEEERL

operating results of the borrowers.




FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
expected credit loss model is as follows:

mE R HRR MG

6. £FlEIEER @
(b) EEREPE s

AEEEHEEBEBEEAZNOMR

REBEWT

Basis for recognition of expected

Category Group definition of category credit loss provision
=5l FREHHBZENESR EREREEBREENEE
Performing Customers have a low risk of default and a 12 months expected losses. Where
strong capacity to meet contractual cash the expected lifetime of an asset is
flows less than 12 months, expected
losses are measured at its
expected lifetime
% BPENRRREEGRNIELGHNERNIR 12ANTEERE - YREHFESR
EmE E12RzAMEE  BEEEE

Underperforming

Non-performing

TR

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; as significant increase
in credit risk is presumed if interest and/or
principal repayments are 180 days past due

EE R AEZIE E EURIE  WFE R 3
A EFBE180K - BlIEEEERMRIEHE
EHE

Interest and/or principal repayments are 365
days past due
FER/HAEERBH365K

RIEMFEMGE

Lifetime expected losses

FEBEENER

Lifetime expected losses

FEBMENER
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. FIEPEEE @)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis. In
calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic
data. As there was no significant change of the customer
base, historical credit loss rate of customers and
forward-looking information for the vyears ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance
provision for the trade and other receivables due from third
parties was determined as follows. The expected credit
losses below also incorporated forward looking information.

EERE @

AEEBBRFEEHWATEREE
BEERELBERFEEERR ° 5
ERHAEEBERER  AEEZE
SHERRENELBEE WY
AEMRBCESIRETHAE - A
RE E£20234F ;2022912 A31H
IEFEEMNERE BARP :ff

BERAEEER T EE XS

20234 &2022F 12318 * &
WE=TTE 5 RE M REKFIBRNE
BRGBEENOT - TXBEHEES
BB SAEEER -

2023 2022
20234 20224
Gross Gross
Expected carrying Loss Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance loss rate amount allowance
Ta g 1R X AR 483 BEEE et agiEES BRE AR EERE
At 31 December 2023 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20034 12 A31 B AR%®TFT ARMFR ARBFE ARBTT
Trade receivables B S EKRRIE
Related parties 2k 1% 95,968 1,053 0.5% 111,510 2,299
Third party aging F=FHRE
Within 1 year 1FE AR 6% 173,170 10,838 5% 181,089 5,588
1 to 2 years 1224 12% 84,337 10,348 10% 52,855 4,622
2 to 3 years 2&E3F 20% 50,472 10,077 30% 12,135 3,628
3 to 4 years 3E4F 36% 9,740 3,468 50% 6,900 3,273
Over 4 years 45 A E 69% 3,423 2,355 100% 5,798 5,798
Total 1@t 417,110 38,139 370,287 25,208
Other receivables H it FEU R IE
Related parties 2L 0.1% 271,475 221 0.5% 267,529 1,345
Third party aging B=HRER
Within 1 year 1F AR 4% 72,172 3,109 1% 95,674 942
1 to 2 years 15225 11% 56,556 6,410 8% 4,215 337
2 to 3 years 2E3F 59% 3,355 1,975 17% 1,225 208
3 to 4 years 3FE44F 38% 1,170 449 14% 159 22
Over 4 years 4FPA £ 47% 2,621 1,243 42% 4,920 2,066
Total HET 407,349 13,407 373,722 4,920
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. SREEERE »

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)

The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables during the year, including
both specific and collective loss components, is as follows:

Impairment of trade and other receivables

EERE @

RER - B 5 KE M EKRIEZ R
BEREZEE (BRI REEER
)T

BS R At EKRIERE

Trade (0]1,1-7¢

receivables receivables Total

ESREIMIE HibEWKRIE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFL  ARBTTI  ARBTR

At 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1H 17,642 5,754 23,396
Impairment loss recognised/ R,/ (EE) FHEEE

(reversed) 7,566 (834) 6,732

At 31 December 2022 and 72022912 A31H &

1 January 2023 2023%F1H1H 25,208 4,920 30,128

Impairment loss recognised B MERRBIEEE 12,931 8,487 21,418

At 31 December 2023 202312 31 H 38,139 13,407 51,546

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the gross carrying
amount of trade and other receivables (excluding
prepayments) was RMB824,459,000 and RMB744,009,000
respectively, and thus the maximum exposure to loss was
RMB772,913,000 and RMB713,881,000 respectively.

R20234F K&2022F12HA31H * & 5
FEMEWFEIE (MR ERENRIE) B
IR 42 ZE 5 Bl & A R 824,459,000
T & A R #744,009,0007T © A It &
AKMEBEMAOD B ABARE
772,913,0007T & A K #713,881,000
=
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(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of
the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

ofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(c)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. ERIEEERE &

B & =& E &

AREEZ KT ERER B AT MIE
HZRBDESFRUABREERT
RESHE MEEEHREHZ

AEESBEEERNRFTRASR
EFEEZBBMBDHFET

Less than Between 1 and Between 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
1R 1E2% 2F5%F #st
31 December 2023 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20235%12H31H ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A e 3R 430,744 - - 430,744
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,129 17 - 1,146
Borrowings B8 17,934 505 10,343 28,782
449,807 522 10,343 460,672

Less than Between 1 and Between 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
1ERRA 1226 2E5F fst
31 December 2022 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
202212 A31H ARBF T ARBF T ARBF T AREF T
Trade and other payables B 5 R H b FERT B 329,246 - - 329,246
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,287 1,061 - 2,348
Borrowings BE 55,835 - - 55,835
386,368 1,061 — 387,429

(d) Interest rate risk

Other than cash and cash equivalents, the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities, the Group’s
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments

mE R HRR MG

6. £FlEIEER @

() &RTRER

2023 2022

2023 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETIT ARBF T
Financial assets: EREE

Financial assets at amortised cost RBEKNATECEREE

(including cash and cash equivalents) (BERENBELEEY) 1,343,100 1,240,438
Financial liabilities: TRBE:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost RHERATECSREE 436,354 369,449

(f) Fair values (H AREE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities at amortised cost as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate

their respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation

techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the

measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

AREBENRBHEHAAFEZEHE
ElEBAENREE (BNEE M
BN KPR BEE A Z AR EE
HE -

AREEEE
ARBEDEMS2EE ZERGE A Y
EITNEFR ST HE —REEMKREH
ERABE-HABEMNNER - AT
RERBAARBEER AR BEFER
B BRABASRUGERABEZGHE
TEZBABED R :

N

F— M AR - AR ERH B QTR
BRI A A ER AR TS 1B (K
EEE) -

F_RBABE BELRBZEEIME
BRUBRGARE(F - REERNRER
A e

FZRBABE  EEXRBEZITABE
W ABUE -
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AREENE®
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out REBEZHERNEHEE 2 EHHIER
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change HIRFeE ARAE =B RPEM—
in circumstances that caused the transfer. & fE oz A KRBT o
Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on level 3: BERE=ZFRERALBEAENEEZ
Financial
assets
at FVTPL
BAREENE
BHEZEE NS
SHNEREE
RMB’000
ARBF T
At 1 January 2022 202241 H1H —
Addition = 2,800
Disposal He (2,800)
At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 and R2022% 12 A31H * 2023%F1 A1H K&
31 December 2023 2023%F 12 A31H -
8. REVENUE 8. W=
Revenue represents income from property management services, WeRIE R BMEE RS - IEFEEEER
value-added services to non-property owners and community Rt e BRI ERGE WA -

resources value-added services.

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Revenue from contracts with customers: REZFE &N :

Property management services W) 25 1B AR TS 740,845 609,696
Value-added services to non-property owners 3F 3 T 1% (& iR 7% 106,090 188,978
Community resources value-added services & & /R IEE RS 108,645 159,923

955,580 958,597
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REVENUE(%MW&)

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, revenue from
entities controlled by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder and
joint ventures and associates of the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder contributed to 12% and 27% of the Group’s
revenue, respectively. Other than entities controlled by the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder and joint ventures and
associates of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder, the Group had
a large number of customers and none of whom contributed
10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers:
The major operating entities of the Group are domiciled in the

PRC. Accordingly, all the Group’s revenues were derived in the
PRC for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

mE R HRR MG

&30

HE2023F FK2022F 12 A31HIEFE -
R B AR AR AR R ) A B B8 LA S AR 4
R ERAE & E R E AR ED 5
IAREBRZER12% K 27% ° BRI
PRERIERIN B R ALIERRRENE &
ERBENRIN  AEBBEERERFS
HE2023F FK2022F 12 A31HILFE -
MEER R P R AL B IR A 10% 3k A
J: °

REEFSHWmZHS

AEBMNTELEERUNAPE - Al -
AREBERE 220234 2022912 A31H
HFEEMRBKRABLREFRE -

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETX AEREF T

Timing of revenue recognition W N\ B 2R B9 B
Over time BiE B R 911,109 850,046
At a point in time KRz 44,471 108,551
955,580 958,597

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For property management services and value-added services to
non-property owners, the Group recognises revenue in the
amount that equals to the right to invoice which corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s
performance to date, on a monthly basis. The Group has elected
the practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these type of contracts. The majority
of the property management services contracts do not have a
fixed term.

KETHEORE

IR EERBRIEXTREREME -
AEERZ AEREER AEAZ SR
A RERERHEAEELCSHTFE
MEE ARBCEENTERENDE
TEEZSRUENNRBEOEET - X
Mo MEEERE A XA EEEHIR
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REVENUE (Continued)

Unsatisfied performance obligations (Continued)

For community resources value-added services, they are
rendered in short period of time, which is generally less than a
year, and the Group has elected the practical expedient for not
to disclose the remaining performance obligations for these type
of contracts.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (the
“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segment, has been
identified as the executive directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group is
principally engaged in the provision of property management
services, community resources value-added services, and
value-added services to non-property owners. Management
reviews the operating results of the business as one operating
segment to make decisions about resources to be allocated.
Therefore, the CODM of the Company regards that there is only
one segment which is used to make strategic decisions.

The principal operating entities of the Group are domiciled in the
PRC. Accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue were derived in the

PRC for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the non-current assets
of the Group were located in the PRC.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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AETHEHERE @

it EEREBERBME - EDHREHA
Mt HRABEFTI—F AEECDEE
ATRENE  UWBBEARBEZEREA
KM RIBRBEOET -

SEEH
EEEEREEEIZHELRRE ([EERE
EREE ) ZHOREEELEDE - £
ERERRECHEEERANRBNTE
F RAENEBEREFEEZEDHEK
3 o

HE2023F N2022F 12 A31HIEFE -
REEFEREREMEEERS - &=
BIRIGERS RIEXETILERY - EH/E
HSEFLCEHEEER (A ED FEITE
B LUREERSE - At - KRR E
DERBERE  E— A BHERIED
BRI o

AEEMNFELETRBAVURTRH -F
It A E2023F K 2022%F 12 A31 H [EF
B AEEMNFEKREHREFRHE -

M2023F K 2022F12 A31H » KEB AT
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10. OTHER INCOME 10. HibUgA

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREEF T
Government grants (note) XA #e8 Bl (B 3E) 14,111 20,026
Income from financial guarantee contract S ERE KU - 14,297
Value-added tax deductibles AR A0 806 388
14,917 34,711

Note: Government grants mainly consisted of financial support funds granted by the M - BT EZREM T BNR FHMKED -

local governments.

11. OTHER GAINS — NET 11. Hhlgs5iF8E

2023 2022

20234 20224F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREETTT

Recognition of financial guarantee contract MR EERE L - (30,000)

Derecognition of financial guarantee contract HUB MR EIERE 4 - 30,000

Exchange (losses)/gains &5 (E518), W (540) 3,622

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A B8 = 4,273

Loss on deregister of subsidiaries THEEREHBARMEE (175) —

Gain on disposal of associates BB A A A 774 =
Loss on disposal/written off of property, plant H& #EWE  BE &

and equipment R EE (55) (39)

Others gains/(losses) Haplezs S (EE) 46 (1,333)

50 6,523
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12. FINANCE INCOME — NET

ofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. BN FHE

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETF T

Finance income B & WA
Interests income from loan receivables JiE U B ZOF) B IR A 23,023 5,011
Interests income from bank deposits SRITIE KA B U A 288 5,772
23,311 10,783

Finance costs B & A AR
Interest expenses for borrowings BRAEFAZ (1,399) (1,873)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAEBEMNERAX (109) (108)
(1,508) (1,981)
21,803 8,802

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 13. FTREBIAX
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax  BIHiFRIE — B EME
(“EIT”): HLERST
Bl -

— Provision for the year — FREE 30,183 39,125
Deferred tax (note 29): FEERIE (F3E29) (5,470) (1,516)
24,713 37,609

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman lIslands income tax. The Company’s
direct subsidiary in the BVI was incorporated under the
International Business Companies Act of the BVI and,
accordingly, is exempted from British Virgin Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5%. No provision for Hong

Kong profits tax was provided as the Group did not have
assessable profit in Hong Kong.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

ARBRRFAS S MK LN —RER
REREEAR  AHERRARNFSE
EMGEH -  ARFARRBEBARESNE
ENBARRERBEBATSEERR
ERAPEEMMK - AR HANEE
HERBEEMER -

BENEHHER16.5% AR AEE L
BELERBNERTAE  RALERE
BRSBAT R E R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in
Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on
the estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

The general corporate income tax rate in PRC is 25%, with the
exception of any preferential treatments received, such as the
15% preferential tax rate that Hangzhou Xier Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Xier Technology”, a PRC subsidiary of the Group) can enjoy as
a result of its qualification as a High and New Technology
Enterprise (‘HNTEs”) from December 2021 to November 2024.

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
Implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on
6 December 2007, dividends distributed from the profits
generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to their
foreign investors shall be subject to this withholding income tax
of 10%, a lower 5% withholding income tax rate may be applied
when the immediate holding companies of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China are incorporated in Hong Kong and fulfil the
requirements to the tax treaty arrangements between Mainland
China and Hong Kong. The Group has not accrued any
withholding income tax for these undistributed earnings of its
subsidiaries in Mainland China as the Group does not have a
plan to distribute these earnings from its subsidiaries in Mainland
China.

The reconciliation between income tax expense and the product
of profit before tax at applicable tax rates is as follows:

mE R HRR MG

13. FTEHiIF X

AEBB A E A EFEEHRENAER
BB TIRBER BARRDE - BB RENY
FARGEFERGNBIRERREGTE -

PR —REEMSHRER25% - &5
BEEFBRIN - flNEBRERERA
A ([BER  A5ENFBEMEAR)
ARESENEMEE ((SHRAitE )
E1E > B2021F 12 AE2024F 11 A =
Z15%MEBFASHME -

RIEF 2007 F 12 A6 HEMAI B EFTER
EBEREIED - R2008FE1 A1H % - A
Bl A Bl E AR FEREEIMEEE D IRE
% S FEIZ10% BB R BATEHETEH + i
BRI B A R BRI A RIE RS
A KA B R Rt EE TR
RIS IR A L HE AR E + R 5% M) UK
TEHAEHRE - AR AEEL &S5
KRB B A B AR MZEREF - i
AREEE N R B B At B B A R R R
BFEFTER TSR -

PSR S B R i A B R 5t B Z BR B AT A
FRIEME RN

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR ARET T
Profit before taxation B 50 A1 A1 R 87,210 162,669
Tax calculated at applicable income tax rate ¥ZiE A TS H B F26% &
of 25% CoE7RE] 21,802 40,667
Preferential income tax rates applicable to BRARAEEETETAR
certain companies comprising the Group H BTSRRI X 231 (262)
Tax effect of income not taxable and BRI A R AT HEL
expenses not deductible for tax purposes A EBeE 2,815 (2,095)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not E) S5 B A AR FERR O B I8
recognised & 18 (135) (701)
24,713 37,609
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14. PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

The

Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging the

following:

ofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. FRFEREZEWEBEH

AEBEFANBELEHNR AT SRR

iE -

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT ARKETTT
Auditor’s remuneration 2% S5 6 %7 B 2,454 2,700
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BB L&A R
equipment and right-of-use assets FREEENE 6,963 7,793
Amortisation of intangible assets mI A EEH 438 628
Impairment loss on trade and other B 5 & B h e W IE R A
receivables E518 30,534 6,732
Loss on disposal/written off of property, plant H& “#MEWE - BE K
and equipment R BB 55 39
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: E LKA (BREEEME) :
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - He kit 253,664 245,280
Social insurance expenses and housing fteRBAIREEREHN
benefits (Note (i) (B EE ) 40,895 46,851
Other employee benefits H bz B 18 A 6,727 12,875
Total staff costs BT ANMEER 301,286 305,006

Note:

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a
defined contribution scheme administered and operated by the local
municipal governments. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees. The contributions
are calculated based on a certain percentage of the employees’ salaries as
agreed by the local municipal governments. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries
and its employees are required to make monthly contributions. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the defined contribution scheme is to
make the required contribution to the scheme. There is no forfeited
contribution under the defined contribution scheme available to reduce the
existing level of contributions in future years.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of retirement
benefits associated with these schemes beyond the annual contributions
described above.
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 15. EE N &
EMOLUMENTS

THASNE

it

Housing
allowance and
contributions to Discretionary
For the year ended #HZ2023512F31H a retirement  bonuses and
31 December 2023 LEE Directors’ fees Salaries benefit scheme  other benefits Total

EREZRRERK BRTEAR
ESHg Fg  RHEHK Rt 7EH L H
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT  ARBTFR ARBEFR ARBFT  ARBTFR

Executive Directors niTES
Mr. Hu Yiping H—Fik = - - - -
Mr. Tang Junjie ERELE - 1,000 91 1,129 2,220
Ms. Zheng Peng (note i) B e £ (M3H) = 500 91 557 1,148
Ms. Zhu Xiaoli (note i) REF 2+ (M) = = = = =
Independent BUERTES
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Rui Meng WEEE 181 = = = 181
Mr. Yang Xi RS A 181 = = = 181
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen FAKRERS I (W 3)
Albert (note i) 128 = = = 128
Mr. Jia Shenghua (note i) B AEZE A& () 52 - - - 52
Total st 542 1,500 182 1,686 3,910
Notes: B 5E -
0] Appointed as director of the Company on 14 April 2023. 0] MN2028F4R14ABEZERARRES -
(ii) Resigned as director of the Company on 14 April 2023. (ii) MR2023F4 A14HBEARAIES -
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 15. EERERITBRAENE @
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Housing
allowance and
contributions to Discretionary
For the year ended HZ2022F12A31H a retirement bonuses and
31 December 2022 LFE Directors’ fees Salaries  benefit scheme other benefits Total
F5 R R
BB 2 BB R
Uk e fit 5k HthiEH Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARMTR ~ ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Hu Yiping H—FEE - - - - -
Mr. Tang Junjie ERfrE - 1,000 88 56 1,144
Ms. Zhu Xiaoli REFZT - 500 88 56 644
Independent Non- BUERTES
Executive Directors
Mr. Jia Shenghua BEERSE 171 - - - 171
Mr. Rui Meng WA 171 - - - 171
Mr. Yang Xi BRLE 171 - - - 171
Total st 513 1,500 176 112 2,301

No loans, quasi-loans or other dealings were entered into by the
Company in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors during the year (2022:
Nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Group was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the years or at any
time during the year (2022: Nil).

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

FR-ARBLETINES - FRES
ZHEEE R EREER AR ANE
R EERHEAMR S (20224F : H) o

AR B W BTSN F RN FARETARIR
FEMEAKREXBERELARARESN
HTERAERBEREARENEARR
5 BHER A #) (20224 « &) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen

mE R HRR MG

20235 BERZEHAFHRAT

15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 15. EEREHITHASMNE »
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year FRNREBN A= HHA TR RIER
included two (2022: two) directors whose emoluments are H022F - WMB)EST RFEEWE
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the EREXZIHNDITAINT B T=%
remaining three (2022: three) individuals are set out below: (2022F : =) ALHBNE ST T
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥T T
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE& e M4 1,800 1,800
Social insurance expenses and
housing benefits teRBRERREFEAEM 273 264
Other employee benefits E b iE B &7 1,317 168
3,390 2,232
The emoluments of the three (2022: three) individuals with the B H =2 (202249 : =&) A LB
highest emoluments are within the following bands: SEELT
Number of employees
EEAE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T — 8
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 02
1,500,000 7T 3 —
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the FA - AEETERAEES AL RS 5 M
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to ATZREAME - ERIMAREE M
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of AREE 2w RENSERBEBAE - /&
office. None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive any B P& A B 5 T2 R EE ok [R) B BER A () B
emoluments during both years. & o
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16. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2022: nil).

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is
based on the profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately RMB61,767,000 (2022:
RMB122,023,000) and on the weighted average number of
shares in issue during the year of approximately 950,837,808
(2022: 1,001,234,899).

No diluted loss per share is presented as the Company had no

potential ordinary shares outstanding for the vyears ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

18.

16.

17.

ofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

B 20235 12 A31 B I BRI
S R T e S
IRARHEIAR B (20224F - &) o

5 ik & 7

FRERERREFTIARR G HE ARG
F R R A AR E61,767,0007T (2022
&F: AR¥122,023,0007T) RENT 1T
fi% 1 0 ¥ F 39 £k 49950,837,808 % (2022
£ :1,001,234,800/%) 5t & -

RN E 20234 202212 A31 B IE4F
EAARWEAMEBEITENEBELR
A% - B A 2 5 B E S IS o

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 18. Y% - k= B sk 15 LA B i
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS BE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARET T
Property, plant and equipment (a) M - BENFZEB@) 9,923 8,438
Right-of-use assets (b) = R#EAEE D) 1,342 2,438
11,265 10,876
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

18. 1% « BERR B LR ERA#E

EE @
(a) Y% BERRE

Equipment
and Vehicles
machinery and others Total
RERME ERRHEM st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®BTT AR®BTT
COST 5%
At 1 January 2022 M202251 A1H 12,920 20,633 33,553
Additions NE 643 6,116 6,759
Disposal/write-off SRV € (109) (28) (137)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HB AR (181) (153) (334)
At 31 December 2022 and MR2022%F12A31H &

1 January 2023 202341 A1H 13,273 26,568 39,841
Additions NE 1,328 6,132 7,460
Disposal/write-off s (1,135) (49) (1,184)
At 31 December 2023 M2023%F 12 A31H 13,466 32,651 46,117
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION EZE:itiiERFE

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 M202241 A1H 9,396 15,575 24,971
Provided for the year FRNRE 1,108 5,626 6,734
Eliminated on disposal/write-off B B B 4 8 (77) (21) (98)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHKB AR (102) (102) (204)
At 31 December 2022 and R2022F12 A31H &

1 January 2023 202341 A1H 10,325 21,078 31,403
Provided for the year FANEE 1,001 4,736 5,737
Eliminated on disposal/write-off & 5H I 8 (903) (43) (946)
At 31 December 2023 M2023%F12 A31H 10,423 25,771 36,194
CARRYING VALUES R
At 31 December 2023 MN2023%E12 A31H 3,043 6,880 9,923
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12 A31H 2,948 5,490 8,438
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets

18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M - R E R ok LA R fE 4

BE
(b) ERESE

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

At 31 December: ®12A318 : AREFT ARET T

Land and buildings TH REF 1,342 2,438
Lease commitments of MEHENHEERE

short-term leases 529 1,395

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of
the Group’s lease liabilities is as follows:

ERNABRRERENAEERE

BEMIHBERIFAOT

Less than 1 year —F LR 1,129 1,287
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF 17 1,061
1,146 2,348
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
Year ended 31 December: BE12A31HILEE: ARETT ARET T
Depreciation charge of FREEENEER
right-of-use assets
Land and buildings T RAEF 1,226 1,059
Expenses related to short-term RHRAEMRBEMAY
leases 5,984 5,090
Lease interests HERE 109 108
Total cash outflow for leases HERS R 2% 7,331 6,490
Additions to right-of-use assets ANEFHAEEE 130 2,377

The Group leases various land and buildings. Lease

agreements are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 3
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and
the leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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mE R HRR MG

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. B EE

Computer
software
HE R
RMB’000
AREF T
COST [p#.
At 1 January 2022 R20224%1 A1H 3,670
Addition NE 1,203
31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 K2022F 124318 &
202341 A1H 4,873
Addition RE 793
31 December 2023 M2023F12 A31H 5,666
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Rit#ids
At 1 January 2022 202241 A1H 1,267
Provided for the year FNEE 628
2022412831 H
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 K2023%F1H1H 1,895
Provided for the year FARE 438
At 31 December 2023 7202312831 H 2,333
CARRYING VALUE BRI (B
At 31 December 2023 7202312 531 H 3,333
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 2,978
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20. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

21.

20. REE AT/ E

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETX AREF T

Share of net assets: JELFEE 501 2,809

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are
accounted for using the equity method.

TRIRABSEARZ AEERGERA

ERILEEATE 2B E NP -

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
Year ended 31 December: 33125 31 E-Itﬁjg : *E#*i }\Eﬂg‘:':ﬁ
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations REFECEEB 2FE
(E18) 6 (267)
Loss after tax from discontinued REDRIEEEER 2 Fii&
operations =g} (3,175) =
Other comprehensive expense HEf2mEAX - =
Total comprehensive expense 2HEMAZ R (3,169) (267)
INVENTORIES 21. &
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT ARETTT
Raw materials R Rk 2,103 2,321
Others HAb 13,260 5,628
15,363 7,949
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen

mE R HRR MG

22. & 5 K H fth FE W =R I8 LA B T 4+

PREPAYMENTS
2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBF T
Current: ENEA :
Trade receivables 2 5 WK
— Related parties — Bms 95,968 111,510
— Third parties - ¥=5 321,142 258,777
Less: allowance for impairment of trade & : & 5 FE W FIE R E B G
receivables (38,139) (25,208
378,971 345,079
Other receivables H b FEW FhIE
— Deposits — &R& 271,482 268,424
— Payments on behalf of property owners — &% F 7t
(Note (b)) (P 3 (b)) 93,612 59,200
— Others — Hftb 42,255 46,098
Less: allowance for impairment of other  J& : £ {th & 2k TR (E B
receivables (13,407) (4,920)
393,942 368,802
Prepayments RRIE
— Prepayments for inventories — FEEMNRIEAE 19,276 21,265
— Other prepayments — HAMTEMNFIE 17,611 19,844
36,887 41,109
Loan receivables (Notes (c)(d)) FE W B X (M3 (c)(d)) 340,459 1,702
340,459 1,702
1,150,259 756,692
Non-current: FEEPES :
Loan receivables (Notes (d)) FEWE K (MT5E(d)) = 315,000
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(@)

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management services income to
property owners and value-added services to non-property owners. Property
management services income are received in accordance with the terms of
the relevant services agreements. Service income from property management
service is due for payment by the residents upon the issuance of demand
note.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables based on recognition date of trade receivables before impairment
were as follows:

ofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22, B5 R HEKRIEL RTE
FIE (@)

(@)

BHREIATERAAETRHENYESE
PRISUA R IR ERERT - WEREERBU
A TR I A B8 AR 7% 150 % 0 G R IR © (£ P IR
BHAGBAER N BRNDEERRBEH
BRASUEA ©

R20234F K 2022612 A31H * ZERBEMNE
SEWGRIERER B N E 5 B IER R DT
mE

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTR ARBEF T

0 to 180 days 0ZE 180K 199,338 237,110
181 to 365 days 181 %365k 44,145 35,711
1 to 2 years 1E24F 99,277 70,706
2 to 3 years 2FE34F 60,268 13,441
3 to 4 years 3E4F 10,389 7,419
Over 4 years AFP 3,693 5,900
417,110 370,287

The balance represented mainly the payments on behalf of property owners in
respect of utility costs of properties.

As at 31 December 2023, loans to third parties with aggregate principle amount
at approximately RMB25,459,000 are unsecured, interest bearing at 10% p.a.
and repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, loan to a third party with an aggregate
principal amount of approximately RMB315,000,000 are secured by certain
car parks space with value not less than RMB630,000,000, interest bearing at
5% (before 1 July 2023: 8%) per annum and are repayable in December
2024.

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the cash and cash equivalents of the

Group denominated

in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to

228,179,000 (2022: RMB209,245,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

23.

EHRIBAREINMENLAEEER -

M2023F12A31H " BFE=S AL LB
AR ¥E25,450,0007T 2 B AEEF  1RFEF
R10%t B RAR—FRNEE -

R20234 2022412 A31H » mE =i
A& BEH AR 315,000,000 E KA E
ERER AR #630,000,0007TH E TIEES
BALEEI - R F R E5% (720237 A1H
Z AT 8%) 5T B RIER2024F 12 AEE -

REaERBELFEY

MN2023FE12A31H KEBUARE
([ANREDAENESRRESEEMAA
R #228,179,0007T (20224 : A R#&
209,245,000t ) ° AR H B HNE B
(R EE AR LA BY HNE & B2 ARG ) TR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen

mE R HRR MG

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. B5 R H b FEFFFRIE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx AREEFTT
Trade payables 2 SN IR (a)
— Related parties — BN 4,891 92
— Third parties — F=h 173,600 120,859
178,551 120,951
Other payables H fib pE < 3RIB
— Deposits — e (© 43,088 31,468
— Amounts temporarily — EEFR, A EREA
received from/on behalf of &8
property owners 153,482 136,035
— Amounts due to related — FETEEEE 5 BUE
parties (b) 3,972 457
— Amounts due to — IR R RIA
non-controlling interests (b) 1,555 5,665
— Accrued payroll — B HE 18,335 14,866
— Other taxes payables — HitbpERHIE 21,390 14,797
— Other accrued expenses — HEMEET Y 10,371 5,007
252,193 208,295
430,744 329,246
Notes: B 5E

(@) The aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date were as follow:

@ EBZENRAERERABOKREITAOT :

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AR¥FTT
Within 1 year 1FE AR 171,246 111,601
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F&E2FR 5,059 6,129
After 2 year but within 3 years 2F & B3FER 1,277 2,775
Over 3 years HBA3F 969 446
178,551 120,951
()  Amounts due to related parties and non-controlling interests were unsecured, (o) EREES RIFERESRIELERER £8

interest free and repayable on demand.

(c) The amounts mainly represented utility expenses collected from the property
owners to be paid to related service providers and rental fee collected from

leasees to be returned to the property owners.

MIRBERIEE

©  EEFRIZR/AXTREHKER  UEX
6B ARSI AR - DA K I A WA

SER UREREXEE -
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25. BORROWINGS 25, &%

2023 2022

2023 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT ARETFT

Secured bank loans (Note i, ii, iii) BHEIRRITE R (MR ~ i ~ i) 27,000 25,000
Unsecured bank loans I IRITER - 30,000
27,000 55,000

Notes: Bt 5 -

0] The secured bank loan of RMB12,000,000 is secured by corporate guarantee 0] BEIFIRITE AR 12,000,000 A & KRIE
provided by the ultimate holding company, carried a fixed interest rate of R BRE AR BB RIEE M - R EEF =
5.05% per annum. 5.05%5T & °

(ii) The secured bank loan of RMB5,000,000 is secured by corporate guarantee (ii) A E P RITERA R #5,000,0007T B AR F)
provided by a subsidiary of the Company, carried a fixed interest rate of —FEM B R RIREA A REREER - REE
5.4% per annum. EFR54%5 8 -

(i)~ The secured bank loan of RMB10,000,000 is secured by the director’s personal (iii) BEIFIRITER AR 10,000,000t HE EH)
guarantee, carried a fixed interest rate of 5.0% per annum. BABRIEER - AREEFFE50%5H 8 ©

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. BHEE

As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 January
2023 2022 2022
1220234 720224 2022 FF
12A31H 12H31H 1H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBETTT ARETT

Contract liabilities EHEE
Property management Y E IR R

services 144,989 103,301 102,913
Value-added services to  3FZ FIERK

non-property owners 222 1,499 1,060
Community resources fLE B R ILE R

value-added services 5,784 2,553 3,780

150,995 107,353 107,753
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26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

27.

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations
unsatisfied at the end of year and expected to be recognised as
revenue in:

mE R HRR MG

26. BB/ @

RERDEEREKRBHE ERIRHNRIA
THFEERRBRANRZ HER

— 2023 — 2023% = 107,353
— 2024 — 20244 150,995 =
150,995 107,353
Revenue recognised in the year that REREREA
was included in contract liabilities at GIAFIHNEHEE)
beginning of year 107,353 107,753
Unsatisfied performance obligations KEITHEOEE

For property management services and value-added services to
non-property owners, the Group recognises revenue in the
amount that equals to the right to invoice which corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s
performance to date, on a monthly basis. The Group has elected
the practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these type of contracts. The majority
of the property management services contracts do not have a
fixed term.

For community resources value-added services, they are
rendered in short period of time, which is generally less than a
year, and the Group has elected the practical expedient for not
to disclose the remaining performance obligations for these type
of contracts.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

On 29 December 2021, Shanghai Xuguan Trading Co., Ltd. (I
EBHEEE AR AAF) (the “Shanghai Xuquan’), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
guarantee agreement with Hangzhou Ruiyang Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (MMNIsEHEEEIEFR 2 F) (the
“Hangzhou Ruiyang”), a business partner and an independent
third party of the Company, pursuant to which, Shanghai Xuquan
shall provide a guarantee for the amount of RMB496 million
borrowed by Hangzhou Ruiyang from Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Branch (the “Ping An Bank”) and receive 8%
guarantee fee from Hangzhou Ruiyang.

27.

IMEEERG MIFETRERBEMS -
AEEZ AERBSNERATSENR
A RERERUEAERCSHEFE
MEE ARBCEENTEENE
TREZFRUAONFBRENRE - K
Mo MERE BRI A LA EETEHIR

C BETREHIA
SEBEEAT
AW RIE

R#t BEFR—F K
BEE  TREZES
MEE -

shit B BERIEERB NS

7 7

MBREEL

MR2021F 128298 » ARARIMHEEE2E
WEA AR EEWEEEFRA R ([ LB
2| BERARANEFESERHRELE=
HiMImiGHEEEIRA R A T (B
B )T ERE - B - E8MEER
mINIR G AL RITIRHD BRAFMIND
T([FERBRIT) EAMARK4906EET
REER - WM 5 W 8% HY 4 R
5o
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27.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT (Continued)

On 29 December 2021 and 6 January 2022, Shanghai Xuquan
entered into the 3 pledge contracts with Ping An Bank to pledge
the certificate of deposit of a total value of RMB300 million and
RMB204.5 million, respectively. In December 2021 and January
2022, Shanghai Xuquan pledged the certificates of deposit to
Ping An Bank of a total value of RMB250.6 million and
RMB504.5 million, respectively, to provide guarantees for
Hangzhou Ruiyang, for the amount of RMB496 million by way of
pledge. Shanghai Xuguan will receive an aggregate of 10.1% of
the total amount of the pledge contracts as the income (including
the 2.1% interest income per year generated from the pledge
contracts and 8% guarantee fee per year from the guarantee
agreement). The financial guarantee contract was effective in
January 2022 which is the Hangzhou Ruiyang issuance of bills
and commencement of the borrowing.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all guarantees in
favour of Ping An Bank provided by the Shanghai Xuquan are
released.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. MBRERESH @

MN20215E12 8298 k202251861 -
EEMEEFRIRTFIZINEHER
o RIERBEBEAREI00BETEA
RH¥204.5ABILHERE - 12021412
AK2022F1 A+ EBMWERFLZIRITS
FERREBEAEARE2506EETEA
R¥504.58 BITHMFHGE - LA IMNIE
BiRHESBEAARK406H ETHE FIE
# o ESHEBKMERARBLSENA
HI01%EABA (RIEERERMEL
FE2.1%HF) B U A LA B2 & 1R 175 P 22
ETFSRMERE) - MBERERBR
2022F1 B (MMImIEHTER REERM
&A1) £ e

HE2022F12A31HILEE - LEME
NFZRITEIZARENEEROE
R o

28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HE&®/

Present value of

Lease payments lease payments

HEFmR HEMNRMIRE
2023 2022 2023 2022
20234 20224 20234 20224
RMB’000 EEEIYIXeoel RMB’000 [E=IY=Keel)

ARE T BN Rl AR Tt PN

Within 1 year —F RN 1,129 1,287 1,091 1,190
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBE2FR 17 1,061 17 1,026
1,146 2,348 1,108 2,216
Less: Future finance charges B AKRREE R (38) (132)
Present value of lease liabilities HEAEMIRE 1,108 2,216
Less: Amount due for settlement & : 121 A W2 HAE
within 12 months (shown MeBE(RREasE
under current liabilities) HTE75) (1,091) (1,190)
Amount due for settlement 121@ A 1 B BRE 1~ 1Y
after 12 months &5 17 1,026

R20283F 12 A3IHAEBEHEAGBENE
R R 55.44% (20224 © 5.44%)

The effective interest rate of the Group’s lease liabilities as at
31 December 2023 is 5.44% (2022: 5.44%).
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29. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised by the Group.

mE R HRR MG

EEBIE

AT AEEERANEZEEHIBEE
(B -

Allowance
on doubtful Tax
debts losses Total
RIREE BiIERS1E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBFIT ARBFIT
At 1 January 2022 R20229F1 A1 H 5,750 1,619 7,369
Credited/(charged) to profit or PRI A(HBR)
loss 1,937 (421) 1,516
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBARR (155) — (155)
At 31 December 2022 and MR2022F12HA31 8 &
1 January 2023 2023F1A1H 7,532 1,198 8,730
Credited to profit or loss RIBEETA 5,355 115 5,470
At 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31H 12,887 1,313 14,200

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB5,011,000 (2022: RMB10,295,000) available for
offset against future profits that will expire within ten years. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
RMB3,870,000 (2022: RMB2,305,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax liabilities as at
31 December 2023 in respect of undistributed earnings of
RMB371,950,000 (2022: RMB288,978,000) as the Company
controls the dividend policy of the subsidiaries and it has been
determined that these profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

RIEHR - AEERERBABIEEE
AR #5,011,0007T (20224 : AR ¥
10,295,0007T) + Al LK 85 R 20 Fl (A5
TEREE) o B AR R E T HRE T A
fHETM - & st A R %3,870,0007T
(20224 : A R#2,305,0007T) #& 52 1E iT
MIBEE o

R2023F12A3818 ' AEB I ERL KD
K 2 F A R #371,950,0007T (20224 :
A R #288,978,00070) R IEE T B &
& RERAR LG M B A R AR B
RACDETZE=MABETERA RERS
K ©
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. g &

Number of Nominal value Amount
ordinary ordinary equivalent to
shares shares RMB’000
AL
TiERHE iR i {E ARETT
Authorised: VETE
Shares of the Company with RARIEREEO0.01%
nominal value of HK$0.01 o) 4)

each

At 1 January 2022, 31
December 2022, 1 January
2023 and 31 December

R2022F1 A18 »
2022F12A31H -
2023%F1 A1H K&

2023 2023F12 A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 43,947
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER
At 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1 H 1,016,851,000 10,168,510 8,462
Repurchases and cancellation of  B& Bl &2 ¥ 4 R% (7
shares (Notes a) (FffzEa) (37,990,000) (379,900) (347)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12 A31H 978,861,000 9,788,610 8,115
Cancellation of shares (Notes a)  JE#8R& 1% (Kista) (8,100,000) (81,000) (73)
Repurchases and cancellation of  B& [0 & s $5 % 15
shares (Note b) (Fff7ED) (33,453,000) (334,530) (304)
At 31 December 2023 7R2023F 12 A31H 937,308,000 9,373,080 7,738
Notes: P E -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group repurchased a total of (a) REE2022F 12 A31A L FE - ANE B R F

168

46,090,000 ordinary shares listed on Stock Exchange. The total amount paid
to repurchase these ordinary shares was approximately RMB119,908,000. As
at 31 December 2022, 37,990,000 shares repurchased during the current
reporting period has been cancelled. Upon the cancellation of the
37,990,000 ordinary shares repurchased, the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the par value of approximately RMB347,000, and
the premium paid on the repurchase of these cancelled shares of
RMB98,415,000, including transaction costs was deducted from share
premium of the Company. The remaining 8,100,000 repurchased ordinary
shares were subsequently cancelled in March 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group repurchased and
cancelled a total of 33,453,000 ordinary shares listed on Stock Exchange.
The total amount paid to repurchase these ordinary shares was
approximately RMB83,545,000. The issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the par value of approximately RMB304,000, and the premium
paid on the repurchase of these cancelled shares of RMB83,241,000,
including transaction costs was deducted from share premium of the
Company.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

4 $£46,090,000 8 A B R AT E T A @AL - A
BEESELYERAITNESENRARKE
119,908,0007T ° M 2022412 4318 » A&
HA (31 88 89 37,990,000 A B 4 a1 88 o M FESE P
%[ #937,990,000i8 FiAAR & - AR RIAIE B
TR AR E B R D 4 A R #347,0007T * i fE
BEHEEEHEBRNNENEEARYE
98,415,0007C (BIER KA ) B AR FIIRD
EEE R K - # 78,100,000 B [E] §8 I 58 A%
BE1£ 1A 20234 3 A FEsH °

REZE2023F12 A31H ILFE - AEE T
it §H A $£33,453,000 % A BE R BT E TR E @
B - AEEILSEBRAZAHBSEOBA
R#83,545,0007T ° AR AIH B I TR ZANIZE
B D4 A R #3804,0007T ¢ i 8 B I & B 5
SRR B0 B 5 B A R #583,241,0007T (215
RGEA) ERAR ARG & EFHE -



31.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

31. XABMBRRRR R

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ENEBRRMNIEE 58,602 58,602

Current assets mEEE
Prepayment SELRE 3,532 3,462
Amount due from a subsidiary FEU —FEIH B A | k08 433,012 514,733
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRSEEYD 310 916
436,854 519,111
Current liabilities mEBAR

Other payables H h FE S 5RIA 11,207 11,207
Amount due to a subsidiary FEA — R B A a8 123 129
11,330 11,336
Net current assets MENE EFAE 425,524 507,775
Total assets less current liabilities BEERMEIDEE 484,126 566,377
Net assets BEFE 484,126 566,377

Capital and reserves BEAR K EE
Share capital fi& 7 7,738 8,115
Reserves B 476,388 558,262
Total equity EEm iR 484,126 566,377
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32. RESERVES 32.

(a) Group (a) F%KE
Share premium % 193 ks (8

s EREARREBTESKND
WREEmMEZHNER -

Share premium represents the difference between the
consideration and the par value of the issued and paid up
shares of the Company.

EXfE

Capital reserve

170

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARMT T

Reorganisation =4 @) 64,599 64,599

Purchase of additional BE MBI AM

interest in a subsidiary FEIMER (21,459) (21,459)

Repurchase of shares 8 B i 1n - (21,146)
Deemed contribution RIELE (b) 7,331 7,331
Xier Technology BRBHE (©) 15,837 15,837

Shengquan Property By (d) (114,374) (114,374)
Zhida Xiaorui BREEM () 7,508 7,508

(40,558) (61,704)

The accumulated capital contribution from the then shareholders of the
group companies in excess of the consideration given in relation to the
Reorganisation.

The Group disposed of Zhejiang Shengquan Security Services Co., Ltd.
(the “Shengquan Security”) to an entity controlled by Mr. Hu at a
consideration of RMB11,000,000 during the year ended 31 December
2018 and the Group bought back Shengquan Security during the
Reorganisation. Shengquan Security was engaged in the Listing
Business, the consideration received was accounted for as a deemed
contribution from the controlling shareholder of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group injected capital
of RMB3,669,000 to a company engaged in the Excluded Business.
Since the financial information of the Excluded Business, the capital
injection was accounted for as a deemed distribution to the controlling
shareholder of the Group.

The shareholder of Xier Technology has acquired or disposed of certain
equity interests in Xier Technology, which resulted in increases or
decreases in non-controlling interests and corresponding decreases or
increases in capital reserves.
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KERRERRRORDIEBHFE
HERENRERD

HE2018F12A31ALFEE  AEEH
LA (B A R # 11,000,000 7T 17 A 56 4 12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen

32. RESERVES (Continued)

(a) Group

Capital reserve

(d) During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the then
shareholder of Shengquan Property acquired additional interests in
Shengquan Property, which resulted in decreases in non-controlling
interests of RMB1,644,000 and RMB4,851,000 and corresponding
increases in the capital reserves.

On 16 November 2020, Shengquan Technology acquired 95% equity
interest in Shengquan Property at a consideration of RMB55,800,000
from its then shareholders. Upon completion of the transaction,
Shengquan Property was 95% owned by Shengquan Technology and
5% owned by Zhida Xiaorui.

In August and September 2020, Shengquan Property acquired certain
fellow subsidiaries engaged in the Listing Business from the entities
controlled by Mr. Hu at total consideration of RMB72,665,000.

In September 2020, Shengquan Property disposed certain subsidiaries
engaged in the Excluded Business to the entities controlled by Mr. Hu
at a total consideration of RMB7,596,000.

(e) On 1 November 2020, Zhi Da Xiao Rui (Hong Kong) Limited (“Zhida
Xiaorui”), an entity controlled by another pre-IPO investor, agreed to
inject HK$8,900,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB7,508,000) to
Shengqguan Property in return of 5% of its equity interest.

Statutory reserves

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC,
when declaring dividend, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to appropriate not less than 10% of their profit after
taxation calculated under PRC accounting rules and regulations to
the statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of the fund
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective
companies. The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses brought
forward from prior years or to increase the paid up capital of
respective companies.

mE R HRR MG

32. f#Fw

(a) =&E
BXRE

@

H ZE20184 K2019F 12 318 IFF
B BREMEERRREKEXEMED
BIMER - BUSIEIERRIER D B A
R ¥1,644,0007T & A R #4,851,000
TC A A R RE LG A o

202011 A16H - B2 R EEE S
P E B R R R HO5% AR HE - (KB
A AR #55,800,0007T ° X 5 MK &
BEMEABRERBRERS%ER - A
BAREIM 5%

MR2020%8 A ROR F REWE H BT
ERHINERKEE TRE ETELD
AREMEBAR  BREAARE
72,665,0007T ©

202059 F - BEWH R Ak AL
MERBHES TRERIEBHOHBA
A BRERARYT,596,0007T °

R2020F11 A1H ' B KER (F8)
ERAR((BXEHR)(—RBS—%
BRXARARENREEEFNER)R
EMXEYETE8,900,000/%8 T (HHE
R4 AR #7,508,0007T) * M B E
5% K AR #E ©

R TE it e

REFEEBMRAESR  EERKE
B AEBENTEKERRASRERE
SRR SER S ERBIRMER10% A
LEBRELTERBE  EERTHETH
BETRFED T R REMERHN50% 5
1k EEF RS R EERERBIERE
REBHEEFEEENEBERIEME R
MBERER -
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32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. {#E @

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders. To this end, the Group aims to
price services commensurately with the level of risk and secure
access to financing at a reasonable cost. The Group’s overall
strategy remained unchanged throughout the reporting periods.

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the adjusted
net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is

BEXEH

AEBEREAANEEABRREAEE
MBS TR ARFIR DR
RAR MR AARE SRR « Bkt - &
S8 5755 B A AR KT ARBEREN
RIEARRARGRE - AEENHBEE
BB (E1 4R 25 S A R o

AEBENERHBE FEEA L RER
HENREE - Bt - KHEABEHFEE

defined as total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and REBEE(BEFEERREFARME
borrowings, and lease liabilities) plus unaccrued proposed E86E) MAFHEKEERREEREE
dividends, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital BY) - LFABRERIEARN AR RENG
represents total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the DB ARET IR S -

Company, less unaccrued proposed dividends.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group maintained at net
cash position.

MR2023F K2022F 12 A31H » KEB#
FHEREMMR -

(b) Company (b) EAT

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total
B #ria & EXRGRE RitisiE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTET ARBTFT AR®BTET
At 1 January 2022 120221 A1H 653,103 58,602 (15,370) 696,335
Total comprehensive 2HEMAZAEHE
expense — — 33,257 33,257
Dividend paid BT S - - (51,769) (51,769)
Repurchase and cancellation & [El I 5% $5 A% 17
of shares (98,415) (21,146) = (119,561)
At 31 December 2022 and ~ 7A2022F 12 A31H K
1 January 2023 20231 A1H 554,688 37,456 (33,882) 558,262
Total comprehensive FHMAYL B
expense = = 1,294 1,294
Cancellation of shares SR (2 (21,073) 21,146 - 73
Repurchase and cancellation 8 [ & JF 4 i% {2
of shares (83,241) = = (83,241)
At 31 December 2023 7 2023F 12 A31H 450,374 58,602 (32,588) 476,388
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33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any material capital commitments as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

34.

35.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

33.

34.

35.

BEXRiE

MR2023F K2022F12 A31H » AEEI
EAT(A] EKE A HRIE -

HABR

R2023F 202212 A31H » KEEW
EIMBEARAEE -

MESTSELEMRRHEER

Interest Lease
payable Borrowing liabilities Total
FE 151 8 EEN HEAR o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR T ARB T ARET T
At 1 January 2022 20221818 — — 3,989 3,989
Financing cash flows BERSRE (1,872) 55,000 (1,400) 51,728
Non-cash changes FHREEDH

— Addition — RE — — 2,377 2,377

— Finance costs — BEKA 1,872 — 108 1,980

— Disposal of subsidiary — HERBARA - - (2,858) (2,858)
At 31 December 2022 and 72022812 A31H &

1 January 2023 2023F1A1H = 55,000 2,216 57,216
Financing cash flows MERSRE (1,248) (28,000) (1,347) (30,595)
Non-cash changes FHRLEH

— Addition — RE - = 130 130

— Finance costs — BEKAR 1,399 = 109 1,508
At 31 December 2023 72023F12 A31H 151 27,000 1,108 28,259
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
following significant related party transactions for the year ended
31 December 2023.

(@) Name of and relationship with related parties

During the year, transactions with the following parties are
considered as related party transactions:

ofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. EABE B3RS @)

BRGEVBRREMENBEENBRK S E
BHASN » REBRE £2023F12 A31H
HFEFTLTHERBEARS -

(a) PBAERFGME &5 R S5

7 B9 BA %
FR - RTIIEHOR SR B
BHRS

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

)k Yt EARERERE
Mr. Hu Ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company
2kt RR B B AR RRAR R

Dexin China Holdings Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Dexin China Group”)

BEPEERERAFDRAMEAR ((EEPEHER])

Key management personnel remuneration

(b)

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and
other members of key management as disclosed in Note
15, is as follows:

Controlled by Mr. Hu

B #A 75 A 2

(b) EEETEAEMSE
AEBTEERAEHE (BEER
ARREENHEMEBEEEAORK
T8 (GG ANBIFE15 AT EE) ) I T

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Salaries and other short-term e hEMEEEESRT
employee benefits 6,758 4,020
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. FAEE A XS ()
(c) Significant related party transactions (c) EXFBEAXRS
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the #H £20234F %2022 12318 1
Group had the following significant transactions with related FE AEEEBHMAIEENTE
parties. The transactions amounts disclosed represent the ARG - WENRH S EIRTAG
transactions with relevant parties during the periods when T3 A7 5 B B R Bt U7 B B 2 HETT Y
those parties were related parties of the Group. R5 o

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AR¥ET T
(i) Provision of services () RHERS
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EEPREERE
ventures and associates AEPNE A A‘T 71,748 112,872
— Other entities controlled by — LN EMERS
Mr. Hu 36,574 57,379
108,322 170,251
(i) Deposit paid for parking space (i) T ffE{IfERIERE
leasing and sales agency e
services
— Dexin China Group and its joint — fEEFEEEME
ventures and associates PEREE AT — 250,000
— Other entities controlled by — MRS EMm TR
Mr. Hu - o
-~ 250,000
All of the transactions above were carried out in the normal Al ‘ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%i’ﬂﬁ$’il¥ﬁ%mﬁﬁ
course of the Group’s business and on terms as agreed BER AR 5E T HERMERT
between the transacting parties. 1T e
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Balances with related parties

36. FEtH X5 )
(d) EREAEET B4 ER

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Trade related &5
Trade receivables 2 5 EWRIA
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EEFEEBREASE
ventures and associates Y58 /N 92,718 109,932
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — i 5t A 42 i 69 E 4th & 52 3,250 1,678
Other receivables H b fE W SRR
— Dexin China Group and its joint — E{EFHEBLEAE
ventures and associates YN8 /NG 1,407 2,157
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — #A e A 3% 4l 09 E fh Z 48 20,068 15,372
Trade payables 2 SR FRIB
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EEFREEREASE
ventures and associates (Y58 l/NE] 4,891 92
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — #A5E A1 $I 8y E fth Z 48 = —
Other payables Ho b fE AT 5RIE
— Dexin China Group and its joint — E{EFEEBLREAE
ventures and associates PS8R l/NE] 3,913 128
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — #A%E A 3% 4 09 E fh Z 42 59 329
Contract liabilities BREE
— Dexin China Group and its joint — E{ERHEBRLEASE
ventures and associates ¥ K& QA 4,617 2,992
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — #ASE A #5400 B fh Z 48 = —
Deposit paid for parking space ENBEVHERBRBEIEZS
leasing and sales agency services
— Dexin China Group and its joint — E{EFHEEBRELSE
ventures and associates Y58 /N 250,000 250,000

— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu

— AREESNEBER

Other receivables and other payables due from or due to
related parties are unsecured, interest-free, and with terms
on demand or in accordance with related agreements.

P& W B A< BB B U 0 L A R MR IR A e B
ENFREARERRELE  BRARE
RKEZRIREEBHEME

As at 15 March 2024, Dexin China Group and its joint
ventures and associates have an unsettled amount of trade
receivables and other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB79,687,000 and RMB1,362,000
respectively with relevant expected credit loss of
RMB1,019,000.

M2024F3 150 - BEEFREENEAS
ERERBENRREENE ZEIWNGIR
REMERRIREBEBSINNAEARK
79,687,0007T & A R #1,362,0007T *
TERETERRE E R B A AR 1,019,0007T °
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. A AT T EMBATIHE
OF THE COMPANY

Country/place and date Attributable equity

of incorporation/ Registered/issued and interest of
Company name establishment paid-in capital the Group Principal activities
ML MIMER S SR ERTR
ATEBE B % B # BHEX AREEERE ZBEH
2023 2022
20234 [WlrES

Directly owned:

EEMR

Shengping International Limited British Virgin Islands Not applicable/ — 100% 100% Investment
26 October 2020 holding

BYEBRERAR RERMRES @A/ — REZR
20204 10A26H

Zhirui International Limited British Virgin Islands Not applicable/— 100% 100% Investment
21 September 2020 holding

BinEE AR AR RERMRES @A/ — KB ZR
20204 9H21H

Indirectly owned:

RS :

Sheng Quan Holding (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Not applicable/ — 100% 100% Investment
2 November 2020 holding

BEER(FE)BRAR i @R/ — K& 2R
202011 A2H

Zhejiang Shengquan Technology Co., Ltd Hong Kong Not applicable/ — 100% 100% Investment
16 November 2020 holding

WMIEZRHRARA A B @A/ — K& ZR
2020411 A16H

Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd. PRC RMB200,000,000/ 100% 100% Property
29 March 2004 RMB113,740,000 management

BERZVERBERAR i AR #200,000,0007T,” WEER
200443 A29H AR #118,740,0007T

Zhejiang Shengjie Environment Engineering Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% 100% Environmental
8 May 2014 RMB10,000,000 cleaning

WTEZIRIFTRAR DA HE AR %10,000,0007T,” REER
2014 5H8H A R #10,000,0007C

Hangzhou Junde Commercial Operations PRC RMB128,000,000/ 100% 100% Commercial

Management Co., Ltd. 16 May 2019 RMB100,000,000 operation

MMEREEFELEEERRA HE AR #128,000,0007t,” MEEE

20194 5H16H AR #100,000,0007T
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. AT EMEBATHE =
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Country/place and date Attributable equity

of incorporation/ Registered/issued and interest of

Company name establishment paid-in capital

HEMARIL RIMER S S EETR

the Group Principal activities

AT &E SR HH BHEX AEEEERE TEEB
2023 2022
PLPRESN 2022 F

Hangzhou Julin Lifestyle Services Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000/ 100% 100% Wholesale and
2 November 2018 RMB1,000,000 retail

MM AEHEEERB AR A R & A R #50,000,0007C HEREZE
2018411 A28 /AR #1,000,0007T

Zhejiang Shengquan Security Services Co., Ltd. PRC RMB11,000,000/ 100% 100% Security services
25 June 2015 RMB11,000,000

IR 2RERBARRA A i AR %11,000,0007t, X Fr 4 7 IR 75
20156 A25H AR #11,000,0007C

Xier Technology PRC RMB32,918,012/ 78% 78% Technology
24 September 2015 RMB32,918,012

FERRHR i AR¥32,918,0127t, Bl
20159 24 H AR¥32,918,0127T

Dexin Property Services Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000/ — 100% 100% Property services
2 January 2019

BEMERBERAF i AR %5,000,0007T,— MERY
201941 H2H

Hangzhou Deyu Commercial Management Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000/ 70% 70% Commercial
14 September 2020 RMB1,000,000 management

MMNER X EERRAA FE AR #10,000,0007T AMEERE
202069 A 14A /AR #1,000,0007T

Hangzhou Xiangyu Property Management Services  PRC RMB1,000,000/ — 68% 68% Apartment

Co., Ltd. 14 September 2020 management

MMNEBYEEERBER QA HE AR #1,000,0007T, — RNBER
2020F9H14H

Huzhou Guomao Property Co., Ltd. PRC RMB1,250,000/ 60% 60% Property services
12 July 2001 RMB1,250,000

MMEEYEEREERA A B ABR#1,250,0007T, LIEN Y
200147 AH12H AR #1,250,0007T

EM B ARG XA - MR
ZBALEEERERRASNARNPX
ZTRE BT -

The English name of the subsidiaries represents the best effort by
the management of the Group in translating their Chinese names
as they do not have an official English name.
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company entered major and connected transactions with
Dexin China Holdings Co. Ltd (“Dexin China”) in relation to (1)
the acquisition of target parking spaces and (2) the equity
acquisition of hotel property holding company on 24 August
2023. Pursuant to extraordinary general meeting held on 23
February 2024, these transactions were approved by
independent shareholders of the Company. The completion of
these transaction is subject to the approval from Dexin China’s
independent shareholders.

39. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March
2024.

38. REMIEEIR

39.

ApmEEEREERER AR ([EEP
Bt kEBEEM QB E M HEE
A& 7] B e Uk B 1 2 2023 4F 8 A 24 HET 32
FERBERS - BRENR2024F2 523 H
BOBRRFIARE  ZEXFHEARRT
BN R o TRZER BHARFEEF
BB IREAL R - FAEER -

SRS MBERE

B A UG HRERN2024F3 27 HESE
EERE R IRE T o
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Financial Summary

1 55 1 =

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224 20214 2020% 20194
CIVERN  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
NGBl ARETr ARBTT AR®TT ARETTT
Key financial information *ZE &
Revenue A 955,580 958,597 870,422 692,319 512,850
Gross profit EAH 226,039 271,374 299,082 235,757 144,926
Profit for the period RSP 62,497 125,060 110,050 105,807 50,550
— Including non-controlling — /&2 ¥& JE 45 A% # 25
interests 730 3,037 11,828 8,617 1,154
— Attributable to owners of — ARQTHEAE AFEL
the Company 61,767 122,023 98,222 97,190 49,396
Y oI  December  December  December  December
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224 20214 2020% 20194
128 12 A 12 A 12 A 128
CIVERNE  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
NGBl ARET T ARBTT AREFTT ARETT
Non-current assets IERBEE 29,299 340,393 29,775 24,254 60,285
Current assets mENEE 1,395,350 974,496 1,208,762 420,689 384,475
Total assets BERT 1,424,649 1,314,889 1,238,537 444,943 444,760
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 10,017 1,026 569 2,626 9,858
Current liabilities mEAE 655,599 532,667 377,757 353,889 285,846
Total liabilities BEBEE 665,616 533,693 378,326 356,515 295,704
Total equity O 759,033 781,196 860,211 88,428 149,056
Interest attributable to the  ANATIEEAB AFE(GHEZS
owners of the Company 742,766 764,544 835,657 75,870 150,814
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